MAR' N Posting Date: 12-13-2021
N& WATER

NOTICE OF MEETING
WATERSHED COMMITTEE/BOARD OF DIRECTORS (WATERSHED)

(Per paragraph 3 on page 10 under subsection Committee Meetings of the Board Handbook: The
Board, as a practice, generally does not take final action on items during committee meetings, unless
District staff determines the urgency of the item requires immediate action that cannot be delayed until
a subsequent regular bi-monthly Board meeting.)

MEETING DATE: 12-16-2021
TIME: Meeting begins at 1:30 p.m. (Public)
LOCATION: This meeting will be held virtually, pursuant to Assembly Bill (AB) 361.

To participate online, go to https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/82198370942. You can also participate
by phone by calling 1-669-900-6833 and entering the webinar ID#: 821 9837 0942.

PARTICIPATION DURING MEETINGS: During the public comment periods, the public may
comment by clicking the “raise hand” button on the bottom of the Zoom screen; if you are
joining by phone and would like to comment, press *9 and we will call on you as appropriate.

EMAILED PUBLIC COMMENTS: You may submit your comments in advance of the meeting by
emailing them to BoardComment@MarinWater.org. All emailed comments received by 11:00
a.m. on the day of the meeting will be provided to the Board of Directors prior to the meeting.
All emails will be posted on our website. (Please do not include personal information in your
comment that you do not want published on our website such as phone numbers and home
addresses.)

AGENDA ITEMS RECOMMENDATIONS

Call to Order and Roll Call
Adopt Agenda Approve

Public Comment

Members of the public may comment on any items not listed on the agenda during
this time. Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker, and time limits
may be reduced by the Committee Chair to accommodate the number of speakers
and ensure that the meeting is conducted in an efficient manner.

MaARIN WATER BOARD OF DIRECTORS: LARRY BRAGMAN, JACK GIBSON, CYNTHIA KOEHLER, LARRY RUSSELL AND MONTY SCHMITT
Page 1|3




AGENDA ITEMS RECOMMENDATIONS
Calendar

1. Minutes of the Watershed Committee/Board of Directors Approve
(Watershed) Meeting of September 16, 2021
(Approximate time 1 minute)

2. 2022-2023 Draft One Tam Work Plan and Amendment No. 7 Review and Refer to
to the Cooperative Agreement Board for Approval
(Approximate time 5 minutes)

3. Award of Contract No. 1967 for Forestry Services to Bay Area Review and Refer to
Tree Specialists Board for Approval
(Approximate time 3 minutes)

4. California Conservation Corps Forestry, Fuels and Trails Review and Refer to
Contract Board for Approval
(Approximate time 5 minutes)

5. Other Power Driven Mobility Device (Including Class 1 E- Review and Refer to
Bikes) Proposed Ordinance, Administrative Policy and Board for Approval
Procedures for use of Other Power-Driven Mobility Devices,

Device Registration, and Administrative Policy on the
District’s ADA Grievance Process
(Approximate time 30 minutes)

6. Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan — Progress Information
Update
(Approximate time 10 minutes)

Adjournment (2:24 p.m. - Time Approximate)

ADA NOTICE AND HEARING IMPAIRED PROVISIONS:

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Law, it is Marin
Water’s policy to offer its public programs, services, and meetings in a manner that is readily
accessible to everyone, including those with disabilities. If you are an individual with a disability
and require a copy of a public hearing notice, an agenda, and/or agenda packet in an
appropriate alternative format, or if you require other accommodations, please contact Board
Secretary Terrie Gillen at 415.945.1448, at least two days in advance of the meeting. Advance
notification will enable the Marin Water to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility.

Page 2|3




AGENDAS ARE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW AT THE CIVIC CENTER LIBRARY, CORTE MADERA
LIBRARY, FAIRFAX LIBRARY, MILL VALLEY LIBRARY, MARIN WATER OFFICE, AND ON THE MARIN

WATER WEBSITE (MARINWATER.ORG)

FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS:

% Friday, December 17, 2021
Operations Committee/Board of Directors (Operations) Meeting
9:30 a.m.

% Tuesday, January 4, 2022
Joint Board of Directors/Financing Authority/and Financing Corporation Meeting

7:00 p.m.

!\'ﬁ 1_\1%’\
S aarw

Board Secretary

Page 3|3



MARI N Item Number: 01
WATE R Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

Meeting: Watershed
Committee/Board of Directors
(Watershed)

7

Approval ltem

TITLE
Minutes of the Watershed Committee/Board of Directors (Watershed) Meeting of September
16, 2021

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the adoption of the minutes.

SUMMARY
On September 16, 2021, the Watershed Committee/Board of Directors (Watershed) held its
quarterly meeting. The minutes of that meeting are attached.

DISCUSSION
None

FISCAL IMPACT
None

ATTACHMENT(S)
1. Minutes of September 16, 2021, Meeting of the Watershed Committee/Board of

Directors (Watershed)

DIVISION MANAGER APPROVED
DEPARTMENT OR DIVISION '
Communications & Public % Szzk(
Affairs Department - {1; e
Terrie Gillen Ben Horenstein
Board Secretary General Manager
Page 1[1




Item Number: 01
Attachment: 01

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
WATERSHED COMMITTEE /BOARD OF DIRECTORS (WATERSHED) MEETING

MINUTES

Thursday, September 16, 2021
Via teleconference

{In accordance with Governor Gavin Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20)

DIRECTORS PRESENT:  John Gibson, Monty Schmitt, and Larry Russell

DIRECTORS ABSENT: Larry Bragman and Cynthia Koehler
CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chair Schmitt called the meeting to order at 1:31 p.m.
ADOPT AGENDA:

On motion made by Director Gibson and seconded by Director Russell, the board approved the
adoption of the agenda by the following roil call vote:

Ayes: Directors Gibson, Russell, and Schmitt
Noes: None
Absent: Directors Bragman and Koehler

PUBLIC COMMENT:
There were three public comments,
CALENDAR ITEMS:

Item1l Minutes of the Watershed Committee/Board of Directors (Watershed) Meeting of
June 17, 2021

On motion made by Director Gibson and seconded by Director Russell, the board approved the
minutes by the following roll call vote:

Ayes: Directors Gibson, Russell, and Schmitt
Noes: None
Absent: Directors Bragman and Koehler



Item2 2021 Annual Vegetation Management Report

Natural Resources Program Manager Carl Sanders along with Watershed Resources Manager Shaun
Horne presented this item. Discussion followed.

There were no public comments.

The board did not take any formal action, because this was an informational item.

Item3 Watershed Recreation Plan Update

Watershed Resources Manager Shaun Horne brought forth this item. Discussion followed.
There were 11 public comments.

This was also an informational item. No formal action was taken.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the Watershed Committee/Board of Directors (Watershed)
meeting adjourned at approximately 3: 00 p.m.

Board Secretary



MAR'N Item Number: 02
WATER Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

Meeting: Watershed
Committee/Board of Directors
(Watershed)

7

Review and Refer for Board Approval

TO: Watershed Committee/Board of Directors (Watershed) ,

P, f
,‘,

FROM: Shaun Horne, Watershed Resources Manager {f/ 7
THROUGH: Ben Horenstein, General Manager%? %
DIVISION NAME: Watershed

ITEM: One Tam Draft 2022-2023 Work Plan and Amendment No. 7 to the Cooperative
Agreement MA 5311

RECOMMENDATION
1. Review and Refer for Board Approval the 2022-2023 One Tam Work Plan
2. Review and Refer for Board Approval Amendment No. 7 to the Cooperative Agreement
MA 5311

SUMMARY

In 2014, Mt. Tam’s four land management agencies: the Marin Municipal Water District,
National Parks Service, California State Parks, Marin County Parks, and the Golden Gate
National Parks Conservancy launched the Tamalpais Lands Collaborative-now called One Tam.
One Tam is currently in its sixth year. Each year One Tam develops an Annual Work Plan (Work
Plan) that is structured around areas of focus of the One Tam’s 2019-2023 Strategic Plan. As
the partnership is maturing, the partner agencies have agreed to transition to a work plan that
covers a two year period, which would cover calendar years 2022 and 2023. .

Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors review and refer to a future regularly
scheduled Board of Directors meeting approval of the One Tam Bi-Annual work plan, and
authorize the General Manager to sign Amendment No. 7 to the Cooperative Agreement to
facilitate grant funding collaboration and funding transfers for the recently awarded Cal Fire
Forest Health grant.

DISCUSSION

In accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding signed by the Tamalpais Lands
Collaborative (TLC) partner agencies, a “5 Year List” of projects and programs that are
compatible with the purpose and vision of the TLC was developed. The initial 5 Year List and a
cooperative agreement with the Golden Gate National Parks Conservancy to support One Tam
activities were approved by the District’s Board of Directors on November 10, 2014. To frame

Page 1|4




Item Number: 02
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

the overall development and operation of the One Tam initiative, a comprehensive 5- year
vision document was developed at the same time. This 5-year document “One Mountain, One
Vision” served as important guidance during the key early years, to the extent that all of its
goals were met or exceeded. The pandemic and the growing impacts of a changing climate both
highlight the fact that our challenges do not recognize jurisdictional borders. Recent fire
seasons (including the Point Reyes fire in 2020), the historic drought, and sea level rise, has
made climate resilience an even more urgent and pressing priority for our landscape. Forest
health and drought resilience will be partnership priorities for the 2022/23 work plan.

One Tam 5-Year Strategy

The first 5 years as envisioned by the initial 5-year strategy was marked by building and
sustaining the initiative focused on programs to engage the community and then increasing
investment and expanding impact. The theme of the current 5-year strategy is on strengthening
and sustaining our effort. At the March 5, 2019 Board of Directors meeting the updated 5-year
strategy “One Tam the Next Five Years Going Farther, Together” was presented. Consistent
with the principles of transparency and accountability embraced by the work leading to the
formation of One Tam, and held to during the work of developing and growing the One Tam
initiative, the development of the next 5-year strategy involved ongoing presentations and
conversations with groups and organizations interested in the long-term health of Mt.
Tamalpais.

The current strategy’s organizational structure follows a similar structure as the first with the
addition of a new chapter on Landscape-scale Science and Management, which was added to
the original chapter framework of Programs, Projects, Awareness and Engagement, Partnership
and Collective Impact, and Philanthropy and Investment. This new chapter recognizes the focus
on science and conservation actions that came to the forefront during the initial 5 years.
Another focus of the next five-year strategy is a refinement of vision, mission, and values. The
goal is to sharpen the group’s efforts and to better recognize the success of One Tam as born
out of a strong collaboration with the community as well as collaboration among its partner
agencies. Finally, the current strategy is intended to provide tactics to achieve greater goals and
inform the development of future work plans and associated fund-raising, planning,
implementation, and public stewardship.

One Tam 2022-23 Work Plan

The One Tam partnership provides a collaborative framework for meeting today’s
unprecedented challenges, which present opportunities to incubate new strategies for
stewardship, activate long-lasting community support, and catalyze positive change. Though
uncertainties remain in the year ahead, this 2022-23 work plan provides a framework to
leverage the shared resources and maintain the trajectory of the partnership’s strength,
sustainability, and care for Mt. Tam with focus on the benchmarks laid out in the current five-
year One Tam strategy. Each section of the 2022-23 work plan represents the collective efforts
of all One Tam partners and speaks to how its work has been and will adapt to meet the
changing conditions in these uncertain and unprecedented times.

Page 2|4




Item Number: 02
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

The Work Plan is structured around the six organizational areas that are presented in the One
Tam’s 2019-2023 Strategic Plan. Those six areas include Landscape-Scale Science and
Management, Projects, Programs, Partnership and Collective Impact, Philanthropy and
Investment, and Communication. The proposed work plan also reflects the current priorities of
each of these partners and adds capacity to existing programs to collectively increase the
group’s mountain-wide reach and impact. The work plan includes both program and project
support for the District. Program support includes continuation and expansion of the mountain-
wide stewardship and citizen science activities, volunteer stewardship and youth programs.
These programs are integrally linked to, and add capacity to, the District’s existing program
areas. In the coming years, the partnership will integrate climate resilience as a common theme
into the collective programming in the quest to understand how to improve the resilience of
parks as ecosystems shift in response to changes in the climate.

One Tam priority projects continue to be founded on good science, robust community
participatory design, and interdisciplinary teams of staff and consultants. All projects seek to
have broad-reaching benefits for the care and enjoyment of Mt. Tam's natural and cultural
resources. Key ongoing District projects include Forest Restoration Projects, and the Azalea Hill
Trail Restoration Project. As a result of One Tam’s ongoing collaboration around forest health a
grant from Cal Fire’s Forest Health Program was awarded in the amount of $3.5 million to
support ongoing forest restoration and fuel reduction work.

Landscape scale science and management continues to be a focus of One Tam’s cross
jurisdictional collaboration in the 2022/23 Work Plan. Updating the Measuring the Health of a
Mountain: A Report on Mount Tamalpais' Natural Resources continues to be a priority and will
provide an assessment tool for understanding the current state of the mountain's ecosystems
and iconic species. The Mt. Tam Early Detection and Rapid Response (EDRR) Program will
continue to augment agency efforts to detect and eliminate small patches of high-priority
weeds before they develop into large, firmly established nuisance populations. Rare species
protection and enhancement efforts across the mountain will continue to receive One Tam
support in 2022-23, particularly those that improve habitat for or supplement the populations
of rare species including serpentine endemic plants, and fire-dependent maritime chaparral
shrubs.

In addition to the programs and projects noted above, the One Tam Annual Work Plan outlines
a robust strategy for continuing collaborative stewardship in a focused manner and is attached
for Board review and consideration. Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors review
and refer to a future regularly scheduled Board of Directors meeting approval of the One Tam
Bi-Annual Work Plan, and authorize the General Manager to sigh Amendment No. 7 to the
Cooperative Agreement to facilitate grant funding collaboration and funding transfers for the
recently awarded Cal Fire Forest Health grant.

FISCAL IMPACT
No anticipated fiscal impacts.

Page 3|4



item Number: 02
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

ATTACHMENT(S)
1. One Tam Work Plan

Page 4|4




Item Number: 02
Attachment: 01

ONE
TAM

Work Plan, 2022-2023

Since 2014, the One Tam partnership has affirmed a shared commitment to, and effectively increased capacity
for, the stewardship of Mt. Tamalpais. Through the development and implementation of our annual work plans,
the One Tam partners—the National Park Service (NPS), California State Parks, Marin Water (formerly Marin
Municipal Water District), Marin County Parks (MCP), and the Golden Gate National Parks Conservancy (Parks
Conservancy)—have worked together to identify and pursue goals related to the collective stewardship of the
mountain. This year, the work plan will move from an annual to a biannual format, which reflects the strong
foundation upon which the partnership rests and our proven ability to flexibly meet our collective challenges
and goals.

Each One Tam partner was tested through the COVID-19 pandemic, which upended nearly every aspect of our
shared work. At the same time, the crisis has demonstrated our added agility brought about by our partnership.
Through these trials, the partnership has demonstrated flexibility and creative problem solving that will continue
beyond the pandemic. In the spring of 2020, we quickly pivoted to providing high school programs entirely
online and conducted meetings and community surveys related to the Bothin Marsh sea level rise adaptation
project online as well. We are now conducting community engagement, education, and community science
programs using both in-person and online methods to reach more participants and stakeholders, while still
maintaining a depth and breadth of content key to the partnership. While the increase in visitor use of our
public lands due to the pandemic presented challenges, it also presents opportunities to reach and welcome
new audiences, and stewards, to Mt. Tam.

The pandemic and the growing impacts of a changing climate both highlight the fact that our challenges do not
recognize jurisdictional borders. Recent fire seasons (including the Point Reyes fire in 2020), the historic drought,
and sea level rise, has made climate resilience an even more urgent and pressing priority for our landscape.
Forest health and drought resilience will be partnership priorities in this work plan.

Budget reductions at the Parks Conservancy (due largely to reduced visitor income in 2020) coupled with an
updated strategic plan has resulted in a leaner, more focused Parks Conservancy. As we focus our streamlined
resources on these priorities, the partnership will also continue to expand parks as vehicles of social justice,
ensuring that Mt. Tamalpais is accessible to those communities most impacted by climate change through
opportunities including increased programmatic and public engagement. Building on the shared efforts of our
partnership in 2021, we will continue to identify concrete steps that will make our work more open and
equitable to all.

The One Tam partnership is essential to meeting today’s unprecedented challenges, which we face as
opportunities to incubate new strategies for stewardship, activate long-lasting community support, and catalyze
positive change. Though uncertainties remain in the year ahead, this 2022-23 work plan provides a framework



to leverage the shared resources and maintain the trajectory of our partnership strength, sustainability, and care
for Mt. Tam as we push forward on the benchmarks laid out in the five-year One Tam strategy. Each section of
the 2022-3 work plan represents the collective efforts of all One Tam partners and speaks to how our work has
been and will adapt to meet the changing conditions in these uncertain and unprecedented times.

The Six Primary Organizational Areas of One Tam's Work

This work plan is structured around the six organizational areas of One Tam’s 2019-2023 Strategic Plan,
illustrated below. As One Tam’s communications and community engagement activities and planning are closely
related, and a goal for 2022-23 is to ensure that our science communication and community engagement work
further inform each other, we are reflecting this relationship more clearly in the figure below.

PARTNERSHIP LANDSCAPE-SCALE

& COLLECTIVE SCIENCE &
IMPACT MANAGEMENT

PHILANTHROPY ONE
& INVESTMENT Tﬂ I l PROJECTS

COMMUNICATIONS
& COMMUNITY PROGRAMS
ENGAGEMENT



Programs

Overview

One Tam programs seek to connect the work of the partnership to local communities, and to connect
communities to the mountain and to each other. Our community science programs strive to spark curiosity and
engage a diverse cross-section of the local community as we collect the data needed to inform our conservation
work. As an agency collective, we also work to provide relevant, fun, and informative educational programming,
including nature walks, specialized trainings, and programs specifically geared to youth including internships.
Our engagement team brings programming from our parks out to the communities that surround us and greets
both seasoned and first-time users at a variety of trailheads and local gathering places adjacent to our public
lands.

In the coming years, we will integrate climate resilience as a common theme into our collective programming in
the quest to understand how to improve the resilience of our parks as ecosystems shift in response to changes
in the climate.

Community Science

The Marin Wildlife Picture Index Project will undergo significant change as we actualize the promise of the data
platform Wildlife Insights (https://www.wildlifeinsights.org/home), transitioning from an initial six-year period
of data acquisition to data processing, exploration and public programming. Developed by an international
consortium of conservation organizations and technology companies, Wildlife Insights stores and partially
processes our wildlife images, provides public access, produces summary statistics, and places our work within a
global context. During the fall of 2021, we will be developing new staff and volunteer protocols for using the
platform and developing new opportunities for educators, researchers, and the general public to engage with
this deep reservoir of wildlife information. We will complete a new round of wildlife trend analysis and integrate
it into the update of Mt. Tamalpais Health Assessment in late 2022. Finally, we will revisit the goals of the study
and resize its various components (number of cameras, seasonality, span and scale of staff and volunteer roles)

to allow for more timely analysis and reporting.

BioBlitz events engage the public in resource-sensitive exploration of the diversity and distribution of the plants
and animals around us. We will continue to host BioBlitz events that incorporate web-based. instruction and the
use of the iNaturalist app to engage new and returning volunteers in the detection and documentation of
species on Mt. Tam and closer to home. We will also continue to host bioblitz events that focus on poorly
documented groups of species (fungi, pollinators, and amphibians and reptiles). Special attention will be given
to the popular mycoblitz series in the winter. We will collaborate with outreach and community engagement
teams to participate in the international City Nature Challenge and statewide California Biodiversity Day.
Additionally, we will develop web-based training modules to build community capacity for ecological and
taxonomic expertise and iNaturalist proficiency in youth and adults. Lastly, the Community Science team will
facilitate several workshops for land managers and researchers that are specifically designed to integrate these
community-supported datasets into our understanding of the health of Mt. Tam.

Marin Milkweed Monitors is a community science initiative to understand the extent and condition of monarch
breeding habitat in public lands managed by One Tam partners. Information from this project will be
incorporated into selection of sites for habitat enhancement. Breeding habitat enhancement work will also
incorporate information from a milkweed population genetics study conducted by Dr. Sarah Swope of Mills



College to determine if the monarchs are sensitive to any differences between nursery-sourced milkweed and
local wild milkweed. This work will produce specific scientific outcomes through a participatory process for a
diverse group of stakeholders. To broaden participation in community science and extend educational
opportunities, a more casual milkweed and monarch watch program using the iNaturalist platform will also be
implemented. Marin Milkweed Monitors will continue in 2022-2023 with continued recruitment and training of
monitors during peak milkweed phenology in June, July, and August.

Youth and Education

Youth & Education programs are committed to promoting equity and inclusion in our public lands while
providing educational and engaging experiences for our local youth. To do this, we foster future youth leaders
by focusing on personal growth, civic engagement, conservation, career planning, and leadership development.
We will continue to develop culturally relevant programming to engage the most underserved communities of
students throughout Marin County and will continue to foster our relationship with key community partners
including the MLK Academy in Marin City and the Canal Alliance in San Rafael through year-round youth
programming for Middle School and High School youth, and may inform management pians for selected sites.

Linking Individuals to their Natural Community (LINC-Tam) is more than an outdoor adventure; for a diverse
audience of local youth, it is a transformative summer program filled with iearning and service. Participants in
the six-week LINC program connect with their local public lands, build independence and self-awareness through
hands on service projects in the parks, develop trust and partnership skills during camping trips, learn about
ecology and stewardship techniques, and acquire relevant job skills. Through this combination of challenges and
new experiences, LINC graduates are empowered to pursue the next level of leadership and career development
opportunities. In 2022-3, we will return to in-person programming and increase participation to pre-pandemic
levels. In addition, we will collaborate with the Marin County Office of Education, College of Marin and other
partners to explore partnership opportunities.

Rising Environmental Youth Leaders (REYL) is an eight-month high school environmental leadership program
connecting young people from underserved communities to their local parks and open space during the school
year. Young adults learn the skills necessary to become strong environmental advocates and community leaders
through service learning, environmental education, and outdoor trips. During this program, students will receive
support and training to design and implement a Community Action Project to create climate change awareness
in their local communities.

This youth leadership program is based in Marin County and connects all four agency partners. Using the
mountain as a diverse and expansive classroom, young stewards restore high-priority native habitat, learn about
the importance of public lands, develop valuable leadership skills, and create lasting connections to these special
places. Projects and activities vary by month and can include habitat restoration, trail work and community
science with a focus on fire ecclogy, sea level rise and biodiversity education.

The program includes a two-day overnight leadership training where the youth engage in team building &
leadership skills, and a four-day camping trip to a national park.

Canal Alliance Middle School Program: One Tam staff will team up with Canal Alliance and the University Prep
Program, to organize and facilitate several outdoor outings using the mountain as a diverse and expansive
classroom to teach young stewards restoration practices, science, and leadership skills, and to create meaningful
outdoor experiences that will last a lifetime.



NPS youth programs support: When capacity provides, One Tam will continue to work with the National Park
Service by providing staff support for field trips and occasional education programs in partnership with local
school districts and the public.

Marin Water youth programs support: One Tam will continue to partner with the Marin Water by providing
limited staff support for field trips and occasional education programs, watershed fieldtrips and the Trout in

the Classroom program.

Stewardship

We continue to provide the public with service opportunities on NPS, State Parks, MCP, and Marin Water iands.
Stewardship projects emphasize actions that increase resilience in the face of climate change, including riparian,
wetland, and floodplain restoration as well as work that increases forest health. Additional effort will also be
made to increase connectivity and partner opportunities with the One Tam Community Science and Youth

teams.



Projects

Overview

One Tam priority projects continue to be founded on good science, robust community participatory design, and
interdisciplinary teams of staff and consultants. All projects seek to have broad-reaching benefits for the care
and enjoyment of Mt. Tam's natural and cultural resources.

The previous year heralded many exciting milestones for One Tam'’s priority projects. Construction continued on
the Redwood Creek Trail. The Forest Resiliency Working Group advanced a multi-agency strategy, with
completion of the Marin Countywide Vegetation Map and Database providing foundation data for continued
investigation and decision making. The State Wildlife Conservation Board and National Park Service awarded
grants to advance habitat improvements for imperiled monarch butterflies. The California Department of
Forestry and Fire Protection awarded a grant to fund Phase | of One Tam’s Mt. Tamalpais Forest Health
Initiative.

Climate Adaptation Planning

Climate adaptation planning will continue to grow as a focus of One Tam projects, particularly with planning at
Stinson Beach kicking off in this 2022-23 work plan.

Legacy Projects

One Tam will continue to coordinate and advance its two Legacy Project areas. These areas represent a
generation-long commitment to restoration and enhancement, with multiple projects comprising a larger vision.

e Dipsea Trail Corridor
e Redwood Creek

Adopted One Tam Projects

The table on the following page represents the One Tam projects currently adopted and included in the 2022-23
work plan, as well as where project support overlaps with other One Tam work areas. One focus of our support
is ensuring high quality and thoughtful communication and community design when appropriate. As we
continue to adjust to COVID-19 safety measures, we are both refining the use of new engagement tools and
welcoming the return of in-person engagement when possible.



One Tam

2022/23 PRIORITY PROJECTS

AGENCY

STATUS

2022/23 IMPLEMENTATION: Portion of Project Constructed in 2022/23*

COMMUNICATION

ENGAGEMENT

DEVELOPMENT

Marin

Construction Start

Azalea Hill Trail Restoration iaireei 197 vivi Vv
Deer Park Fire Road Rehabilitation CDPR CORHE o5 At
allows
1 Phase 1 continues
k | Reali CDPR
Redwood Creek Trail Realignment inte J653
HIGH PRIORITY: Staff & Funding Focus
Bothin Marsh Adaptation MCP Refining Alternatives | v/ | v/ | v
- Marin
Forest Health & Resiliency Whtir In Process v v
Shovel ready spring
Roy’s Redwoods Restoration & Access MCP 2022 pending viv Vv
funding
; : : NPS & Planning Initiated
Stinson Beach SLR Adaptation Planning NIEE S0 VI iviiviiv
MID PRIORITY: Primarily Agency Led & Funded; Pursue Opportunistic Funding Only
. . . Marin Construction Start
Azalea Hill Trail Restoration Water 2020 v Vv
Bolinas Wye Restoration MCP shayel ready Bending vV iV iviv
funding
RC Trail Realignment C?\JF;F;& Future Phases TBD v
. . h CDPR
Dias Ridge Extension &NPS Future Phases TBD
Redwood Creek Floodplain CDPR gl v
process
Dipsea Bridge Construction NPS Concept Design vV
BACK BURNER: Revisit 2022
; ; NPS &
Dipsea Trail s v v
Potrero Meadow Restoration NERIIn
Water
RC Juvenile Coho Habitat Creation NPS Phase Il 2021 viviVv
West Peak Restoration Feasibility Study MMWD v




Landscape-Scale Science and Management

Overview

Measuring the Health of a Mountain: A Report on Mount Tamalpais' Natural Resources is an assessment tool for
the mountain's ecosystems and iconic species that has become a cornerstone of One Tam's work. Originally
developed in 2016, it presents consensus findings on the status and trends of 27 biological indicators that
include both individual species and entire communities. The report also identifies threats to Mt. Tam’s health,
concrete actions to mitigate these threats, and areas where more information is needed.

An update of the original report will be released in 2022-2023, under a simplified name: Peak Health. The
update will summarize new findings related to the 27 biological indicators and provide an update on their
overall condition and determine whether it is trending in a positive or negative direction. Where we have filled
knowledge gaps, we will add new chapters: bats, bees, and monarchs will be included for the first time. We will
also strengthen content related to climate change and climate vulnerability of specific indicators. Finally, the
completion of the Marin County-wide Vegetation Map opens to door to a more robust and repeatable approach
to assessing the health of our plant communities.

Peak Health is as much a process as a report. Each chapter update includes at least one workshop that draws in
expertise from all One Tam partners as well as from regional scientists and community experts. We also
encourage broad community engagement with the content through the development of web-based content,
webinars, and gatherings. The summary of the update findings will be a primary focus of the next One Tam
symposium.

During 2022-23 One Tam partners will continue to collect and synthesize data related to the health of Mt.
Tamalpais. Some efforts will be modified to take advantage of new technologies that allow for faster analysis
and more real-time assessments of conditions and trends.

Vegetation Management

The Mt. Tam Early Detection and Rapid Response (EDRR) Program augments agency efforts to detect and
eliminate small patches of high-priority weeds before they develop into large, firmly established nuisance
populations. The EDRR team has completed two three-year cycles of surveys, covering over 425 miles of roads,
trails, and drainages in each cycle. The second cycle was completed in less time than the first, demonstraﬁng the
benefit of skill building and continual refinement of protocols. Results suggest that agency use of best
management practices designed to minimize spread remains a priority. During 2022-2023, we will integrate
findings from this work into the Peak Health Report and begin a third cycle of surveys.

Rare species protection and enhancement efforts across the mountain will continue to receive One Tam
support in 2022-23, particularly those that improve habitat for or supplement the populations of rare species
including serpentine endemic plants, and fire-dependent maritime chaparral shrubs.

Inventory and Monitoring Programs

Bat Inventory: Long-term monitoring of Marin County's bats continues in partnership with the U.S. Geological
Survey. One Tam is using a combination of acoustic monitoring tracking and roost identification techniques that
align that with standards from the North American Bat Monitoring Program. Mist netting and the use of radio
transmitters for roost identification have been suspended due to the potential risk of a human-to-bat transfer of



COVID-19.

One Tam's Pollinator Inventory and Monitoring Program will continue into 2022-23. In collaboration with Dr.
Gretchen LeBuhn and her lab at San Francisco State University, One Tam is continuing our efforts to monitor and
understand more about Mt. Tamalpais’ wild bees. We will continue to engage new and returning volunteers
through Tamalpais Bee Lab events where they gain scientific collections management and insect identification
skills. We have completed high resolution macro photography of identified bee specimens collected on Marin
Water and California State Parks lands that can be used to create a scientific reference collection, outreach and
fundraising materials, retail items, and other media products. The collection, identification, and photography
work will continue on National Park Service land during 2022-23. We will also develop interpretive materials that
can be used by retail, outreach, and community engagement teams.

Freshwater Spring Monitoring remains in development. A vegetation classification study of spring-fed micro-
habitats as well as an isotope analysis have been postponed until the 2023 field season.

The Marin County-wide Vegetation Mapping and Landscape Database Project is near completion. Our 2022-23
efforts will focus on finalizing remaining datasets, including countywide impervious surfaces mapping,
completing a formal accuracy assessment of the vegetation map, and compilation of the final report. Future
work includes partnering with Marin County Department of Information Services and Technology Department to
improve access to the datasets produced by the project, working with the One Tam communications teams to
celebrate project outputs, and activating these new datasets as a tool for Peak Health as well as Forest Health
and Resiliency work.

Forest Health and Resiliency

The Regional Forest Health Strategy for the public lands of Marin County is currently in process, with the initial
finalized strategy document on track to be completed by the end of March 2022. Currently, the Forest Health
Strategy project team of partners and consultants are working to analyze datasets developed as part of the
Countywide Fine Scale Vegetation Map and Landscape Database project to conduct a comprehensive
assessment of forest health for five key forest types. This assessment work will highlight areas that could benefit
from future forest health and resiliency treatments and aid in targeting future project fundraising opportunities.
Other important forest health work in 2022-23:

Completion of a Traditional Tribal Knowledge memo developed in partnership with the Federated Indians of
Graton Rancheria, that will highlight ways that One Tam partners can learn from ingenious practices and values
as well as opportunities to partner with tribes, and to elevate traditional tribal knowledge as part of our forest
health and resiliency work and communications.

Development of an Existing Compliance Technical Memorandum that will summarize existing One Tam partner
compliance documents and identify potential pathways for future work, including potential cross-jurisdictional
forest health and resiliency treatments.

Further work on communications and community outreach to local stakeholders to both increase the impact of
our forest health strategic planning efforts and ensure alignment with county and statewide priorities and
funding opportunities.



Communications & Community Engagement

Overview

Improving collaborative and impactful communications and engagement will continue to be a focus of One Tam
partners in 2022-23. While the continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic created unprecedented messaging
complications for partners, we have continued to rely on and grow the following building blocks that support
our communications and community engagement efforts.

Building Blocks

The “Tam Van”, which serves as One Tam’s mobile visitor center, welcomes and invites people from all
backgrounds to enjoy and explore Mt. Tam. The Tam Van has a flexible suite of materials and programming
content that adapts depending on the site and audience interests, and that complements One Tam partners’
programs and projects. In addition to providing maps and trail information, in the years ahead, the Tam Van will
offer a range of naturalist-themed topics that will include: the Wildlife of Mt. Tam; the Geologic Origins of Mt.
Tam; the Rare Frogs of Carson Falls; and How to Become a Community Scientist.

The Tam Van also shares out priority information about One Tam partner programs and projects that will
include: Climate Change Resilience & Addressing Sea Level Rise at Bothin Marsh; Living with in a Drought on
Marin Water Lands; Protecting Redwood Forest Understory Health at Roy’s Redwoods; Managing Mt. Tam’s
landscape for Fire and Fuel reduction; and highlighting volunteer programs and upcoming special events. In
2022-23, One Tam will expand the naturalist content offered from the Tam Van, with short walks and talks
based from the Tam Van.

Over the past 18 months, the Tam Van’s outings were limited due to COVID-19 restrictions. In the years ahead,
we plan to bring the Tam Van back into the community, with appearances at community events, career fairs,
and celebrations in the Bay Area that may include Biketoberfest, Dia de los Muertos at Pickleweed Park, the
Fairfax Festival, Wildcare Family Nature Day, REl Camping Happy Hour, Summerfest, and the College of Marin
Career Fair.

Park Greeter Program: In 2020, following shelter-in-place orders, One Tam piloted a “park greeter” volunteer
program to help staff the Tam Van and welcome visitors back to the parks. For 2022-23, we plan to expand this
program to support the goals and scope of the Tam Van, thereby providing more assistance to land managers
with public outreach and education.

Newsletter storytelling is a reliable way to message digitally to the people who support our work. It is the
primary way we keep in touch with One Tam members and interested community members. In order to grow
open rate and improve our reader engagement, we have begun weaving in regular community science features,
profiles, virtual resources and topical introductions. We have also sent special members’ announcements for
virtual programs, which are among our best-performing emails since 2014. We continue to think of ways that
the e-news can add value for readers, with a goal of increasing open rates and subscriber retention. We have
seen an audience growth of about 1200 new subscribers in the last year (between 9/20-9/21), which we think is
quite successful considering there have been fewer ways to participate in programs during that time period than
in the past. New format flexibility will allow us to pivot more easily, share partner priorities as appropriate,
and accommodate new ways to engage readers.

The onetam.org website saw its largest traffic spike ever in May of 2020 as our partner communications

10



representatives and the Conservancy's GIS Specialist teamed to create a map that provided closure information
related to the COVID-19 pandemic, shattering our previous website traffic records. Visitor utility will become
central as we connect people to our work through the website, and we will work to ensure that more of the
content on the site connects readers to opportunities for membership and a lasting relationship One Tam.

Social media growth remains a priority to strengthen our shared tools, particularly Instagram. We are also
seeing success in highlighting photography from the community, creating a positive feedback loop with a
subset of Mt. Tam lovers. In alignment with the Conservancy's Communications Team, we will continue to
prioritize growth on this platform while utilizing Twitter and Facebook for event posting and other utility needs.

Agency and community stakeholder group boards and subcommittees will continue to be engaged as
appropriate to share project and program information, achievements, etc. Agency board and public meetings
will also continue to serve as the forum for receiving CEQA/NEPA-based public comments.

Connectivity led to content in several instances in 2020 as communications teams worked in unison to promote our
park closure map, City Nature Challenge, International Migratory Bird Day and other messages. This ability to
share storytelling skills and unify messaging will allow us to greatly amplify priority messages going forward.

2022-23 Priorities

Speaking to our accomplishments for those who aren't yet familiar with our work is key to the long-term
strength of One Tam. We've seen widespread interest in community science, bat research, youth programs and
specific projects. As we build out a new MWPIP research database, map utilities and break ground on feature
projects we must explain how that work builds upon the growing legacy of our young partnership and present
those stories in a way that can be consumed by anyone who might be interested in our programs or
membership.

Supporting Diversity Outdoors: The communications team will support the need for a stewardship approach in
our collective One Tam effort that creates an equitable and inclusive environment by engaging with
representatives at the One Tam-wide and agency levels to ensure our messaging mirrors best practices for
making our workplaces and public lands welcoming to people of all backgrounds.

Clarifying public understanding will be a focus in the years ahead. In the early days of our partnership, we
prioritized building the One Tam brand, which was challenging to balance with acknowledging the individual
contributions of our partner agencies. In order to improve community understanding of our partners, access,
and stewardship, we will increase efforts to explain how each agency enhances our collective value.

Science communication: With an emphasis on stories and information coming out of the Peak Health effort, we
will use existing channels and test new tools to help share out what we are learning through our science work, in
service of improving the health of the mountain and connecting community members to this work. We will work
to connect our science communication and community engagement work so that they inform each other;
similarly, we will seek to connect with partner interpretation staff on this work. The 2022 One Tam Symposium
will provide a platform for sharing the results of our work with broad audiences.

Partnership and Collective Impact
Overview

Despite the continuing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, One Tam continues to build on our foundational

11



strengths to sustain and maximize the effectiveness of our partnership. 2022-23 activities will build on the
unique talents and resources of the partners to prioritize efforts around climate change and environmental
justice. Our initiatives, focused on sea level rise, fire, and drought resilience, will be best effectuated by
strengthening the partnership’s operations and staff support, increasing efficiencies and information exchange,
sharing our work and best practices more broadly, and continuing to build key relationships with other
organizations. Regularly coordinating and sharing information across the Executive, Advisory, and Steering,
program, project and funding committees ensures that our partnership efficiently and effectively strives toward
the common protection, monitoring, and stewardship of our park, natural, and cultural resources and
consistently adapts those efforts when necessary.

In 2021 One Tam led and facilitated the work of the California Landscape Stewardship Network (CLSN}, as we
have done since its inception in 2017. One of the culminations of this leadership was an extensive online
Stewardship.2021 Spring Forum in April-May of 2021 which in part highlighted some of One Tam’s systems
change successes, collaborative leadership program development, and science-based work. It also shared ideas
among a range of partners, practitioners, and state leaders regarding the future of landscape stewardship as a
practice. While One Tam will no longer lead and facilitate the CLSN as of 2022, One Tam will remain an active
member.

Ongoing Efforts

The Partnership Impact Model™ will continue to be used as a tool to monitor the health and progress of the
One Tam partnership and its larger relationship network. We will continue working with California State
University, Sacramento to develop a long-term partnership assessment strategy based upon this model. The
foundations of the Partnership Impact Model are also being integrated into the development of a Collaborative
Leadership Curriculum. This work is overseen by the California Landscape Stewardship Network in partnership
with a number of state and national organizations. We anticipate the development of the initial pilot program
in 2022.

The Park Academy and Training Portal supports cross-partnership engagement and professional development
through shared training opportunities by offering virtual and in-person trainings through Park Academy. Topic
areas include diversity, equity, and inclusion, safety, technology, volunteer management, community
programming, and job specific trainings to increase efficiencies, peer exchange, and coordination. In 2022-23,
we will increase the utilization of the Training Portal throughout the partnership, serving as the central hub for
in-person, virtual, and on-demand learning opportunities.

Cultural Resources: In 2022-23 our partnership will identify appropriate cultural staff and tribal liaisons
from partners to convene a Cultural Resources Working Group. Categorize concerns and needs across partners
to determine methods for providing support to cultural resource projects and programs.

Career development opportunities: In 2022-23 our efforts will redouble to create career development
opportunities for youth, interns, and seasonal staff through strengthening One Tam's workforce development
program with agency partners.

Philanthropy and Investment

Overview

One Tam will secure agency and community support to meet the programmatic and infrastructure needs

12



outlined in this work plan. Fundraising is ongoing for projects depending on need and opportunity. Some of our
main and growing tools for philanthropy are detailed below.

See the FY22-23 financial statement below for philanthropy and investment goals. This financial statement is
updated quarterly and can be found at onetam.org/facts-figures. Project and capital fundraising activity is
described in the projects chart on page 7 of this work plan.,

One Tam Ambassadors are passionate community members who volunteer their time to spread the word about
One Tam's work. Ambassadors represent One Tam at public events and community and business forums, and
they assist with membership outreach and event planning. The Ambassador group will meet quarterly with
additional meetings and activities for subcommittee members. There will also be a focus on One Tam -
Ambassador recruitment to expand the group from the current 21 to 25 participants.

Membership programs such as guided hikes, rides, and behind-the-scenes tours offer unique opportunities to
individuals who support One Tam with their annual membership contributions. Though In-person events were
cancelled in 2020 due to COVID-19 restrictions, we adapted the One Tam member webinars to an online format.
In 2020, these member webinars were well recelved, and in fact, drew more attendees than our typical in-
person events. In 2022-23, we will continue working with Ambassadors, agency partners, and community
members to identify venues and activities to help connect members more deeply to our work with both in-
person and virtual programs. We will design and launch a Corporate Giving strategy to strengthen the existing
One Tam Business Club. We will also focus on upgrading members to our major donor program known as the
One Tam Circle, and developing a signature event for this group.

13



TAMALPAIS LANDS COLLABORATIVE

FY2022-23 Parks Conservancy Proposed Budget

October 1, 2021 thru September 30, 2023
PROJECTS/PROGRAMS BREAKDOWN

FY2022-23 FY2022-23
INCOME Projects Programs
Individual Gifts 44,470 739,306
Events - 50,000
Corporate Giving 35,714 100,000
Foundation Grants® 706,623 1,585,189
Government Grants' 4,450,594 273,000
Partnership Agreementsl 608,934 497,550
Parks Conservancy Contributions - -
[TOTAL INCOME 5,846,335 3,245,045
EXPENSES
Programs
Community Science - 921,669
Youth and Education - 317,558
- 1,239,227
Priority Projects
Redwood Creek Trail Re-alignment Implementation 15,000 -
Bothin Marsh Adaptation 420,000 -
Forest Heath & Resiliency {Implementation) 1,700,000 -
Roy's Redwoods Restoration & Access 541,857 -
Stinson Beach SLR Adaptation Planning 71,095 -
Bolinas Wye Restoration 47,231 -
Redwood Creek Floodplain 430,594 -
Dipsea Bridge 53,878 -
3,279,655 -
Landscape Scale Science & Management

Vegetation Management = 798,459
Inventory & Monitoring 365,660 -
Forest Health & Resiliency (Planning) 346,778 2
} 712,438 798,459

Communications & Community Engagement
Building Blocks - 435,111
Partnersnip Impact and CLSN 405,000 -
Park Academy & Training Portal - 99,217
405,000 534,328
fTOTAL EXPENSES 4,397,093 2,572,014
|NET OPERATING SURPLUS 1,449,242 673,031

YIncludes reimbursable grants awarded in advance of expenditures.
Includes anly cash in hand.

14

REVISED 2021.11.09



MARI N Item Number: 03
WATER Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

Meeting: Watershed
Committee/Board of Directors
(Watershed)

7

Review and Refer for Board Approval

TO: Watershed Committee/Board of Directors (Watershed) ,

FROM: Shaun Horne, Watershed Resources Manager "":/.:,_ '

THROUGH: Ben Horenstein, General Manager %%

DIVISION NAME: Watershed

ITEM: Award of Contract No. 1967 for Forestry Services to Bay Area Tree Specialists

RECOMMENDATION

Review and refer to a future regular Meeting of the Board of Directors with the District
Watershed Committee recommendation to approve a resolution to award Contract No. 1967 to
Bay Area Tree Specialists.

SUMMARY

On October 31%, 2021, the District released a notice inviting bidders to submit proposals for a
two-year forestry services contract. The District received three (3) bids on November 18™ and
Bay Area Tree Specialists was identified as the lowest qualified bidder. Staff is recommending
that the Watershed Committee review and refer to a regularly scheduled Board of Directors
Meeting approval of a Resolution awarding Contract No. 1967 to Bay Area Tree Specialists in
the amount of $1,856,789 for a two-year Forestry contract with a District option to extend
services in one year increments for up to an additional two-years. Staff is also requesting that
the Board authorize the General Manager to execute any and all future amendments to this
contract, which he deems necessary, so long as they do not exceed 10% in total of the contract
amount.

DISCUSSION
In October of 2019, the District adopted the Biodiversity, Fire, and Fuels Integrated Plan (BFFIP)

which describes the actions the District will implement to reduce wildfire hazards and to
maintain and enhance ecosystem function. Under the BFFIP there are 27 management actions
that are being implemented to fulfill the goals and approach described in the plan. Vegetation
management under the BFFIP aims to reduce fuel loads, maintain fuelbreak infrastructure,
preserve defensible space, and reduce invasive weed species. Vegetation management is
conducted continuously throughout the year with the chief goal of reducing fuel loads and
maintaining the watershed’s biological diversity. This contract will support the scaling up of
vegetation management work and forest restoration on the Mt. Tamalpais watershed, which is

Page 1|2




Item Number: 03
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

necessary to address fuel load issues and ensure maintenance of existing fuelbreak
infrastructure.

In collaboration with One Tam, the District was awarded a grant from Cal Fire’s Forest Health
Program in the amount of $3,545,000 of which $3,166,000 will support the District’s
implementation of forest restoration, fuel reduction, fuelbreak maintenance, and invasive
management work on the watershed over the next 3-4 years. Contract No. 1967 will implement
this critical wildfire fuel reduction work and improve the health of the watershed through the
management of invasive species and reduction of hazardous fuels. One Tam/GGNPC will
support the District’s work through community education, outreach, and capacity building.

The District has used similar contractors over the past five years to implement Resilient Forest
Pilot Projects, which involved treating fuel load issues in forests impacted by sudden oak death.
Additionally, the equipment capabilities of the forestry services contractor will support the
maintenance of critical fuelbreaks and forestry work in wide area fuelbreaks. In accordance
with Section 1000, Paragraph 1.5 of the contract “The district has the option to extend this
contract in one (1) year increments for an additional two years”. If the contractor is meeting the
District’s expectations, then the District may annually exercise the option to extend the
contract to continue work in subsequent years for a total contract term of up to four-years.

Proposal Selection Process

On October 31, 2021, the District released a notice inviting bidders to submit proposals for a
two-year forestry contract. The notice was published in the local paper and posted on the
District’s external bid posting website to inform contractors of the opportunity. Sealed bids
were received by the district on November 18" and the lowest qualified bidder was identified.

FISCAL IMPACT
The total project costs is $1,856,789 for a two year period. For FY 22/23 there is currently

$380,000 budgeted in Capital ALEO7 ‘Green Infrastructure’ and $600,000 in CalFIRE grant for
forestry restoration, fuel load reduction, and fuelbreak maintenance.

ATTACHMENT(S)
None

Page 2[2




MAR'N Item Number: 04
WATER Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

Meeting: Watershed
Committee/Board of Directors
(Watershed)

?

Review and Refer for Board Approval

TO: Watershed Committee

7oy
L 2

FROM: Shaun Horne, Watershed Resources Manager ij"’

THROUGH: Ben Horenstein, General Manager% ;Z

DIVISION NAME: Watershed

ITEM: California Conservation Corps Forestry, Fuels and Trails Contract

RECOMMENDATION

Review and refer to a future regular Bi-Monthly Meeting of the Board of Directors with the
District Watershed Committee recommendation to approve a FY 2021/2022 California
Conservation Corps Contract

SUMMARY

On March 2, 2017, the District entered into a Sponsor Agreement (CCC-96) with the California
Conservation Corps, which determined that there were mutual advantages and a public benefit
to having CCC corps members complete agreed upon land management activities on the
District’s watershed lands. On an annual basis, the District enters into subsequent
agreements/amendments to support critical vegetation, fuels, forestry and trails work. Staff is
recommending that the Watershed Committee review and refer to a regularly scheduled Board
of Directors Meeting approval of the FY 2021/2022 California Conservation Corps Contract in
the amount of $210,000.

DISCUSSION
In October of 2019, the District adopted the Biodiversity, Fire, and Fuels Integrated Plan (BFFIP)

which describes the actions the District will implement to reduce wildfire hazards and to
maintain and enhance ecosystem function. Under the BFFIP there are 27 management actions
that are being implemented to fulfill the goals and approaches described in the BFFIP.
Vegetation management under the BFFIP aims to reduce fuel loads, maintain fuelbreak
infrastructure, preserve defensible space, and reduce invasive weed species. Vegetation
management is conducted continuously throughout the year with the chief goal of reducing
fuel loads and maintaining the watershed’s biological diversity. This contract will support the
scaling up of vegetation management work and forest restoration on the Mt. Tamalpais
watershed, which is necessary to address fuel load issues and ensure maintenance of existing
fuelbreak infrastructure.

Page 1|2




Item Number: 04
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

The CCC spike team is based out of Ukiah, California, and reports to sponsor work sites for an
eight-day rotation or “spike”. The CCC crew is composed of 10-13 corps members who work in
10-hour shifts. Corps members are working on the Mt. Tamalpais watershed lands to carry out
fuel reduction, forest restoration, fuelbreak maintenance and trails work. Crews work under the
direction and supervision of Watershed Maintenance staff as well as a CCC on-site supervisor.
Over the past two years CCC crews have been camping at the Sky Oaks Ranger station in the old
Girl Scout Camp. This arrangement maximizes the crew’s time conducting work by reducing
commute times and helps keep the overall contract costs lower. The Contract for FY 2021/2022

will fund 7 CCC spikes on the watershed.

Staff is recommending that the Watershed Committee review and refer to a regularly
scheduled Board of Directors Meeting approval of the FY 2021/2022 California Conservation
Corps Contract in the amount of $210,000.

FISCAL IMPACT

The total contract costs is $210,000 and is budgeted in Capital ALEO7 ‘Green Infrastructure’ and
the CalFIRE grant for forestry restoration, fuel load reduction, and fuelbreak maintenance.

ATTACHMENT(S)
1. Proposed CCC Contract

Page 2|2




STATE OF CALIFORNIA
AGREEMENT ADDENDUM: CCC-864 (Rev. 11/01/2019} page 1 of 3

CCC Agreement #

Index#

Item Number: 04

Attachment: 01
CCC Project Number

1715

CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS

R-21-1715-8892

[CCC Contract Ufficer Assigns)

(Center Index Code is Four digits)

(C3 Assigns})

L

A] The California Conservation Corps (CCC), agrees to provide crew labor for the project titled:

MMWD Trail Work and Fuel Reduction FY 21/22

See CCC-58: Project Evaluation Form for details.

B] The term of this agreement shall be:
Agreement Start Date: December 6, 2021
Agreement Expiration Date: June 30, 2022

I:l Check here if multi-year

C] Sponsor agrees to reimburse the Labor Hours Rate/Hr Totals
CCC for estimated costs in accordance CM Regular Time:| 7280.00 | $ 26.00| § 189,280.00
with the Fiscal Summary. (Fiscal Year CM Overtime: 0.00 $ -8 N
displays are shown on page 2 and page 3.) Performance Based Labor:| $ .
Unspecified:| $ -
Staff Regular Time ;| $ -
Staff Overtime :| $ 12,698.00
EXPENSES
Equipment (greater than $5,000):| $ -
Tools (includes equipment less than $5,000):| § -
NOTE TO SPONSOR: Budget detail will Materials:| $ ”
not be provided on performance basad Vehicle Operations:| $ N
contracts. Consulting:| $ -
Other:| $ 8,022.00
D] The total amount payable by Sponsor to CCC under this agreement shall not exceed: $ 210,000.00

E] The CCC shall forward bfllin? for labor and/or operating

Monthty Quarterly

ex?enses with supporting documentation to the sponsor:

At end of contract

F] Sponsor agrees to pay CCC within 35 days from receipt of invoice.

Sponsor STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Organization: Marin Municipal Water District California Conservation Corps
Date: Date:
Signature: ‘|_Signature:
Print: SRy Print: Dawne Bortolazzo
Title: General Manager Title: Deputy Director, Administration
SPONSOR EMAIL ADDRESS CCC CENTER VERIFICATION
bhorenstein@marinwater.org Date: 11.23.2021
SPONSOR MAILING ADDRESS '
220 Nellen Ave
Corte Madera, CA 94925 Signature: VIV U/
Print: Catlty Barr
Title: Conservation Supervisor

SPONSOR BILLING ADDRESS:

X Check Here if Billing and Mailing Address are the same

FORWARD PAYMENTS TO:

California Conservation Corps
Attention: Accounting/Receivables
1719 24th Street
Sacramento, CA 95816




STATE OF CALIFORNIA
AGREEMENT ADDENDUM: CCC-96A {Rev. 11/01/2018) page 2613

CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS

First Labor Hours Rate/Hr Totals
Fiscal Year FROM: 12106121 CM Regular Time: 7280.00 3 26.00|8% 189,280.00
Display CM Overtime: 0.00 $ - 1% -
TO: 06/30/22 Performance Based Labor:| $ -
Unspeclfied:] $ -
Staff Regular Time ;| § -
Staff Overtime ;| $ 12,608.00
EXPENSES
Equipment (greater than $5,000): $ -
Tools {Includes equipment less than $5,000):] $ -
Materlals:] $ -
Vehicle Operations:] $ -
Consulting:| $ -
Qthar:| $ 8,022.00
I IrFlscaI Y w‘ 210 000.00
Second . ‘ Labor : Hours : Rate!Hr Totals
Fiscal Year ROM: CM Regular T!me. 0.00 3 -13 -
Display CM Qvertime: 0.00 b -1% -
TO: Performance Based Labor:| $ -
Unspecified:| $ -
Staff Regular Time :
Staff Overtime { $ -
EXPENSES
Equipment {greater than $5,000):| $ -
Tools (includes equipment lass than $5,000):} § -
Materials:| $ -
Vehicle QOperations:| § -
Consulting:| $ -
Other:y $ -
“ ] ' Second Flscal Year TOTAL:| $ -
Third Labor . Hours Rate/Hr Totals
Fiscal Year FROM: CM Regular Time:. 0.00 $ 26.00{ % -
N @
Display CM Overtime: 0.00 $ -1 % -
TO: Performance Based Labor:| § “
Unspecified:| $ -
Staff Regular Time ;| § -
Staff Overtime ;| $ -
EXPENSES
Equipment {greater than $5,000}%] $ -
Tools (includes equipment less than $5,000% | $ -
Materials:| $ -
Vehicle Operations:| $ -
Consulting: | $ -
Other:| $ -
Third Fiscal Yoar TOTAL:| §

The total amount payable by Sponsor fo CCC under this agreement shall not exceed:

Fourth Lahor Hours RatefHr Totals
Fiscal Year FROM: CM Regular Time: 0.00 $ 26800 % -
Display CM Qvertime: 0.00 $ -3 -
TO: Performance Based Labor:| § -
Unspecified:| $ -
Staff Regular Time ;| § -
Staff Qvertime 1| $ "

EXPENSES
Equipment {greater than $5,000):| § -
Tools (Includes eguipment less than $5,000):] $ -
Materials:| $ -
Vehicle Operations:| $ -
Consulting:| $ -
Other:| $ -
' Fourth Flscal YearTOTAL $

B e ]

210,000.00




k  California Natural Resources Agency
i CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS PROJECT EVALUATION
] FORM CCC 58
" R-21-1715-8892
MMWD Trail Work and Fuel Reduction FY 21/22

Project Data

Project Title: MMWD Trail Work and Fuel Reduction FY 21/22 Project Number: R-21-1715-8892

Center Information: 1715 - Ukiah Center

Contract Information: -

Project Description:

Ukiah crew will work on various trail construction or maintenance projects such as invasive species removal ie Douglas Fire as
directed by MMWD staff. Standing timber will have ladder fuels removed and be limbed, Eelled trees will be limbed and boles
will be left on the ground. Limbs will be piled for later burning.

The possibility of prescribed burns/ burn piles with CALFIRE and MMWD raay be condueted if all safety trainings and
requirements are met, Piles of Douglas fire made on previous spikes will be busned when there is a permissive burn day,
Budget costs include staff OT (Base salary covered by CCC), housing for crew, food costs,

7 spikes averaging 13 cms each rotation Winter- Spring/ early summer.

Sponsor Information

Agency Name: MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Agency Code: 65009

Mailing Address Mailing City Mailing State Mailing ZIP Cade
220 Nellen Ave. Corte Madera CA 94925
220 Nellon Ave Corte Madera CA 94925

Sponsor Contact Information:
Contact type Title First nama| Last nams | Phone number Emali address
Sponsor Represe General Manager Be Horansteln (415) 845-1480 bhorensteln@marinwalerorg
& Malitdhance SitipsfvisorlCs ; | eSandaiSanTanRwate:

Téehnical AdvIser

Estimate Information

Estimated Number of Hours: 7,280 Ystimated Start and End Dates: 12/6/21-6/30/22

Work Site Information:

Address City State| ZIP code | Geolocation latitude | Geolocation longitude
West Ridgecrest Blvd  |Stinson Beach |CA  [94970

Direction fo slte location Special
instructions

101 south towards the Bay Area, exlt 4458 towards Stinson Beach. Continue on CA 1 Paneramic
HWY to W. Rldgecrest Bivd

Page 1 of 4



California Natural Resources Agency

CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS PROJECT EVALUATION
j FORM CCC 58

' R-21-1715-8892

MMWD Trail Work and Fuel Reduction FY 21/22

Fiscal Summary

Total OE&E Total CM labor amount ] Total fiscal summary amount

$8,022.00 $189,280.00 [$210,000.00

Equipment, Materials and Labor
Sponsor Supplied Materials, Equipment and Labor:

Materials: Burn Permits
Spike location- Sky Ranch 49 Sky Oaks Rd

Equipment: Water Tender

Labor: Technical oversight

BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT:

The CCC Representative agrees to the following:

® A Sponsor Agrcement (CCC 96 or, where applicable, an Inter Agency Agreement or other Master Agreement) is on file
at Headquarters (FHQ).

® If the Sponsor is 2 non-profit entity, a Private Property/Sponsor Authorization form has been submitted to HQ.

® If the Sponsor is a for-profit entity, # Private Property/Sponsor Authorization form has been submitted to HQ.

® The project conforms to the CCC's Injury and Iliness Prevention Program (IIPP).

® The signing CCC Representative has the authority to enter into a contractual agreement of this amount with the Sponsor.

The Sponsor Representative agrees to the following:

® Hazardous Materials
© If there are hazardous materials present, the Sponsar has provided the location, identity, and amounts of any
hazardous substances at the worltsite and provided all Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for hazards that are
present at the worksite.
° or
© To the best knowledge of the Sponsor, the worksite is free of any known hazardous materials,
* Alt applicable local, state, and federal permits, approvals, and clearances have been obtained.
® Project Funding
© For projects funded by the Sponzor or entity other than the CCC, the Sponsor agrees to reimburse the CCC for
estimated costs in accordance with the fiscal details shown in this decument,
° or
© For projects funded internally by CCC's Environmental Programs or other special fand, the Sponsor agrees to
comply with afl applicable program and eligibility criteria to fund the project.

Page 2 of 4




B, California Natutal Resources Agency

53 CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS PROJECT EVALUATION
£4 FORM CCC 58

7 R-21-1715-8892
MMWD Trait Work and Fuel Reduction FY 21/22

* the signing Sponscr Representative has the authority to enter into 2 contractual agreement of this type (and, if any, this
amovut) with the CCC.,

Page 3 of 4



y California Natural Resources Agency
| CALIFORNIA CONSERVATION CORPS PROJECT EVALUATION

= FORM CCC 58
" R-21-1715-8892
MMWD Trail Work and Fuel Reduction FY 21/22

Sponsor Representative:

Print Name:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

Mx:%atiéz
Print Name: Cd U\ /}9’%(‘(

Title: éd’“b(( Ul)(\:‘\ﬂk\\ B\il‘ﬂf‘ﬁb\;}/
Signature: WY\
me W 20f 1

%

CCC Representative:

Print Name:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

Page 4 of 4



MARI N Item Number: 05
\ WATER Meeting Date: 12-16-2021
h

Meeting: Watershed
Committee/ Board of Directors
(Watershed)

Review and Refer for Board Approval

TO: Watershed Committee/Board of Directors (Watershe@) ,

/ it
L ey

FROM: Shaun Horne, Watershed Resources Manager /."/
&
THROUGH: Ben Horenstein, General Manager%%
g
DIVISION NAME: Watershed

ITEM: Other Power Driven Mobility Device (Including Class 1 E-Bikes) Proposed Ordinance,
Administrative Policy and Procedures for use of Other Power-Driven Mobility Devices, Device
Registration, and Administrative Policy on the District’s ADA Grievance Process

RECOMMENDATION

Review and refer proposed Ordinance No. 457, to be implemented pursuant to new
Administrative Policy and Procedures for use of Other Power-Driven Mobility Devices on
District Lands including an OPDMD registration process for E-Bikes;

Review and refer the proposed repeal of Board Policies 31 and 31.1 to be replaced by an
Administrative Policy on the District’s ADA Grievance Process

SUMMARY
Despite District Code section 9.04.01, which prohibits the use of E-Bikes on District lands, there
has been an increase in the general usage of electric bicycles (E-Bikes) and people interested in
using them on Marin Water’s lands. Staff has reviewed the requirements for accommodation
of Other Power-Driven Mobility Device (OPDMD) pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities

. Act (ADA) and pertinent regulations and has found that accommodating E-Bikes as an OPDMD
is consistent with these requirements.

Staff is requesting the Watershed Committee to review and refer to a future regularly
scheduled Board of Directors’ meeting the approval and adoption of Ordinance No. 457, which
would clarify the District’s position with respect to OPDMDs on District lands. Staff is proposing
that the use of OPDMDs on District lands be regulated pursuant to a new Administrative Policy
and Procedures for use of Other Power-Driven Mobility Devices on District Lands, which would
require a request for accommodation and registration process for the use of E-Bikes as an
OPDMD. Staff is further requesting that the Board review and refer to a future regular Board
Meeting the repeal of Board Policies 31 and 31.1, which staff proposed will be replaced by a
new Administrative Policy on the District’s ADA Grievance Process.

Page 1|5



Item Number: 05
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

DISCUSSION

Background

Marin Water has allowed conventional bikes on natural surface fire roads (but not on narrow,
single track trails) for many years as part of a road and trail system that also supports hiking,
horseback riding, and other uses. The fire roads systems is composed of existing facilities that
were designed and constructed using rock armoring to support vehicles for facility maintenance
and emergency response.

Assembly Bill (AB) 1096, adopted in 2016, authorized the use of Class 1 and Class 2 E-Bikes on
paths or trails where bicycles are allowed and formalized specific categories of E-Bikes via
additions to the California Vehicle Code (at section 312.5). AB 1096 also explicitly permits local
authorities or governing bodies of public agencies having jurisdiction over paths or trails to
establish conditions or prohibit the use of all classes of E-Bikes by ordinance. Authorization for
recreational uses under the jurisdiction of Marin Water is governed by Part 5 of Board Policy 7
the Mt. Tamalpais Watershed Management Policy and Title 9 of Marin Water Code entitled
Regulations for Use of Marin Municipal Water District Lands. Currently Title 9.04.01 of the
District Code prohibits the use of motorized bicycles on District lands.

Over the last few years, public interest in the use of E-Bikes has grown and many community
members have embraced them for transportation and recreation. Marin Water hosted a
workshop and listening session in December of 2018 to solicit public comments relating to E-
Bike access on watershed lands. To further inform the review process and discussion around E-
Bikes, Marin Water formed a Community Advisory Committee (CAC). The E-Bike CAC process
included seven meetings organized around major topics that were identified during the 2018
public workshop. Out of the process an E-Bike CAC Final Summary Report was developed which
outlines the CAC process, key themes, and potential options discussed by participants. Based
on the thoughtful input received from the E-Bike CAC members, the general public, the 2018 E-
Bike workshop, agency partners, and the professional judgement of staff alternative
approaches were developed by staff and presented to the Board of Directors for consideration.
Based on feedback received during the May 12, 2020 Board of Directors meeting staff
developed an E-Bike Access Assessment, which was presented to the Board of Directors, but to
date E-Bikes are still not allowed on District lands.

Local Land Management Agencies

Currently, the public land management agencies in Marin are at different points in their
individual review and approval processes. Marin County Parks and Open Space has not started
their review of E-Bikes on the Open Space Preserves, however they are allowing E-Bikes on
paved multi-use trails in their Park system. Golden Gate National Recreation Area has
established conditional access for E-Bikes on some trails and service roads, which are open for
bicycles, but is currently conducting additional review of that decision. California State Parks
recently adopted a policy allowing e-bike access on paved roads, in areas with Superintendent’s
Order in State vehicle recreation areas, in areas with Superintendent’s Order for research or
demonstration, and for persons with disabilities.

Page 2|5



Item Number: 05
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

Staff’s Recommendation

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), staff is proposing the adoption of
Ordinance No. 457, which would clarify that OPDMDs will be allowed on District lands in
compliance with ADA requirements. Staff has also prepared an Administrative Policy and
Procedures for use of Other Power-Driven Mobility Devices (OPDMD), including class 1 E-Bikes,
on District Lands. To facilitate the safety of OPDMD users and other trail users and ensure
enforcement of violations, staff is proposing an OPDMD registration program for Class | E-Bikes
seeking accommodation, which would be administered in accordance with the Administrative
Policy and Procedures for Use of Other Power-Driven Mobility Devices on District Lands. Both
Ordinance No. 457 and the Administrative Policy are summarized below and attached to this
report. Establishing a clear OPDMD Policy is consistent with the approach that many other land
management agencies throughout the Bay Area have taken. The registration program would
facilitate access for people with mobility disabilities, ensure that an E-Bike being used as an
OPDMD complies with the OPDMD Policy, and require an identifying sticker to be placed on the
frame of the E-Bike, which would allow Ranger’s to identify E-Bikes being used as OPDMD. All
other E-Bikes would continue to be regulated under Title 9 and would be prohibited from use.

Adoption of Ordinance No. 457

Ordinance No. 457 would amend Section 9.04.01 of the Marin Municipal Water District Code to
allow the use of OPDMDs on District lands by individuals with mobility disabilities in accordance
with applicable law and subject to limitations on their use as may be adopted by the District.
The added language is underlined and bolded below:

No person shall operate any motor vehicle, including, but not limited to, cars, trucks,
motorcycles, motor-driven cycle, motorized bicycle, motorized scooter, self-balancing
motorized personal transportation vehicle or similar vehicles on district lands except
upon public roads or parking lots. For purposes of this section, emergency vehicles and
district maintenance vehicles are exempted as are other power-driven mobility
devices, as defined in Section 35.104 of the Code of Federal Requlations, being used
by individuals with mobility disabilities in accordance with Title Il of the Americans
with Disabilities Act and applicable law and requlations. The foregoing are subject
to limitations on their use in accordance with District policy and procedure, as may
be amended from time to time.

In addition to these proposed revisions to the District Code, staff has prepared an
Administrative Policy and Procedures for the use of OPDMDs on District lands. These policies
and procedures will establish limitations on the types and use of OPDMDs on District lands to
ensure the safety of all user groups and protection of natural resources.

Administrative Policy and Procedures for use of Other Power-Driven Mobility Devices on

District Lands
The Administrative Policy and Procedures will provide reasonable regulations on the use of
OPDMDs on District lands and implement a registration process for E-Bikes that may be used as

Page 3|5



Item Number: 05
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

an OPDMD. This registration process will accommodate access for qualifying individuals with
mobility disabilities. The Policy and Procedures define the types of devices that would be
authorized for use, outlines general standards and areas authorized for use, and details the
registration process. The Policy also describes the penalty for violations consistent with existing
rules and regulations and the District’s ability to revoke or suspend access for users who violate
District regulations.

Under the new Administrative Policy, prior to using an E-Bike as an OPDMD on District
watershed lands, all E-Bikes must be inspected and registered with the District to confirm
compliance with the District’s OPDMD device requirements and the provisions of California
Vehicle Code section 312.5. After District staff inspect the E-Bike and confirm compliance with
the District’s OPDMD policy and the California Vehicle Code, a registration sticker will be placed
in a clearly visible location on the left side of the bike frame’s top tube two inches from the
stem or handle bars where staff can identify the registration number. Registration stickers shall
be valid for the E-Bike and the OPDMD user for which they are issued for a period of five years
from the date of issuance. Registration shall be renewed by the OPDMD user each time the
user uses a new E-Bike as an OPDMD on District lands and after five years from the date of the
registration issuance.

E-Bike Registration Process

e E-Bikesinspected and registered as OPDMD devices at the Sky Oaks Ranger’s Station
during regular hours of office operation.

e Inordertoregisteran E-Bike as an OPDMD, the registrant must provide State-issued
disability parking placard or card, or other State-issued proof of disability, or a
Federally-issued proof of disability pass or card, or verbal representation not
contradicted by observable fact as a credible assurance that the use of the E-Bike as
an OPDMD is for the individual's mobility disability consistent with the ADA.

e Avalid manufacturer sticker that identifies the E-Bike being used as an OPDMD as a
Class | E-Bike, as required by Vehicle Code Section 312.5. (Aftermarket
modifications to a bicycle or E-Bike will not be approved for registration as OPDMD
devices.)

* A registration form must be filled out and signed by the E-Bike user before an
OPDMD registration sticker is issued for the E-Bike. This form will require the user
of the device to certify under the penalty of perjury that the E-Bike is being used as
an OPDMD for the for the user’s mobility disability.

The registration program will be a new administrative process for the District and will require
ongoing Ranger and administrative support. This will add to the overall duties of the Ranger
department. As such, the District will need to manage the program adaptively and make
adjustments as the program matures. Establishing an OPDMD policy will help to provide clarity
around enforcement of E-Bike and OPDMD use on District lands. Once adopted, Ranger’s will

Page 4|5




Item Number: 05
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

focus on educating users regarding the updated regulations and enforcement of the new policy.
As such Ranger’s will need some time to roll out the new registration program.

Repeal Board Policies 31 and 31.1

During this process staff recommends repealing Board Policies 31 and 31.1, which will be
replaced with a new administrative policy on the District’s ADA Grievance Process. The New
administrative policy will be updated to be consistent with current legal requirements and new
District information. The new administrative policy will ensure that any individuals who are
denied use of their requested OPDMD device or other accommodation, may seek
administrative review of that denial.

CEQA Compliance

The recommended actions to adopt proposed Ordinance No. 457, to repeal Board Policies 31
and 31.1 in favor of a new administrative policy, as well as the implementation of an OPDMD
registration program consistent with American Disabilities Act is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act as follows:

CEQA Guidelines section 15061

The adoption of proposed Ordinance No. 457 clarifying the allowance of OPDMDs, the
implementation of a registration process for the use of E-Bikes as an OPDMD, as well as the
repeal of District Policies 31 and 31.1 in favor of an updated administrative policy will not
change the use of OPDMDs or E-Bikes on District lands, but merely formalizes their use as an
accommodation as already required under the ADA and thus, it can be seen with certainty that
there is no possibility that the activities in question may have a significant effect on the
environment, and therefore the actions are exempt from the CEQA.

FISCAL IMPACT
The FY 20-21 adopted budget includes sufficient funds in the Watershed fund center to support
the initial costs to establish an OPDMD Registration Program for E-Bikes.

ATTACHMENT(S)

1. Proposed Ordinance No. 457

2. Administrative Policy and Procedures for use of Other Power-Driven Mobility Devices on
District Lands

3. Application for use of E-Bikes as Other Power Driven Mobility Devices (OPDMD) under
Title Il of the Americans with Disability Act (ADA) as Reasonable Accommodation for
Mobility Devices

4. Board Policies 31 and 31.1

5. Administrative Policy on the District’s ADA Grievance Process

Page 5|5




Item Number: 05
Attachment: 01

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
ORDINANCE NO. 457

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9 CHAPER 9.04
ENTITLED “VEHICLE AND TRAFFIC REGULATIONS” OF THE MARIN
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT CODE REGARDING THE USE OF OTHER POWER
DRIVEN MOBILITY DEVICES ON WATERSHED LANDS PURSUANT TO TITLE II
OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MARIN MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Purpose: This ordinance reaffirms the District’s practice of ensuring that
individuals with disabilities may fully access and use District lands by permitting the use of
specified other power driven mobility devices.

SECTION 2. Section 9.04.01 of the Marin Municipal Water District Code entitled “Motor
vehicles” is hereby deleted in its entirety and amended to read as follows:

No person shall operate any motor vehicle, including, but not limited to, cars, trucks,
motorcycles, motor-driven cycle, motorized bicycle, motorized scooter, self-balancing motorized
personal transportation vehicle or similar vehicles on district lands except upon public roads or
parking lots. For purposes of this section, emergency vehicles and district maintenance vehicles
are exempted as are other power-driven mobility devices, as defined in Section 35.104 of the
Code of Federal Regulations as may be amended and updated from time to time, being used by
individuals with mobility disabilities in accordance with Title I1 of the Americans with
Disabilities Act and applicable law and regulations. The foregoing are subject to limitations on
their use in accordance with District policy and procedure, as may be amended from time to
time.

SECTION 3. Findings. After considering all of the information, documents and testimony at
the public hearing the Board of Directors finds as follows:

a. This ordinance reaffirms the District’s practice and commitment of ensure that
individuals with disabilities may participate fully in District activities and programs in
compliance and consistent with Section 35.101 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

b. In compliance with Section 35,137 of the Code of Federal Regulations, this ordinance
expressly illustrates the District’s efforts to make reasonable modifications in its policies,
practices, or procedures to permit the use of other power-driven mobility devices by
individuals with mobility disabilities on District lands.

c. While permitting the use of qualifying other power-driven mobility devices by
individuals with mobility disabilities on District lands, this ordinance reserves the

217357.1



District’s authority to limit the classes of devices that cannot be operated in accordance
with the legitimate safety requirements consistent with Section 35.137 (b)(2) of the Code
of Federal Regulations.

SECTION 4. Severability: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, portion or part of
this ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent
Jjurisdiction, such section shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this code. The
Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance and each section,
subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, part or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or
more sections subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases, parts or portions be declared invalid or
unconstitutional and, to that end, declares the provisions of this ordinance severable from one
another.

SECTION 5. Effective Date: This ordinance shall take effect 30 days following its adoption,

SECTION 6. Reservation of Powers: Nothing in this Ordinance shall prevent the District from
exercising any of its powers under the California Water Code or other applicable law including but
not limited to its power to adopt ordinances, resolutions, rules or regulations in response thereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ th day of , 20__, by the following vote of the
Board of Directors:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Board Secretary

Page 2



item Number: 05
Attachment: 02

DRAFT 12-16-21

MARIN WATER
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR USE OF OTHER POWER-DRIVEN
MOBILITY DEVICES ON DISTRICT LANDS

DEFINITIONS

A. Other Power-Driven Mobility Device (OPDMD) is defined as any mobility device
powered by batteries, fuel, or other engines (whether or not designed for use by
individuals with mobility disabilities) that is used by individuals with mobility
disabilities for the purpose of locomotion, including golf cars, electronic personal
assistance mobility devices (EPAMDs), such as the Segway PT, or any mobility
device designed to operate in areas without defined pedestrian routes but that is
not a wheelchair. (28 C.F.R. 35.104). {“Defined pedestrian” routes are those routes
that are required to be wheelchair and disability accessible such as routes from
parking to restrooms and public facilities.)

B. Class 1 Electric Bicycle is defined as a bicycle equipped with an electric motor that
provides assistance only when the rider is pedaling, and that ceases to provide
assistance when the bicycle reaches the speed of 20 miles per hour. (Vehicle Code
§312.5(a)(1}.)

STANDARDS AND AREAS OF AUTHORIZED USE

A, Size. OPDMDs shall not be wider than 36” or longer than 48", except for
Class 1 and Class 2 electric bicycles which may exceed 48” in length. OPDMDs shall not
exceed 550 lbs. including the weight of the operator.

B. E-Bike and OPDMD Technology Standards the use of E-Bikes or other OPDMD
devices that have been modified from the manufacturers’ original standards are prohibited on
District lands, as defined in Section 9.01.01 of the Marin Municipal Water District Code. This
includes do-it-yourself E-Bikes and the use of additional back up batteries. As required by
Vehicle Code Section 312.5 (c), all E-Bikes shall contain a permanently affixed label in
prominent location on the E-Bike that shall contain the ciassification number, top assisted
speed, and motor wattage.

C. Gas and or Fuel Powered OPDMDs Prohibited. OPDMDs shall not exceed zero
emissions during use. Only manually or battery/electricity operated devices are permitted.
The use of gas or other fuel powered mobility devices is prohibited. The engine noise level
from an OPDMD may not exceed 60 dB measured on the A-weighted scale at a distance of 50
feet.



D. Speed Limit.
s Trails.
No person shail operate an OPDMD at a speed in excess of 5 miles per
hour, except for Class 1 electric powered bicycles which shall comply with all
District regulations for the operation of bicycles, including the speed limits
set forth in District Code 9.04.03, which limits bicycle speeds to 5 miles per
hour on blind turns and when passing and to a maximum speed of 15 miles
per hour.

e Basic Speed Limit.

Notwithstanding the above speed limits, pursuant to District Code 9.04.03, no
person shall operate an OPDMD at a speed greater than is reasonable or
prudent for safe operation or to protect the safety of others using District
lands.

E. Areas of Authorized OPDMD Use.
OPDMDs Shail Only Be Used in the Following Areas:

. “Paths of Travel” (e.g., Sidewalks, Driveways, Parking Lots, Ramps, and
Restrooms).

. Public Roads.

. Protection Roads {e.g. Fire Roads) Not Signed Against Use.

. Electric powered Class 1 bicycles shall only be allowed where regular

bicycles are allowed.

USE OF CLASS 1 E-BIKE AS AN OPDMD; E-BIKE REGISTRATION

Prior to using a Class-1 E-Bike as an OPDMD on District lands, all E-Bikes must be inspected and
registered by the District to confirm compliance with the District’s OPDMD device requirements
and the provisions of California Vehicle Code section 312.5. No other classes of E-Bikes shall be
operated on District lands. After District staff inspect the E-Bike and confirm compliance with the
District’s OPDMD policy and the California Vehicle Code, a registration sticker will be placed
clearly on the left side of the bike frame’s top tube two inches from the stem or handle bars
where staff can clearly identify the registration number. Registration stickers shall be valid for
the E-Bike and OPDMD user for which they are issued for a period of 5 years from the date of
issuance. Registrations shall be renewed each time an E-Bike user uses a new E-Bike on District
lands and after 5 years from the date of the registration issuance.

E-Bike Registration Process
e E-Bikes can be inspected and registered as OPDMD devices at the Sky Oaks Ranger’s
Station during regular hours of office operation.
» In order to register an E-Bike as an OPDMD, the registrant must provide State-
issued, disability parking placard or card, or other State-issued proof of disability, or
a Federally-issued proof of disability pass or card, or verbal representation not



contradicted by observable fact as a credible assurance, not contradicted by
observable fact that the use of the E-Bike as an OPDMD is for the individual's
mobility disability.

» Avalid manufacturer sticker that identifies the E-Bike as a Class | E-bike, as required
by Vehicle Code Section 312.5. {Aftermarket modifications to a bicycle or E-bike will
not be approved for registration as OPDMD devices.)

¢ An E-Bike registration form must be filled out and signed by the E-Bike user before
an OPDMD registration sticker is issued for the E-Bike. This form will require the
user of the device-Bike certifies under the penalty of perjury that the E-Bike is the
for the user’s mobility disability.

The District will not ask an individual using an OPDMD questions about the nature and extent of
the individual’s disability. (28 C.F.R. 35.137 (c) (1).)

Penalty for Violation of District Rules/ Regulations

If a visitor is using an OPDMD in a manner that violates District’s rules and regulations the
user’s access to lands may be revoked or suspended.

Right to Appeal

If any individual requesting the use of an OPDMD on District lands believes that their request
for accommodation was improperly denied, the individual may submit a District Complaint
Form for Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which is contained in Board Policy No.
31.1. The Complaint Form will be processed in accordance with the procedures set forth in
Board Policy No. 31- Internal Grievance Procedure for Title Il of ADA.



MAR' N Item Number: 05
k WATER Attachment: 03

Application for use of E-Bike as
Other Power Driven Mobility Device (OPDMD) Under
Title Il of the Americans with Disability Act (ADA) as Reasonable Accommodation for Mobility

Disability
Name:
Address:
Email:
Phone:
Class of E-Bike (Circle One): 1 2
E-Bike bears manufacturer’s sticker declaring class: Y N

Credible Assurance of Qualifying Mobility Disability (Initial at least ONE and present
document(s) to staff (if applicable))

Valid-State issue, disability placard or card
Other valid State-issued proof of disability

Verbal representation, not contradicted by observable fact that the E-Bike is required for
a mobility disability

| certify that (1) | am a qualifying individual with mobility disability pursuant to Title Il of the
ADA, (2) the E-Bike being registered will be used as an OPDMD to assist with my mobility
disability, (3) all information provided in this form and presented to staff is true and correct. |
certify and declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct. Providing false information in this form may result in up to four
(4) years imprisonment pursuant to Penal Code sections 126 and 1170 (h) respectively.

Print Name: Signature:

Date:

STAFF USE ONLY

Staff Approval: Permit Number Issued:

MarinWater.org 220 Nellen Avenue, Corte Madera, CA 94925 415.945.1455




{tem Number: 05
Attachment: 04

BOARD POLICY
- MARIN MUNICIPAL No. 3
NS WATER DISTRICT

Datec 7‘22'92
Reviewed 5-17-94

- INTERNAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE FOR TITLE II
Subject: OF AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT '

Marin Municipal Water District has-adopted an internal grievance procedure
providing for prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any action
prohibited by the U.S. Department of Justice regulations implementing TITLE II
of the Americans with Disabilities Act. TITLE II states, in part, that "no
otherwise qualified disabled individual shall, solely by reason- of such
disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or
be subjected te discrimination" in programs or activities sponsored by.a public
entity.’ : '

Any disabled person who feels discriminated against under TITLE IT has the right
to file a complaint with the District. Complaints should be addressed to the
District’s ADA Coordinator: Jules Tham, Manager of Personnel and. Public
Information, Marin Municipal Water District, 220 Nellen Avenue, Corte Madera, CA
94825, (415) 924-4600.

1. A comptaint should be filed in wr%ting using a Disirict ADA Comh1aint Form
available from the District ADA Coordinator’/s office.

2. A complaint should be filed within ten (10} calendar days after the
complainant becomes aware of the alleged violatian. o

3. - An investigation, if appropriate, shall follow the filing of a complaint.
The 1investigation shall be conducted by Jules Tham. As a part of an
investigation, all interesied persons and their representatives, if any,
shall be given an opportunity to submit evidence relevant to the complaint.

4. A written determination as to the validity of the complaint and a
description of the resolution, if any, shall be issued by Jules Tham and a
copy forwarded to the complainant.

5. A complainant can request a reconsideration of the written determination in
instances where there is dissatisfaction with the resolution. The request
for reconsideration should be made in writing to Jules Tham within ten (10)
calendar days after receipt of the written determination. The ADA
Coordinator of the District will review the request. The decision of the
ADA Coordinator shall be finafl. :




BOARD POLICY
No.: 31
Page:: 2

MARIN MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT

6. The ADA Coordinator shall maintain the files and .records of the Marin
Municipal Water District relating to complaints filed.

7. .The right of a person to a prompt and gquitable resolution of the complaint
filed shall not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies such
as the filing of arn ADA complaint with the responsible federal department
or agency. Use of this grievance procedure is not a .prerequisite to the
pursuit of other remedies.

8. These rules. shall Be construed to protect the rights of the disabled.and to
. assure that Marin Municipal Water District complies with implementing ADA
regulations under TITLE II. This procedure is not applicable to complaints -
emanating ‘from TITLE I pertaining to equal employment opportunity for
individuals with disabilities. .




Item Number: 05

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Attachment: 04.1

COMPLAINT FORM
FOR
TITLE 11 OF AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

NAHE:
ADDRESS:

- TELEPHONE:

DATE COMPLAINT OCCURRED:
DESCRIPTION OF COMPLAINT:

REMEDY SOUGHT:

SIGNED: DATED:




Item Number: 05
Attachment: 05

MARIN
N WATER

Grievance Procedures for Resolution of Complaints under
Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act

Administrative Policy #___

Effective Date: (date)

Approved by: Date:
Bennett Horenstein, General Manager

Purpose

Marin Municipal Water District has adopted an internal grievance procedure providing for
prompt and equitable resolution of complaints alleging any action prohibited by the U.S.
Department of Justice regulations implementing Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act
(herein referenced as ADA or Title Il). Title Il states, in part, that “...no qualified individual with
a disability shall, by reason of such disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied the
benefits of services, programs, or activities of a public entity, or be subjected to discrimination
by any such entity.” This policy will establish clear procedures for the prompt and equitable
resolution of complaints alleging any violation of Title Il of the ADA.

Scope
This policy shall be applicable to all complaints alleging violations of Title II.

Procedure for Resolution of Complaints

Any individual with a disability who feels discriminated against under Title Il has the right to file
a complaint with the District. Complaints should be addressed to the applicable ADA
Coordinator identified below.

1]



Grievance Procedures for Resolution of Complaints under Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act

1. Acomplaint shall be filed in writing using the District’s Complaint Form Regarding Title Il
of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which is attached hereto and may be request
from the applicable ADA Coordinator.

2. A complaint should be filed within sixty (60) calendar days after the complainant
becomes aware of the alleged violation.

3. Aninvestigation, if deemed appropriate by the applicable District ADA Coordinator, shall
follow the filing of a complaint. The investigation shall be conducted by the ADA
Coordinator or designee. As a part of an investigation, all interested persons and their
representatives, if any, shall be given an opportunity to submit evidence relevant to the
complaint.

4. A written determination as to the validity of the complaint and a description of the
resolution, if any, shall be issued by the applicable District ADA Coordinator and a copy
forwarded to the complainant.

5. A complainant may request a reconsideration of the written determination in instances
where there is dissatisfaction with the resolution. The request for reconsideration
should be made in writing to the District’s General Manager within ten (10) calendar
days after receipt of the written determination. The General Manager or designee will
review the request. The decision of the General Manager or designee shall be final.

6. The applicable ADA Coordinator shall maintain the files and records of the Marin
Municipal Water District relating to complaints filed in their respective areas.

7. The right of the person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint filed shall
not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of an ADA
complaint with the responsible federal and state departments or agencies. Use of this
grievance procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.

8. These rules shall be construed to protect the rights of the individual with disabilities and
to assure that Marin Municipal Water District complies with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations, including Title Il. This procedure is not applicable to complaints
emanating from Title | of the ADA pertaining to equal employment opportunity for
individuals with disabilities. Complaints under Title | shall be directed to the District’s
Human Resources Department.

2|




Grievance Procedures for Resolution of Complaints under Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act

ADA Coordinators
Below are the District’s ADA Coordinators for the respective areas listed below:
Watershed- Shaun Horne, Watershed Resources Manager, 415-945-1190

Board/ Committee Meetings- Terrie Gillen, Board Secretary, 415-945-1448

All Other Title Il Complaints- Vikkie Garay, Human Resources Manager, 415-945-1430

Complainants may contact the respective ADA coordinator listed above by phone or by mailing

the attached “Form for Resolution of Complaints under Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities
Act” addressed to the applicable ADA Coordinator above to: 220 Nellen Avenue, Corte Madera,
CA 94925,

Attachment:
Form for Resolution of Complaints under Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act

Legal Authorities: 42 U.S.C.A. Section 12132; 28 C.F.R. Section 35.107

3|




Grievance Procedures for Resolution of Complaints under Title || of the Americans with Disabilities Act

Form for Resolution of Complaints under
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act

NAME:

ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

EMAIL:

DATE OF OCCURRANCE:

DESCRIPTION OF COMPLAINT (Attach additional pages if needed):

REMEDY SOUGHT:

SIGNED: DATED:

PLEASE MAIL A COPY OF THE COMPLETED FORM TO THE
APPLICABLE ADA COORDINATOR BELOW:

Watershed- Shaun Horne, Watershed Resources Manager, 415-945-1190

Board/Committee Meetings- Terrie Gillen, Board Secretary, 415-945-1448

All Other Title Il Complaints- Vikkie Garay, Human Resources Manager, 415-945-1430

Complainants may contact the respective ADA coordinator by phone or by mailing a letter
addressed to the applicable ADA Coordinator above to:
220 Nellen Avenue, Corte Madera, CA 94925,

4|



MARIN Item Number: 06
WATER Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

Meeting: Watershed
Committee/Board of Directors
(Watershed)

?

Informational Iltem

TO: Watershed Committee/Board of Directors (Watershed)

FROM: Shaun Horne, Watershed Resources Manager ;‘*

L

THROUGH: Ben Horenstein, General Manager f ;f

DIVISION NAME: Watershed

ITEM: Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan — Progress Update

SUMMARY

In 2020, the District was awarded a $300,000 grant from the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife (CDFW) Proposition 68 Rivers and Streams Program to develop the Lagunitas Creek
Watershed Enhancement Plan (Plan). The District selected Environmental Sciences Associates
(ESA) to conduct preliminary planning and develop 30% restoration design plans for sites on
publicly owned lands along Lagunitas Creek. The District and ESA have been working closely
and collaboratively with watershed stakeholders and agencies during the past year to complete
a set of draft 30% design plans and supporting documents. District staff are applying for
additional grant funding from CDFW and the US Bureau of Reclamation to complete
environmental review and take these designs to the 100% level for future implementation.

DISCUSSION

The purpose of this Plan is to expand upon past restoration efforts by developing enhancement
concepts that address salmonid limiting factors in the Lagunitas Creek watershed. The scope of
work includes regular presentations to the Lagunitas Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), an
extensive literature review, restoration and reach prioritization, and development of 30%
design plans and cost estimates. The final Plan will include a basis of design as well as
constraints and considerations for future planning and implementation.

Progress to Date

ESA has completed approximately 90% of the scope of work for this Plan. The grant has an end
date of March 2022, and the District is on schedule to complete and submit all grant
deliverables on time. District staff have been collaboratively engaging stakeholders and
resource agencies throughout the process, including California Department of Parks and
Recreation (State Parks), Lagunitas Creek TAC, CDFW, National Marine Fisheries Service, and
the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board. These agencies and groups have

Page 1|2



Item Number: 06
Meeting Date: 12-16-2021

been integrally involved in developing the Plan and have provided guidance and feedback that
has been incorporated throughout the project.

Draft 30% design plans (attached) have been developed for 13 sites in Lagunitas Creek within
Samuel P. Taylor State Park. Habitat enhancement approaches for these sites include
installation of log and boulder structures, addition of spawning gravel, and improving flow and
sediment transport at tributary junctions. In total, these 13 sites comprise approximately 4,450
linear feet of stream channel. The full group of enhancement areas are broken into Phase 1 (7
sites) and Phase 2 (6 sites) to allow the District to design and implement individual projects
incrementally, as grant funding becomes available.

Next Steps

Agency staff and other watershed stakeholders are reviewing the draft plans and supporting
documents and will provide comments by the end of December. Suggestions and modifications
will be reviewed and incorporated into the final 30% designs by March 2022 to complete the
grant.

District staff are applying to the CDFW Cutting the Green Tape (North Coast Coho Recovery)
Grant Program to complete environmental review and develop 100% design plans for the seven
Phase 1 sites. The District successfully applied for the pre-proposal round of this grant and was
invited to submit a full proposal, which is due December 17. Additionally, District staff are
applying for a US Bureau of Reclamation grant, which would include implementing two of the
Phase-1 sites, following completion of design and environmental review.

FISCAL IMPACT
None at this time

ATTACHMENT(S)
1. Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan Draft Report

7 Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan Draft 30% Design Plans

3. Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan Draft Cost Estimates

Page 2|2




06

Item Number

01

Attachment

LAGUNITAS CREEK WATERSHED ENHANCEMENT

PLAN

Draft Report

November 2021

Prepared for
Marin Water




LAGUNITAS CREEK WATERSHED ENHANCEMENT

PLAN

Draft Report

Prepared for
Marin Water

Prepared by:

ESA

Jason White

Andy Collison, Ph.D,
Ann Borgonovo, P.E.
Michael Strom

Liane Ware, P.E.

OHl
Matt O’'Connor, Ph.D.

1425 N. McDowell Boutevard

Suite 200

Petaluma, CA 94854
707.795.0800

£8aS$0C,Com

Bend Orlando
Camarillo Pasadena
Delray Beach Petaluma
Destin Portland
Ivine Sacramento
Los Angeles San Diego
Qakland San Francisco

D201700965

November 2021

ESA



QUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY | ESA helps a variety of
publis and private sector clients plan and prepare for climate change and
emerging regulations that limit GHG emissions. ESA Is a registered
assessor with the California Climate Action Reglstry, a Climate Leader,
and founding reporter for the Climate Registry, ESA is also a corporate
member of the U.S. Green Building Council and the Business Council on
Climate Change (BC3). Internally, ESA has adopted a Sustalnability Vision
and Policy Statement and a plan to reduce waste and energy within our
operations. This document was produced using recycled paper.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Lo =T o210 0 e T 1 8T T 1o () [ 1
1.1 Location and SetliNg ...t re e st b e 2

1.2 ReSIOFAtON NEBU ...t et ir s s e s enssassra s rassmseeeeseseensemnrneessenn 2

1.4 Project Goals and ODbJectiVES......cco v e 4
Section 2, Literature Review of Existing Conditions ......ccccvciveimrrrrcrncesmrsnsversssssessronrenense 1
PO B N T o e To | =T | RS 1

PV o Lo [ [ o O O S O 2

2.3 Hydraulic ConAIIONS ........cceviiercierciee st e e e s rb b e s r s bae s 4

2.4 Sediment Supply and TranSpomt .t e s 5

2.5 LArge WOOM ..o e e e e s e st e a e ra e n 6

b3S I € T=To Ty o o T4 aTe ) o T | SO 7

2.7  GeoteChniCal CoONQItIONS v v et e e sessrre et e s eressessssessmreseteessassanerenerasasnn 7

2.8 SalmMOonid HABIAL.........vveieeereeierrreris e st erresiass s mreet e esesssasssesrensestecssssassansresassaas 8

2.9 Previous RestOratlon YWOTK ... . e er i e e e e see s s ssssressressessesanssssesessensas 4]

2.9.1 LeSSONS LEAME.......ciiicciiiies it e v eesrssressessasss s sesaren e resaasassasssmeens 11

D L 1= (1 0o 1 | (TR UUOR 12
Section 3, Restoration Priorifization and Basis of DeSign.......ccccveninieecrenninsneensnne 15
3.1 Restoration Opportunities AnalySiS.....ccccvreiveinieercieeresrerrssesrs s vsras e ssssssssresin 15

3.1.1 Priority Reach and Enhancement Site Selection.........cccccovvvveeeccevrccrvine 16

3.2 Enhancement Actions Basis of Design.....cccvieccviecien et 19

3.2.1 Riffle-Pool-WOoOd SLIUCLUIE .....oveereeees et er s e s cs et e e e s seneeessaees 19

3.2.2 Gravel AUgMENtation ... v e e 28

3.2.3 Tributary Confluence Modifications .......cccoinciiicciie s 28

Section 4, Feasibility ASS@SSMENL..........cccovvimmmeneeimemenenenr e sessessseseses 3
4.1 Land OWNErshiD ... sressseres s rereerer e s be e stee s b e et essssnss s bessabaess 31

4.2 Stakeholder INPUL......o ettt st e rs et e e s st s sat sanasssnsae s 31

4.3 Environmental Compliance and Permitting ........................ eeerrreeree e inre e raeneas 32

4.3.1 Biological RESOUICES...ciici et iiiecieitiectietie e cree e e sesserse s s sssrssessesssnsasesans 32

4.3.2 CURUIA] REBOUICES. ..o cierrierereeiririiettietens s eeeasreeresssesssssanssnssessessessesssmssnsesssssns 33

A4 INFrASIUCIUNE RISK . iiiiiieiiiii it iiieceeerre vt vrseeesesssmressessenesessasasasssassnsensssnssesessnnennens 34

4.5  Construction Methods ...ttt e erererereersas aasnssansessnsnsmnssnssnssranes 34

4.5.1 Prior Restoration Projects .........ccvieevviiiseiinnsssreerse e s cnee e 34

4.6.2 Likely Construction Methods and Equipment ...........ccccocvoveiviivinncnnnnnenne. 35

4.5.3 Staging and StOrage Areas.......cuiccieiiicenriesrenieeestessesier e aresrans 36

4.5.4 CONSITUGHON ACCESS 1ivvivciereriesieresissreniereesissesramrenteresesiesssssrensestessessiessssasss 36

LRSI == | (= 4 o SO 37

Section 5, Design ANAIYSES i i ireeiss e st sessmesssessen s sassesns samssnsnsssmessrenas 39
5.1  Preliminary Hydraulic ANAIYSIS .....ccccivveicivirnrrrsciiernsisses s ssressies s ssseeses e 39

5.2  Preliminary Large Wood ANAIYSIS ......cvc v rrrssressrenvssnsssrssssiass sevesennsnnens 44

5.2.1 Design ASSUMPLIONS .....oooi ettt e re e sie e sae e emr v enesnns 44

5.2.2 Factors of Safety ...ttt e 45

5.2.3 Preliminary Calculation RESURS ......coccoeviiiiiiiiie e 46

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan i ESA 7D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



Table of Contents

Page
Section 6, Construction Cost Estimate .....cc..ccuvercooiice e 49
SeClion 7, REFErENGCES .ciiiciisseirnririrsinnsiicsssaiiieieniiiiarssiiassnsssnissssmssssesstsessensssnssnnses onsossassses 51
Attachments
A. Literature Review Memorandum
B. Field Maps
C. Enhancement Opportunity Figure Sheets
D. Large Wood Risk to Lagunitas Creek Bridges to Inform Design Considerations
Memorandum

E. 30%-Complete Design Drawings
F. 30%-Complete Design Estimate of Anticipated Construction Costs
List of Figures
Figure 1 Lagunitas Creek Watershed and Study Boundary ......cccceevvcinviincccnecnnincienan. 3
Figure 2 Peters Dam Flow Release Schedule ... e 3
Figure 3a Low-Profile Staggered Wood Structure Installed in the Project Area by

Marin Water In 2001 ... s 10
Figure 3b High-Profile Obstruction Wooed Structure Installed in the Project Area by

Marin Water in 2007 ... et e st snssme e enens 11
Figure 4  Priority Reaches and Proposed Sites ... e seesies e e 17
Figure 5 Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure Design Detail ........c.coovvveivincnnninenseeicess s 20
Figure 6a Functioning Riffle Forcing Wood Structure in Lagunitas Creek .........cccivvevieinnans 24
Figure 6b Functioning Riffle Forcing Wood Structure in Lagunitas Creek .....ccccoccviviiiicinans 24
Figure 7 Lagunitas Creek Reference Reach Profile for Riffle-Pool Measurements........... 25
Figure 8a Functioning Pool Habitat Wood Structure in Lagunitas Creek.......c.cocvvvceiennees 27
Figure 8b Functioning Pool Habitat Wood Structure in Lagunitas Creek........ccocvenceienee. 27
Figure 9  Gravel Augmentation Methods on the Yuba River ..., 35
Figure 10 2D Hydraulic Model DOMEIN ... e cceneses e vse st ssessmn s rassnn s 40
Figure 11a 2D Hydraulic Model Results (DOwWNnSIream}.....c.ovvvvicieniinnnicninensisssssesssnessnsnns 42
Figure 11b 2D Hydraulic Model Results (UpsStream) .......ccoviencmniincincsiniiecseimr e 43
List of Tables
Table 1 Lagunitas Creek Flow Recurrence Intervals at S.P. Taylor State Park

USGS GAUGE -.ceeeceeierer e vierersrersnrrs sreesaseeeesaseesssesetassstansastasastessans sassnnssnsseeenses 4
Table2  Existing Lagunitas Creek BRAGES .......cvceeriicercrcecinnicece e e eesneene s 13
Table 3  List of Selected Restoration SHeS.......c v 16
Table 4  Lagunitas Creek — Typical Spawning Riffle Dimensions (ESA, 2021)................ 23
Table5  Design Criteria for Riffle Gravel ...t e emneaniens 26
Table 8  Cultural Resources in the Vicinity of the Selected Sites.....ccccvvcvvvieveieveccieereens 33
Table 7  Design Flow Rates (KHE, 2014).......ccoiiciiiiceirircccreiesec et seent e e aee e 41
Table 8  Peak VelOGIY it immies et s it s s smiess st s s satbaesssas e e snameeesssntenssssm s 41
Table 9 Recommended Factors of Safety for Engineered Large Wood Structures

(USBR, 2074 ittt ses s sen e st na s s can e a s bns 45
Table 10 Riffle Forcing Wood Structure.........cco e 47
Table 11 Pool Habitat Wood Structure ..o nssssssssesiasses s s sasees 47
Lagunitas Creek Walershed Enhangement Plan i : ESA /D202000650
Draft Repart November 20214



SECTION 1
Introduction

The Lagunitas Creek watershed is critical to the recovery Central California Coast coho salmon
and Central California Coast Steelhead, currently listed as endangered and threatened respectively
under the Endangered Species Act. Marin Water currently manages four dams in the watershed
for water supply and flows in the mainstem of Lagunitas Creek under a State Water Resources
Control Board water rights order (WR 95-17). As part of their watershed stewardship efforts
Marin Water was awarded a CDFW Proposition 68 grant to develop the Lagunitas Creek
Watershed Enhancement Plan (Plan) to address the salmonid limiting factors within the Lagunitas
Creek watershed. Environmental Science Associates (ESA) was hired by Marin Water to expand
upon previous restoration efforts by Marin Water and others through evaluating restoration and
enhancement opportunities proximal to Marin Water infrastructure, tributary confluences, and
other ecologically significant areas, to identify the next phases of restoration sites. State Parks
(Samuel P. Taylor State Park) is a key participating landowner and partner. The overall goal of
the Plan is to develop 30%-complete restoration designs (30% design) for five to ten sites within
two priority reaches, through the following steps:

[. Review of available background literature relevant to salmonid habitat enhancement in
Lagunitas and San Geronimo Creek.

2. Desktop analysis developing and organizing baseline project data.
3. Geomorphic and habitat field reconnaissance to identify enhancement opportunities.
4, Identify two reaches in the Project Area within which to focus restoration actions.

5. Identify between ten and twenty potential restoration sites, for which a restoration
opportunities and constraints analysis is conducted.

6. Perform a feasibility assessment of the potential restoration sites and prioritize them for
design advancement.

7. Develop a 30%-complete Basis of Design report and restoration plans for five to ten sites.

Two priority reaches were identified in Lagunitas Creek mainstem: one extending from Peters
Dam to just downstream of [rving Road Bridge, and a second reach extending through Camp
Taylor. Thirteen potential sites were identified and evaluated within the two reaches, and
conceptual restoration approaches were developed. This report provides the rationale for specific
restoration actions that focus on geomorphic processes and increase structurally complex habitat
for juvenile coho salmon and steelhead.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 1 : ESA /D202000650
Oraft Report November 2021



1. Introduction

1.1 Location and Setting

The Project Area for the Plan is located in the middle of the Lagunitas Creek watershed in west
Marin County. Lagunitas Creek drains an 83 square mile watershed to the Pacific Ocean through
Tomales Bay (Figure 1). Significant portions of the watershed are dammed. Seeger Dam cuts off
36 square miles of Nicasio Creek, the largest tributary in the Lagunitas Creek watershed. Peters
Dam impounds the 22 square miles of the Lagunitas Creek headwaters. Just 25 square miles of
Lagunitas Creek remains undammed, including the downstream most 12 miles of Lagunitas
Creek and all of San Geronimo Creek, the largest undammed tributary to Lagunitas Creek. The
majority of the remaining undammed 16 square miles of Lagunitas Creek is within publicly
owned open-space, consisting of the Golden Gate National Recreation Area and Samuel P, Taylor
State Park. The 9 square mile San Geronimo Creek watershed contains a mixture of rural and
urban development, including the communities of Lagunitas, Forest Knolls, San Geronimo, and
Woodacre.

The Project Area includes the four miles of Lagunitas Creek downstream of Peters Dam to Big
Bend {just below the Devils Gulch confluence), and the four miles of San Geronimo Creek
immediately upstream of the confluence with Lagunitas Creek to Marin Water’s San Geronimo
Treatment Plant (Figure 1). The Lagunitas Creek segment of the Project Area consists of four
continucus miles of Lagunitas Creek in the Samuel P. Taylor State Park, and the Marin Water
protected watershed downstream of Peters Dam. These four miles of Lagunitas Creek are largely
bounded by Sir Francis Drake Boulevard and the Cross Marin Trail/Taylor Park Rd. The San
Geronimo Creek segment of the Project Area is limited to parcels which Marin Water owns or
has easements. These small access areas on San Geronimo Creek are separated by large stretches
the creek that are privately owned.

1.2 Restoration Need

The Lagunitas Creek watershed provides habitat for three State or Federally listed species: coho
salmon (Oncorhynchus kisutch) and California freshwater shrimp (Syncaris pacifica) (listed as
State and Federally Endangered Species) and steelhead (Oncorhynchus mykiss) (listed as a
Federally Threatened Species). Coho sdlmon in particular are a priority target for restoration
efforts; the watershed is listed by California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) as one of
four high priority watersheds for recovery of this species. Coho and steelhead spawning and
rearing in Lagunitas Creek are constrained by Seeger and Peters dams in that they cut off habitat
upstream and that they block the transport of coarse sediment and large wood downstream. As a
result, salmonid habitat is reduced in both quantity and quality, with most spawning occurring in
the Project Area. Overall population of California Central Coast coho salmon has dropped from
40,000-125,000 spawning adult coho (historical estimate) to less than 5,000 (PCI, 2010). The
Plan will address the following Recovery Actions identified in the Central California Coast Coho
Salmon Recovery Plan for Lagunitas Creek (NOAA, 2012):

s LagC-CCC-3.1.1 Improve pool shelter rating

s  LagC-CCC-3.1.3 Improve pool:riffle:flatwater ratio

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan -2 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



1. Introduction

Eagunigafs.ﬁr k
D Waters\he’d’_)

Project Area

oA Project Publicly Owned Lands

Figure 1
Lagunitas Creek Watershed and Study Boundary

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 3 ESA / D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



1. Introduction

LagC-CCC-3.1.4.1 Increase large wood frequency throughout the watershed to improve
conditions for adults, and winter/summer rearing juveniles

LagC-CCC-3.1.4.5 Install structures with multiple logs and root balls because they are more
effective than structures with only one log.

LagC-CCC-9.1.1 Imprdve instream gravel quality and food productivity.

Additionally, the Plan will address recommendations by San Francisco Bay Regional Water
Quality Control Board’s (Water Board) Fine Sediment Reduction and Habitat Enhancement Plan
(page 85), to increase wood loading in Lagunitas Creek to 300 m*ha on public lands, breaking up
glides and runs to create more riffles and pools (Napolitano, 2014).

1.4 Project Goals and Objectives

The habitat enhancement goal of the Plan is to improve adult spawning and juvenile rearing
habitat for coho salmon, in a manner that is as self-sustaining as possible given the location
downstream of a dam (i.e. recognizing that natural hydrographs as well as inputs of coarse
sediment and large wood are limited to those from San Geronimo Creek). Actions that improve
spawning and rearing for coho salmon are expected to also provide benefits for steelhead
spawning and rearing, and other life stages and species.

The Plan’s habitat enhancement goal will be achieved through the following enhancement
objectives (identified through the Restoration Prioritization and Feasibility Assessment tasks):

Add the amount of large wood that results in densities that are appropriate for the system (e.g.
San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board TMDL target of 300 m*ha).

Place large wood in configurations that increase trapping, sorting, and storage of gravel in a
manner that increases the quantity and quality of spawning and rearing habitat.

Add sufficient gravel of suitable sizes for coho and steelhead spawning to overcome a
bedload deficit of around 1,700 tons per year (Stillwater Sciences, 2010) caused by upstream

impoundments.

Reconnect tributaries that contribute large volumes of coarse sediment to the creek relative to
fine sediment.

Avoid or minimize impacts to existing biological, cultural, and recreational resources.

tagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 4 ESA /D202000650
Draft Repeit November 2021



SECTION 2
Literature Review of Existing Conditions

A review of available literature and data was conducted to understand existing habitat conditions
for salmonids within the Project Area. The literature review covered a wide range of topics
including: infrastructure, hydrology, sediment supply, large wood, geomorphology, topography,
geotechnical conditions, hydraulic conditions, salmonid habitat, and restoration completed. The
complete literature review is provided as an attached to this report (Attachment A). The exist data
compiled is presented in field maps in Attachment B. This section provides an overview of the
literature and data review as it directly informs existing conditions and the basis of design.

The existing conditions of Lagunitas Creek downstream of Peters Dam is significantly altered
compared with its historic condition, in ways that impact salmonid habitat across a range of life
stages. The dams on Lagunitas Creek directly cut off a large area of potential spawning and
rearing habitat upstream of Peters Dam. In addition, Peters Dam has greatly reduced the supply of
coarse sediment and large wood downstream. Based on the literature review, some key lessons
regarding existing conditions are the need to raise the density of large wood in Lagunitas Creek to
levels more typical in undisturbed watersheds, the value in trapping coarse sediment to reverse
channel bed incision and create more complex riffle-pool formation, and the need for large wood
structures to be more securely anchored than some previous projects so as to prolong the benefits
of placement.

2.1 Topography

Two topographic (topo) data sets were obtained that cover the Project Area. The first topo data
set is a 2009 Light Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) data set provided by the Marin Municipal
Water District (MMWD). The second topo data set was collected for all or Marin County,
including the Project Area, using LIDAR methods June 13, 14, 21, and 23, 2018. Both data set
units are in US Survey Feet. The horizontal projection of both data sets is State Plane, California
Zone I1I, FIPS Zone 0403, and the horizontal datum is North American Datum of 1983 (NADS3).
The vertical datum is the North American Vertical Datum 1988 (NAVD88). The 2018 LiDAR
topo was obtained at a 1.5-foot grid GeoTiffs hydroflattened bare earth model for use in the 30%
Design (One Tam, 2020). ESA used both topo sets to develop hydraulic models and observed that
the 2018 topo surface appears more accurate at representing riffles and surrounding channel
banks, though does not capture bathymetric data. Neither topo set has been ground-truthed under
the tree canopy near the creek to test for accuracy, so additional survey or at least spot-checking
is recommended for at least the construction access routes prior to commencing the 65% design
phase.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 1 ' ESA /D202000650
Draft Repart November 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

ESA performed detailed topographic and bathymetric surveys of four reaches of Lagunitas Creek
during April to June 2021. The surveys were conducted for habitat suitability modeling as part of
the Lagunitas Creek Instream Flow Study (ESA, 2021) for Marin Water. Four reaches were
chosen to model in detail, focusing on the upper river between Big Bend and Peters Dam where
the majority of salmonid spawning and fry rearing occurs. The four study sites encompass about
one-quarter of the coho and steelhead spawning sites along Lagunitas Creek observed in 2021.
For each of the four sites ESA performed a detailed topographic and bathymetric survey using a
total station. Survey limits ranged from 575 to 800 feet for a combined length of 2,090 feet. The
lateral extent of the survey was typically the edge of the actively scoured winter channel about

2 feet above the water surface elevation at the time of the survey. Approximately 3000
topographic and bathymetric points were surveyed at each site, which were processed in
AutoCAD to create a highly detailed topographic surface for each site. Topographic survey data
for Sites 1, 2 and 3 are reported in arbitrary horizontal and vertical coordinates, in feet. Each of
the three sites are referenced to their own arbitrary coordinates, and should not be compared to
the other sites. At Site 4, topographic survey data are reported in the horizontal coordinate system
NADS3, State Plane Zone 3, Feet and vertical datum NAVDSS, Feet, relative to control points set
by ESA with Real-Time Kinematic GPS (RTK-GPS). Site 4 coordinates are relative to the Leica
SmartNet base station network.

Site 2 detailed topographic survey was used to inform ideal riffle geometry. Site 2, the Canyon
Site, is located 1500 feet upstream of Irving Road Bridge and about 2.5 miles downstream of the
San Geronimo Creek confluence, and is typical of the confined, relatively straight canyon reaches
between the San Geronimo Creck confluence and the upstream end of Camp Taylor. It contains a
series of glides and riffles and has been one of the most heavily used areas for steelhead and coho
spawning in recent years, with 11 coho redds and three steethead redds in WY 2021,

The topography within the project area is generally a steep confined valley with a creek corridor
that is straight and uniform width (KHE, 2013). The valley width widens in the downstream
reaches Project Area providing space for the development of an inset floodplain.

2.2 Hydrology

The watershed area for Lagunitas Creek is 103 mi® at the mouth at Tomales Bay with 38 mi?
above the downstream boundary of the project area in Camp Taylor. The watershed experiences a
Mediterranean climate with cool, wet winters and warm, dry summers. Average annual rainfall in
the headwaters of Lagunitas Creek is 48 inches (MMWD, Lagunitas Lake gage)} with most falling
between November and March. Flows within the project reach come primarily from two sources:
unregulated flow from the 9.4 mi? San Geronimo Creek watershed and regulated flow releases
from the 22 mi? watershed above Kent Lake controlled by Peters Dam. Since 1995, flow releases
from Kent Lake have been regulated by State Board Order 95-17, which requires a summer
minimum baseflow of § cfs (6 ¢fs in a dry year), a winter baseflow of 20-25 cfs between
November and March, stepping down to the summer baseflow over the next two and a half
months (Figure 2). Superimposed on the winter baseflow are three required migration pulses of
at least 35 cfs for 3 days, to trigger salmonid migration and facilitate upstream passage.

Lagunitas Craek Watershed Enhancement Plan 2 : ESA /D202000550
Draft Report November 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

£0 il R
35 . f . . — Noymal Year
Upstream migration
smiy——T] / {pulse) flows. Dry Year
30
25
a5 [
° ]
& 1
v
o i
Y “_: —- ™ The first upatream 16
: a 15 ' migration flow, and the 2
= : inercase in apawning 14
" fiows, would coincide
' with the first storm 22
16 1 batween Hovember 1 and 10
3 1 November 15. : 8
]
& ' 6
g -
a !
| I .
OCcT ROV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUK JUL ALG SEP
Montch
Figure 2

Peters Dam Flow Release Schedule

KHE (2013) investigated the influence of Peters Dam on the hydrology of Lagunitas Creek and
developed a flood frequency curve using the Samuel P. Taylor gage data collected after raising of
Peters Dam in 1982, to estimate the magnitude of different return period flood events (Table 1).
They estimated that the dam has increased the magnitude and duration of flows below 30 cfs and
decreased the magnitude and duration of flows above 30 cfs as well as reduced the magnitude of
any given return period flood event by approximately 50%. In other words, compared to pre-dam
conditions, summer baseflows are higher, annual peak flows are lower, and winter baseflows are
lower. ESA came to similar conclusions using a pair of watershed rainfall-runoff models built in
HEC-HMS; one with existing conditions including dam operations and water supply diversions
from Kent, Alpine, and Bon Tempe Lakes, and a second model that assumed there were no
reservoirs or diversions upstream of S.P. Taylor State Park. Each model was run for characteristic
“type years” that were very wet, average, dry and critically dry. The “with reservoirs and
diversions” scenario had higher baseflow than the “without reservoirs and diversions” scenario
from (depending on the year type) sometime between April and July through the end of the water
year on September 30th. Flow exceedance curves for the different year types show that the
reservoirs reduce the frequency of flows above around 20 cfs and increase the frequency of flows
at and below that value. Reservoir operations increased flows for about half the year in average
water years, rising to two thirds of the year in wet years. Reservoir operations increased flows
from 60 to 80% of the time during dry and critically dry years.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 3 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

TABLE1
LAGUNITAS CREEK FLOW RECURRENCE INTERVALS AT S5.P. TAYLOR STATE PARK USGS GAUGE
Summer | Winter
Baseflow | Baseflow | Q1.01 Q1.5 Q2 Qs Q10 Q25 Q50 Q100
cfs cfs cfs cfs cfs cfs cfs cfs cfs cfs
6-8 20-25 300 1360 1850 3280 4380 5930 7190 8520

SOURCE: KHE, 2014

ESA (2018) performed an ecohydrology analysis for Salmon Protection and Watershed
Network’s (SPAWN) Lagunitas Creek Floodplain and Riparian Enhancement. The analysis was
performed using the Hydrologic Engineering Center Ecosystem Functions Model (HEC-EFM) to
analyze the relationship between flow discharge, frequency and duration during the assumed
winter rearing period of February to May. HEC-EFM performs rule based statistical analyses of a
hydrologic time series. The analysis was performed on the nearest gage, the USGS Samuel P.
Taylor gage (USGS Gage Station 11460400) for the period 12/21/1982 to 01/09/2017. The
analysis calculated statistically significant flows for 2- and 4-week rearing durations. Overall, for
the periods analyzed, key juvenile coho winter rearing flows range anywhere from 20 to 155 cfs,
with a 65 cfs middle range target.

2.3 Hydraulic Conditions

Hydraulic conditions in Lagunitas Creek have been analyzed via two sets of hydraulic models.

ESA (2019) developed a 2D HEC RAS model for SPAWN on Lagunitas Creek from the San
Geronimo Creek confluence to Point Reyes Station to better understand floodplain activation of
winter habitat conditions for Central California Coast Coho Salmon. This model does not capture
channel bathymetry below the low flow water level at the time the LIDAR was flown, meaning it
is not suitable for analyzing detailed hydraulic conditions and habitat suitability at low flows.
However, the model is considered suitable for characterizing reach-scale hydraulic changes and
channel-floodplain connectivity along the creek, as well as the forces acting on large wood
structures at typical design flows. The modeél is described in more detail in Section 5.1. The
model was run for the following winter flow conditions:

e 65 cfs: Avg. 2- and 4-week flow duration for Feb-Mar; mid-range winter flow

e 155 cfs: Max. 2-week flow duration; high-range winter flow

e 200 cfs: high-range winter flow

e 346 cfs: 1.0-year event

e 1570 cfs: 1.5-year event

The modeling found that in the confined conditions of the priority reaches provides very little
readily accessible floodplain area beyond the channel during winter rainfall event-driven flows.

The model also found the confined conditions caused velocities to increase as flow increases,
thereby decreasing winter habitat suitable for coho rearing making it much less suitable winter

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 4. ESA /D202000850
Draft Report November 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

rearing beyond mid-range winter base flows as compared to downstream reaches. Simple actions
that create velocity breaks and hydraulic diversity in confined channels such as adding large
wood are the optimal actions to improve winter rearing conditions in the priority reaches.

ESA developed more detailed 2D HEC RAS models of four heavily used coho spawning reaches
within the project area for Marin Water’s Instream Flow Study (ESA, 2021). These models have
very detailed channel bathymetry within the reaches (each about 500-800 feet long) and were
used to assess habitat suitability for coho and steelhead at a range of winter baseflows. The four
habitat suitability reaches were located between proposed restoration sites (which lack good
existing habitat) so these models cannot be used directly to model conditions in the proposed
restoration sites. However, they shed light on flow conditions at a small scale in reaches that have
relatively good spawning and rearing conditions, providing reference conditions for restoration
planning.

2.4 Sediment Supply and Transport

Notable sediment studies in Lagunitas Creek watershed have been performed by the San
Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) and by Stillwater Sciences, and
by Balance Hydrologics and O’Connor Environmental (OEI) on behalf of Marin Water. A key
finding is that Peters Dam has cut off the majority of the coarse sediment in Lagunitas Creek
within the project reach, while human impacts such as road construction in the unregulated San
Geronimo Creek watershed have accelerated the delivery of fine sediment (Stillwater Sciences,
2010; Napolitano, 2014). This shift in the balance of fine and coarse sediment has reduced the
amount of spawning gravel while, depending on flow conditions in a given water year, often
created embedded conditions that further reduce spawning suitability. The combination of less
coarse and more fine sediment has also increased bed mobility in the creek, leading to scour close
to or to bedrock in the canyon reach (Napolitano, 2014).

Stillwater Sciences (2010) estimated that Peters Dam traps 17,400 tons per year of sediment from
upstream. Assuming that 10% of the total sediment load is bedload (as estimated by Balance
Hydrologics based on their measurements of bedload and suspended load in San Geronimo
Creek) this suggests that Peters Dam traps approximately 1,700 tons of bedload per year. This
volume is the equivalent of adding 3 feet thickness of gravel to the entire bankfull width of the
channel (approximately 50 feet) over a length of 300 feet every year. However, San Geronimo
Creek still contributes a significant load of coarse sediment suitable for salmonid spawning and to
support benthic communities; Stillwater Sciences (2010) estimated that the San Geronimo Creek
watershed contributes 47% (9,400 tons/yr) of the total sediment produced from the unregulated
portion of the Lagunitas Creek watershed (20,100 tons/yr) despite draining only 38% of the
watershed area. The delivery of coarse sediment from San Geronimo Creek is critical to
restoration efforts in the canyon reach of Lagunitas Creek as it supplies some spawning-size
sediment that can potentially be retained by log structures. At the same time, the deficit of coarse
sediment points to the need to supplement large wood structures with additional sediment where
possible, to avoid the risk of structures *cannibalizing’ sediment that would otherwise have been
trapped further downstream.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancemant Pian 5 ESA /D202000850
Oraft Report Neovember 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Cenditions

The size distribution of streambed deposits in Lagunitas Creek between San Geronimo Creek and
Devils Gulch that are both relatively abundant and significantly mobilized during periods of peak
flow can be inferred from monitoring data developed by Balance Hydrologics for the period
1995-2007 (Balance Hydrologics 2008) and by O’Connor Environmental for 2004-2005
(O’Connor Environmental 2006) and 2012-2017 (O’ Connor Environmental 2019). Balance
Hydrologics documented subsurface sediment size distribution in depositional zones between
pools and riffles described as glides; the median diameter of these deposits were typically 5 to

25 mm. O’Connor Environmental monitoring data found that the median diameter of the
streambed surface sediment is about 11-14 mm and median subsurface diameter in spawning
gravel is similar with a 95% confidence interval of about 11 to 17 mm in 2016. The subsurface
median sediment diameter is in the same range as surface median diameter, further suggestive of
relatively high mobility of sediment despite the retention of sediment behind Peters Dam.

The size distribution of bed load sediment in transport in Lagunitas Creek below San Geronimo
Creek is centered on medium gravel (8-16 mm) and generally spans the range from fine to coarse
gravel (4-32 mm). Relevant to this restoration project, these are the sizes of sediment that can be
expected to be retained by large wood structures along with patches of finer sediment (< 4 mm)
that typically occupy up to about 30% of the channel bed. The coarser portion of the sediment
size distribution between about 45 and 256 mm appears relatively stable and insensitive to annual
variation in sediment transport capacity, and may be interpreted to represent the size range of
sediment that is relatively immobile in this reach of Lagunitas Creek. This size range of sediment
(> 45 mm) presumably will comprise bed armor that may develop as a manifestation of the
imbalance between long-term sediment supply and long-term sediment transport capacity.
Sediment sizes that would be expected to accumulate with the addition of large wood to this reach
range from sand to approximately 32 mm, and is centered around 10-15 mm diameter.

2.5 Large Wood

Lagunitas Creek is observed to have a very low wood loading in the project reaches (Stillwater
Sciences, 2010; Napolitano, 2014; OEI, 2019). The lack of wood is due to a combination of
factors including Peters Dam trapping wood from the headwaters, and a history of removing in-
channel wood that only ended in the last few decades. Additionally, confined reaches such as
those upstream of Irving Bridge are highly efficient at transporting wood and store wood for less
time (Ruiz-Villanueva et al., 2016b; Ruiz-Villanueva et al., 2016¢; Kramer and Wohl, 2017).
Reaches in Lagunitas Creek with an inset floodplain store larger volumes of wood than the
confined reaches (Lawrence et al., 2013). However, the confined reaches do have some large
wood in the bankfull channel due past restoration projects. (Lawrence et al., 2013). Forest
management and land use practices have likely diminished natural wood loading in these
confined reaches where large redwoods and other conifers (such as Douglas fir) were delivered
through mass wasting processes such as landslides and debris flows (Lawrence et al., 2013).

The RWQCB {Napolitano, 2014) recommended that Lagunitas Creek should have a large wood
load of around 300 m*ha based on reference conditions in less disturbed watersheds with
comparable ecosystems. By comparison, OEI (2019) and Marin Water surveyed large wood in
Lagunitas Creek between 2012 and 2017 and found it to be between a third and half of the Water

Lagunitas Craek Watershed Enhancement Plan - 6 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

Board target load. In the priority restoration reaches, 20-50% of the large wood has been placed
by past restoration projects (Lawrence et al, 2013). Between the San Geronimo Creek confluence
and Big Bend wood load values were mostly in the zero to 50 or the 50-100 m’/ha class. These
values suggest that, for reaches that currently have no large wood, approximately 10 pieces or
more of large wood would be needed for every 300 feet of channel length to reach target wood
loads. (Large wood is defined as 1.5-2 feet in diameter and 20-30 feet long.) '

2.6 Geomorphology

A reduced supply of coarse sediment and large wood is believed to have triggered channel
incision on the mainstem (Napolitano, 2014), Chanel incision has eroded the former alluvial
channel down to bedrock in some places, and to a shallow gravel bed in others, with several
repercussions for aquatic habitat. Erosion to bedrock removed spawning gravel in many areas,
directly reducing salmonid habitat as well as substrate that supports benthic macro invertebrates
and so the food web for rearing salmonids. Erosion of alluvial gravel also removed or simplified
riftfle and pool forms that support several life stages for salmonids and other species. The
resulting channel incision also reduced access to floodplain areas in the canyon bottom, reducing
the area of winter high flow refugia for juvenile salmonids. Pools that do exist are likely a result
of the large wood structures placed by past restoration projects (Lawrence et al., 2013).

During field reconnaissance by ESA and Marin Water, the project area from Peters Dam down to
mile 10 was found to contain multiple long glides and few riffle-pool units. This not considered a
naturally-occurring condition, since the average bed slope of 0.4% is within the gradient range for
both free formed riffle-pool morphology (approximately 0.1 to 1.5%) and riffle-pool morphology
forced by high densities of large wood (up to approximately 3%) (Montgomery and Buffington,
1997). A lack of coarse sediment supply and highly confined conditions may impede the
development of prominent alternate bars and associated free formed riffle-pool morphology as
evidenced by the extensive glides with shallow gravel and bare bedrock beds. Low valley
alignment curvature in this reach starves the channel of a riffle-pool forcing agent as pronounced
bends imposed on the channel by the valley could otherwise yield secondary flows that help
maintain riffle-pool morphology (Thompson, 1986). Several constructed large wood structures
and bedrock outcrops in this reach demonstrate the ability of local forcing agents to induce riffle-
pool morphology in spite of the valley topography by creating zones of flow acceleration and
deceleration that scour and deposit sediment, respectively, but large wood density is overall low
in this reach and is partially responsible for the scarcity of riffle-pool units.

2.7 Geotechnical Conditions

It is expected the underlying geotechnical conditions, particularly within the stream corridor, are
predominantly shallow bedrock. Several studies have observed the active channel throughout the
Project Area contains bedrock expressions (KHE, 2013; OEIL 2015; ESA, 2016). Streambed facies
mapping perfermed by O’ Cennor Environmental Inc. (OEI) throughout Lagunitas Creek and San
Geronimo Creek that found a significant portion of the streambed within the Project Area consists
of bedrock (OEIL 2015). The presence of shallow bedrock on the bed and banks is an important

Lagunitas Creek Enhancament Plan 7 © ESA /D202000650
Draft Report Novambar 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

design consideration for the placement of large wood structures in Lagunitas Creek, since it greatly
limits the degree to which burial or keying in of logs can be used to stabilize structures.

2.8 Salmonid Habitat

Generally, adult salmonids enter the Lagunitas Creek watershed from Tomales Bay and travel up
to the Project Reaches in the late fall and winter (concentrated in October through February) after
storm events. Depending on precipitation, adults may arrive in late November or December to
spawn. Juvenile coho and steelhead typically spend more than a year in their natal creek,
overwintering the year following their hatching. Juvenile rearing is an important life stage
distinction to consider in addition to passage when developing salmonid enhancement designs.
Since rearing habitat has been identified as a limiting factor to the survival of coho in the
Lagunitas Creek watershed (Stillwater Sciences, 2008), its expansion should provide a significant
benefit to these species.

Juvenile coho salmon generally smolt at age 1+, spending at least one summer and winter in fresh
water prior to outmigrating to the sea (Stillwater, 2008). Emergence occurs as early as February
(Stillwater, 2008). Over the winter rearing/refuge habitat is limiting do to a lack of places to
escape high winter velocities that can displace juvenile coho (Stillwater, 2008). High velocities in
spring are an issue as well, with rain events that can occur through May (Stillwater, 2008). While
coho will rear in San Geronimo Creek year-round, trapping data shows most emigration occurs
by June (Stillwater, 2008).

Steelhead trout have a slightly different life history from coho salmon. Steelhead fry generally
hatch later in the spring and spend anywhere between one and two years in the stream before
undergoing the smolting process and migrate to the ocean. Steelhead generally spend anywhere
from six months to two years in the ocean before migrating upstream to spawn.

Winter salmonid rearing habitat is most productive when it includes diverse channel morphology
and plenty of cover, so that under different flow conditions there are different potential refuges.
In particular, winter habitat benefits from the presence of pools, large wood, and floodplain areas
that are well connected to the main channel so that fish can move out of fast flowing water during
floods.

Stillwater Sciences (2008) conducted a Limiting Factors Analysis (LFA) for coho and steelhead
in Lagunitas Creek, and Marin Water informally evaluates limiting conditions annually in
response to changing ocean and watershed conditions. For both coho and steelhead, spawning or
larval survival/emergence are not believed to be limiting factors in most years, because redd
superimposition is rare (indicating that there is usually more spawning area available than
demand from adult spawners} and because experiments have shown larval emergence levels that
are considered typical-to-good in most years. There have however been some years where
steelhead redds or late season coho redds are superimposed on coho redds produced earlier in the
spawning season. By contrast to spawning and emergence, the number of 1+ year juvenile
salmonids appears to be low in many years, even following years where the 0+ year population

Lagunitas Creek Watershad Enhancement Plan 8 ' ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



2. Literaiure Review of Existing Conditicns

was estimated to be relatively high. This discrepancy highlights winter and spring rearing as
likely limiting factors in most years.

For coho, lack of suitable winter rearing habitat was found to be the most likely factor limiting
the population. A secondary factor was a general lack of high velocity refugia for several life
stages, especially fry rearing during March/April when fry can be involuntarily entrained and
displaced. While there is less data on steelhead limiting factors than coho, it appeared likely that
lack of winter rearing habitat was also the most probable explanation for the low observed
number of 1+ year steelhead.

It should be noted that limiting factors can vary from year to year in response to changing cohort
size, watershed conditions and climate change, and that there i{s great value in developing
restoration actions that benefit multiple life stages to ensure that the creek is resilient across a
range of conditions. Channel incision and confinement, the lack of large wood for cover, lack of
channel complexity, and the high ratio of fine to coarse sediment were highlighted by several
studies as factors that limit multiple life stages of salmonid habitat,

2.9 Previous Restoration Work

Most previous restoration actions in the Project Area have focused on adding large wood, with
approximately 40 sites constructed by 2011 (MMWD, 2011). Through all of Lagunitas Creek Marin
Water has constructed over 60 large wood structures since 1997. Much of the large wood currently
found (as surveyed by O'Connor Environmental Inc.) was placed by Marin Water, SPAWN, and
Marin Rescurce Conservation District during restoration projects (OEI, 2015). Balance Hydrologics
(2008) summarized the influence of forty-three large wood installations implemented by Marin
Water to improve habitat conditions over the period 1998-2006, 40 of which were placed upstream
of Devils Gulch. Balance Hydrologics also noted substantial natural recruitment of large wood,
primarily in the form of limbs and trunks of deciduous trees near the channel. Large wood was
observed to interact with the streambed and with other large wood and to create microhabitats and
fiow complexity believed beneficial to salmonids. Large wood was observed to be dynamic with
changes occurring year-to-year and storm-to-storm in some cases; the movement of large wood
during periods of high flow is suspected to cause transient scour and deposition of bed sediment.

Research by Marin Water has shown that wood enhancement has been effective in increasing
habitat. For example, channel bathymetric surveys have shown placed logs to greatly increase
channel complexity and specifically to create deep scour pools in areas that were previously
glides or runs, Structures that spanned the whole channel or that constricted it from both sides
were found to be most effective at creating scour pools, while smaller structures were found to be
less effective (MMWD, 2017). Following implementation of large wood placement projects,
snorkel surveys found that coho juvenile densities doubled in restored areas. Over the study
period 2006-2015 coho fry and smolt survival both also increased approximately in proportion to
the increase in wood loading, though it is recognized that there are many factors influencing
survival (MMWD, 2017). These studies in Lagunitas Creek, and similar findings from creeks
elsewhere on the West Coast, suggest that increasing wood loading will have a beneficial effect
on coho and steelhead populations.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 9 . ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

At the same time, many of the constructed log structures have become displaced by high flows,
often because of the presence of shallow bedrock (making anchoring and embedding logs
challenging) or because rock ballast was insufficient to stabilize logs. Compared to more alluvial
creeks where log structures can be keyed into the banks or driven into a deeper channel bed, the
shallow bedrock conditions of Lagunitas Creek upstream of Big Bend is a challenging
environment for large wood placement and retention. For several large wood structure
installations, stabilizing means were limited to attaching boulders. As the OEI (2015) report
states, it appears that a substantial proportion of the large wood installations from 1998-2006
have been removed or reduced by flood flows, and that natural large wood recruitment from
surrounding forest stands is insufficient to maintain or improve large wood load. Assessments by
Marin Water found several constructed large wood structures have rotated, moved short distances
downstream, or have completely washed away. Marin Water documented three low-profile
staggered wood structures like the one shown in Figure 3a that rotated or moved a short distance
during moderate peak flows ranging between 2,360 cfs and 4,390 cfs, within the range of 2- and
S-year events (Table 1). During an extremely large peak flow of 10,000 cfs, >100-year event
(Table 1), Marin Water documented two high-profile obstruction wood structures such as the one
shown in Figure 3b that washed away. Additionally, during this extremely large event two low-
profile wood structures were also documented as having rotated or moved a small distance, but
not completely washing away. Marin Water estimated that low-profile staggered wood structures
(Figure 3a) had about 3-6 tons of boulders attached per log, while the high-profile obstruction
wood structures had about 5-6 tons of boulders attached per log.

Figure 3a
Low-Profile Staggered Wood Structure
Installed in the Project Area by Marin Water in 2001

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 10 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

Figure 3b
High-Profile Obstruction Wood Structure
Installed in the Project Area by Marin Water in 2001

In addition to large wood placement there have been a series of efforts to improve the volume and
composition of channel bed sediment. Marin Water has also conducted some gravel
augmentation, with creek gravel placed directly into Lagunitas Creek between Peters Dam and
Shafter Bridge. This effort was described in the Lagunitas Creek Stewardship Plan (MMWD,
2011) as fairly limited and only somewhat successful.

Efforts to reduce fine sediment input into Lagunitas Creek have including repairing and replacing
culverts on the Cross Marin Trail in Samuel P. Taylor State Park with rolling dips, critical dips,
and install armored fill crossings (MMWD, 2011).

2.9.1 Lessons Learned

The Marin Water data, while not a quantitative force-balance analysis, provides a valuable line of
‘real world’ field evidence on the need for a substantial amount of ballast on log structures in the
canyon reach of Lagunitas Creek, especially for those that have a high profile within the creek
flow path. Several of the low-profile staggered wood structures installed by Marin Water moved
for a full range of moderate to extremely large flows but did not fully wash away. While the two
of the high-profile obstruction wood structures held up to the more moderate, and geomorphically
significant flows, but then completely washed away during the extremely large peak flow.
Additionally, it seems 6 tons of boulders was adequate in keeping the low-profile staggered wood
structures but not the high-profile obstruction wood structures from washing away during an
extremely large event.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 11 ESA / D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



2, Literature Review of Existing Conditions

2.10 Infrastructure

Infrastructure is an important consideration in assessing project feasibility, site footprints,
construction access and the need to avoid impacting steep banks and bridges downstream of
habitat restoration sites. Infrastructure has also influenced existing conditions in the creek by
affecting the flows, sediment supply and sediment size distribution.

There are three instream dams on Lagunitas Creek upstream of the project reach that are operated
by Marin Water for water supply; Peters Dam immediately upstream detains Kent Lake, while
Alpine and Bon Tempe Lake detain flows further upstream. Nicasio Reservoir is located on
Nicasio Creek, which joins Lagunitas Creek downstream of the project reach. There is a small
privately owned dam on Devils Gulch, just before the downstream limit of the project reach.

There are 598 miles of roads within the entire Lagunitas Creek watershed consisting of 430 miles
of unpaved roads and 168 miles of paved roads (MMWD, 2011). More than half of the unpaved
roads are publicly owned and/or maintained by Marin Water, National Park Service, California
State Parks, the County of Marin, Marin County Open Space District, and Marin County
Resource Conservation District to minimize the amount of sediment entering the streams
(MMWD, 2011). Marin Water is responsible for the maintenance and management of the
following unpaved roads on their property: Shafter Grade runs along the west side of Lagunitas
Creek from Shafter Bridge to Bolinas Ridge; Peters Dam Road runs along the east side of
Lagunitas Creek from Shafter Bridge up onto Peters Dam (MMWD, 2011). Sir Francis Drake
Boulevard is the main paved road that runs through the Project Area, typically adjacent Lagunitas
Creek upstream to Shafter Bridge, then adjacent to San Geronimo Creek from Shafter Bridge to
Woodacre. Additionally, the Cross Marin Trail runs adjacent to Lagunitas Creek the length of the
Project Area, typically on the opposite side of Sir Francis Drake.

There are nine existing bridges on Lagunitas Creek from Peter’s Dam to Tomales Bay. Marin
Water collected details regarding bridge dimensions for the nine bridges (Table 2). Additional
details for the seven public bridges were obtained from the Federal Highway Administration
FHWA National Bridge Inventory database (Table 2). For more bridge details see Attachment D.

In addition to the bridges on Lagunitas Creek, within the Project Area there are several bridges that
cross San Geronimo Creek and Devils Gulch Creek. Also, there are numerous culverts throughout
the Project Area that connect named and unnamed drainages to Lagunitas Creek and San Geronimo
Creek, many of which beneath Sir Francis Drake Boulevard and the Cross Marin Trail.

Marin Water routes raw water through their Nicasio Transmission Pipeline from Nicasio
Reservoir to the San Geronimo Treatment Plant in Woodacre with help from the Lagunitas
Booster Station (MMWD, 2011). The 33-inch water transmission pipeline runs under Lagunitas
Creek, then beneath the old railroad grade/Cross Marin Trail to the Inkwells Bridge, where it
joins with the pipeline from Kent Lake and continues along Sir Francis Drake Boulevard to the
San Geronimo Treatment Plant. Along the way the pipeline crosses several named and unnamed
streams, including San Geronimo Creek at several locations in town of Lagunitas. There are also
several valves along the water pipe can drain segments of the transmission lines.

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan ' 12 ESA /D202000650
Draft Raport November 2021



2. Literalure Review of Existing Conditions

TABLE 2
ExiSTING LAGUNITAS CREEK BRIDGES
Max Total
River | Height! | Length' Year Bridge Rating?
Bridge Mile {ft) () Owner? Built? | Condition? | (US tons)
Shafter 11.3 24 74 County Highways | 1982 Good 332
Irving 10 22 53 County Highways | 1929 Fair 36.8
Crass Marin Trail (Camp Taylor) 9.8 35 83 State Parks
Camp Taylor 9.2 23 117 State Parks 1947 Fair 247
Swimming Hole 8 29 108 State Parks 1947 Fair 19.3
Sir Francis Drake (Tocaloma) 5.8 3z 187 County Highways | 1964 Paoor 383
Cross Marin Trail (Tocaloma) 5.8 21 154 National Parks 1927 Poor 14
Gallagher Ranch 2.3 81 Private
Highway 1 (Point Reyes Station) 0 198 125 State Highways 1929 Poor 371

NOTES:

1. Inventory conducted July 2021 by Jaclyn Sherman and Annabelle Howe (Marin Water - Watershed Stewards Program Members).
Max height measured from bottom of bridge deck to streambed. Total width measured between abutments.

2, Federal Highway Adminisfration FHWA National Bridge Inventory

Other noteworthy infrastructure includes overhead powerlines, water service pipe, and sanitary
sewer pipes along portions of Cross Marin Trail within Samuel P. Taylor State Park, as well as
overhead powerlines along Peters Dam Road. Several of these features are potential construction
access considerations and will need to be located during later design stages.

Lagunitas Greek Enhangement Plan 13 ESA f D202000650
Draft Report Novamber 2021



2. Literature Review of Existing Conditions

This page intentionally left blank

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 14 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



SECTION 3
Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

This section describes the Plan’s prioritization process including the restoration opportunities
analysis and design basis for all proposed enhancement actions. The restoration opportunities
analysis included identifying priority reaches, potential restoration sites, and recommended
enhancement actions. A total of thirteen restoration sites were selected across two identified
priority reaches. For these thirteen restoration sites, three key enhancement actions are proposed:

o Riffle-Pool-Wood Structures: adding instream large wood and gravel to create complex self-
maintaining riffle-pool-wood habitat structure with cover

o Gravel Augmentation: regularly adding coarse sediment to account a deficit downstream of
Peters Dam

e Tributary Confluence Modification: modifying tributary confluences with the mainstem to
improve coarse sediment conveyance from tributaries to the mainstem

For each of these enhancement actions, the design basis, including approach and criteria, is
described in detail in this section.

3.1 Restoration Opportunities Analysis

Upon review of available literature and data, several field reconnaissance visits were made
covering the entire project area to identify two priority reaches. The initial field reconnaissance
visits included biologists, fluvial geomorphologists, and restoration designers from Marin Water
and ESA. Later reconnaissance visits included staff from the San Francisco Bay Regional Water
Quality Control Board (Water Board) and California Department of Fish and Wildlife. The
background for the field reconnaissance was provided through the review of available literature
and data. Field maps were developed from available data to support the field reconnaissance
(Attachment B).

From the initial field reconnaissance, several San Geronimo Creek reaches were determined to be
low priority because opportunities were considered to be small relative to the constraints. Most of
the San Geronimo Creek within the Project Area is on private land. Of the locations where Marin
Water has easements, many of the sites were assessed as having good existing creek conditions.
At the few Marin Water easement locations where limited restoration opportunities exist,
significant site constraints were identified such as insufficient access.

Lagunitas Craek Enhancement Plan 15 : E5A /D202000850
Draft Repart November 2021



3. Restoration Pricritization and Basis of Deslgn

Based on the restoration opportunities analysis, in consultation with the Lagunitas Creek
Technical Advisory Committee (Lagunitas TAC) and the Water Board, Marin Water and ESA
identified two priority reaches:

¢ Priority Reach !: Irving Bridge upstream to the Leo T. Cronin Fish Viewing Area to the
upstream

e Priority Reach 2: Camp Swimming Hole Bridge upstream to Cross Marin Trail Bridge
(Camp Taylor)

3.1.1 Priority Reach and Enhancement Site Selection

Within the two priority reaches thirteen potential restoration sites were selected, of which ten
were instream habitat restoration sites, one was a tributary confluence modification that included
some instream restoration, and two were potential gravel injection sites. Sites were grouped into
potential construction phases based on their relative priority. Preference was given to sites that
provided more area of restored creek relative to the access constraints. The recommended sites
and their phasing are listed in Table 3 and location shown in Figure 4. Sites were prioritized as
either Phase 1 sites, recommended to be immediately advanced for implementation as part a
single project, and Phase 2 sites, to be implemented as part of one or more subsequent projects.

TABLE 3
LIST OF SELECTED RESTORATION SITES

Site Logs Gravel

Priority Length Added Added

Site | Enhancement Action Ranking (ft) (#) (tons)
1 Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure Phase 2 250 9 651
2 Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure Phase 1 400 26 733
3 Riffle-Pool-Woad Structure Phase 1 550 39 950
4 Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure Phase 1 400 26 765
5 Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure Phase 1 350 26 708
6 Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure Phase 1 550 39 1025
7 Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure Phase 2 450 26 845
8 | Tebusry Gonfuence Modlfoation Phase 2 160 10 a02
9 | Riffie-Pool-Wood Structure Phase 2 350 26 768
10 | Pool-Wood Structure Phase 2 200 12 184
11 | Rifflte-Pool-Wood Structure Phase 2 550 39 1161
12 | Gravel Augmentation Phase 1 150 0 1000
13 | Gravel Augmentation Phase 1 100 0 700
Phase 1 Subtotal 2500 156 5698
Phase 2 Subtotal 1950 122 4011
TOTAL 4450 278 9892

tagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Flan 16 : ESA /D202000650

DOraft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

RM 7.5
.

‘ AN
: B
Big Bend. @
Swimming Hole' M 5

Cross Marin Trail (SPT)

Camp Taylor .
RM 10 &
: A
Irving \ .«}.
Q..
S % &
AU 10N o B
‘ N
\ % J
)' |
w
o~ ‘m« i
) I 4
F A
' W72
| 0 2,000
— T — ot « Shafter
‘F«’M 115 |
T L
= Priority Reaches

Selected Sites : Peters Dam
O srigge )

® River Mile

Figure 4
Priority Reaches and Proposed Sites

For each potential site a conceptual design sketch was developed, along with an opportunities and
constraints sheet (Attachment D). Potential constraints included construction access challenges
and the presence of known cultural or biological resources.

3.1.1.1 Riffle-Pool-Wood Sites

Eleven sites were selected for Riffle-Pool-Wood Structures. These sites were identified for Riffle-
Pool-Wood Structures because they contained long homogenous glides or pools that lacked
existing spawning habitat and cover in the form of large wood or overhanging vegetation.
Potential site boundaries were located to avoid areas of good existing spawning or rearing habitat,

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 17 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restaration Prigritization and Basis of Design

though a few sites contain small areas of good quality habitat separated by long area of poor
habitat. (Good spawning habitat was generally characterized by bed morphology and historic
records of redds.) The instream sites mostly ranged from 250 to 550 feet long, with one about
150 foot long, for a cumulative length of 4200 linear feet. Some potential sites were considered
but not selected because of likely construction access challenges (e.g. known cultural resources)
or for sites which would have been very close to Sir Francis Drake Boulevard and carried a risk
of deflecting flows against steep banks.

Phasing priority for individual sites was determined based on the balance of opportunities and
constraints. Sites 2-6 and 12-13 were prioritized as Phase 1 sites due to their relatively long
footprint and ease of access, meaning that a relatively large area of creek could be enhanced with
a relatively small temporary impact due to staging and construction access. Sites I and 7-11 are
still considered worthwhile for restoration in Phase 2, especially if the Marin Water wishes to
complete as smaller projects but would have a lower ratio of benefit to temporary construction
impact than the Phase 1 sites.

Site 1 is located immediately upstream of Shafter Bridge and the San Geronimo Creek confluence.
This site does not have the full range of natural flows that are found downstream, and gravel placed
here would only mobilize during high flows when Peters Dam overtops and spills (typically every
1-2 years). Gravel placed at this site would be mobilized less frequently than from sites downstream
of the confluence with San Geronimo Creek. A consideration for this site is the risk of channel
dewatering, since flows from Peters Dam can be reduced to as low as 2 cfs in the winter when flows
from San Geronimo Creek are high enough to meet the Marin Water’s instream flow requirements.
However, the downstream most 1-200 feet of Lagunitas Creek backwaters from San Geronimo
Creek under these flow conditions, and so is considered a low risk for dewatering. In addition to
directly placing gravel in the channel prior to winter flows, gravel could potentially be sluiced into
Lagunitas Creek directly under Shafter Bridge during high flows, to mobilize downstream

3.1.1.2 Gravel Augmentation Sites

Two Gravel Augmentation sites were selected, in addition to placement of gravel at all the Riffle-
Pool-Wood Structures sites. Potential Gravel Augmentation sites were sought out at the upstream
end of the project reach so that gravel could be mobilized to benefit as much downsiream habitat
as possible, including the Riffie-Pool-Wood Structures sites. Site 12 is immediately downstream
of the San Geronimo Creek confluence, which provides the greatest potential flow for mobilizing
gravel and almost the maximum benefit from the length over which gravel might be trapped into
habitat features. Site 12 is about 150 feet in length. Site 13 is just downstream of Site 12 to
provide additional 100 feet in space needed to add the amount of gravel that meets the
enhancement objectives.

3.1.1.3 Tributary Confluence Sites

Two tributary confluence sites were examined, and one was selected for enhancement. The
selected site is where Wildcat Canyon joins Lagunitas Creek in Samuel P. Taylor State Park.
Wildcat Canyon is separated from Lagunitas Creek by the Cross Marin Trail and the Marin Water

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan : 18 ESA / D202000650
Draft Report Noverber 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

Transmission Pipeline. Water from Wildcat Canyon is meant to be conveyed through an
undersized hanging culvert that runs beneath the Cross Marin Trail and discharges down onto a
riprap bank. Upstream of the culvert is a sediment basin that traps incoming sediment.

A second site was considered but rejected at the confluence between Lagunitas Creek and San
Geronimo Creek. This was rejected as a potential restoration site because of constraints including
Shafter Bridge, the proximity of Sir Francis Drake Boulevard and the popular swimming area at
the Ink Wells.

3.2 Enhancement Actions Basis of Design

The Restoration Opportunities Analysis found the Plan’s habitat enhancement goal can be
accomplished by converting poor quality glide habitat at many of the selected sites within the
priority reaches into high quality self-sustaining riffte-pool habitat through the addition of large
wood and coarse sediment (gravel). In order support self-sustaining riffle-pool habitat,
Restoration Opportunities Analysis also found a supply of coarse sediment is needed. It was
determined this can be accomplished through augmenting the coarse sediment deficit caused by
the upstream Peters Dam though placement of gravel, and with modifying the Wildcat Canyon
confluence with Lagunitas Creek to improve coarse sediment conveyance from the tributary.
Thus, the three key enhancement actions identified Restoration Opportunities Analysis were
Riffle-Pool-Wood Structures, Gravel Augmentation, and Tributary Confluence Modification.

3.2.1 Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure

Basis of the Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure design (Figure 5) is to meet the enhancement objectives:

¢ Adding the amount of large wood that results in densities greater than Water Board’s TMDL
target of 300 m*/ha,

¢ Placing wood in configurations that increases trapping, sorting, and storage of gravel in a
manner that increases the quantity and quality of spawning and rearing.

3.2.1.1 Design Approach

The design approach for the Riffle-Pool-Wood Structures is to use the following combination of
large wood and gravel structures to create complex self-maintaining riffle-pool habitat:

» Riffle Forcing Wood Structure: a series of two logs with rootwads that extend laterally from
opposing banks to trap coarse bedload and force the formation of a riffle.

» Riffle Gravel: Spawning sized gravel placed upstream of the Riffle Forcing Wood Structure
to “jump start” riffle formation.

e Pool Habitat Wood Structure: altemating series of three logs add in the pool created upstream
of the Riffle Forcing Wood Structure to provide cover and promote complexity through local
scour and downstream sediment sorting and storage (includes gravel placed downstream to
“jump start” bar formation).

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 19 ESA /202000650
Draft Report Navember 2021



RFFLE FORCRIG
} WOOU STRUCTURE

l e RIEFLE GRAVEL STRUGTURE oo —  POCL MABTAT WOOD STRUCTURE, TYP  ——.

LVE POLE PLANTING '

TYPICAL RIFFLE-POOL-WOOD STRUCTURE
PLAN WEW

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan - D202000650.00
Figure 5

Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure

Design Detail

LESA



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

Collectively the Riffle-Pool-Wood Structures are intended to:

¢ Convert long reaches of homogeneous glide or pool into shorter, more numerous, riffles
and pools. Bratovich and Kelley (1988) showed that 90% of coho redds in Lagunitas Creek
are located on pool or glide tails located within 25 feet upstream of a riffle crest, so creating
additional riffles should increase the available salmonid spawning area. Creating shorter but
more heterogeneous and deeper pools with greater cover is expected to create higher value
summer and winter salmonid rearing habitat than the existing long glides and pools.

s Trap gravel that currently is transported through sites, partially reversing channel
incision and creating suitable habitat for coho and steelhead spawning, and winter
refugia. Fieldwork in Lagunitas Creek has shown that large, channel-spanning wood
structures and their natural analogues can trap bedload and create riffles upstream, creating
salmonid spawning habitat, and fry rearing habitat. Furthermore, partially reversing incision
by depositing coarse sediment increases the connectivity of the bankfull channel to
surrounding floodplain areas, alcoves and velocity refugia at high flows. Finally, creating a
thicker gravel bed over areas of bedrock or shallow gravel will allow for deeper pools to be
scoured locally within those deposits, creating better winter and summer rearing habitat.

e Increase the total coarse sediment loading in the creek. Adding gravel will provide an
immediate local benefit, and a longer term benefit as gravel is transported downstream to
other spawning and rearing areas. It will partially offset the trapping of gravel by Peters Dam,
and will improve the ratio of coarse to fine sediment in the creek.

¢ Create cover and scour pools. Several studies have shown that spawning is more likely
where there is cover near to the potential spawning site, and that Lagunitas Creek has much
less wood than reference conditions. Large wood structures in pools and near spawning riffles
should provide shelter, and should also create local scour pools that support salmonid rearing,
including deeper pools that provide winter velocity refugia and summer thermal refugia.

¢  Add hydraulic heterogeneity, creating micre habitats. Increased wood loading is likely to
break up homogeneous hydraulic conditions, sorting bed sediment and creating micro
habitats that benefit salmonids and other aquatic species.

s Provide a direct source of nutrients into the aquatic wood web by adding large wood.

3.21.2 General Design Criteria

The Riffie-Pool-Wood Structure design is based largely on functioning existing riffles-pools and
large wood (natural and engineered) features found in Lagunitas Creek,

Prior Restoration Projects

Several large wood structures that have been constructed over the past couple decades by
Marin Water within the priority reaches. Observations of the performance of these structures
helped inform the current design. Specific large wood configurations, logs with rootwads on
opposing banks constricting flow, were found to effectively and naturally covert glides to riffles
(Figures 6a-b). The design of the Riffie Forcing Wood Structures was informed by these
specific functioning wood structures. Other large wood structures constructed by Marin Water,

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 21 : ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Pricritization and Basis of Design

which extend from just one bank, provide cover while promoting course sediment deposition
(Figures 8a-b).

General Risk Assessment and Safety Factors

Placing large wood in Lagunitas Creek poses an indirect risk to existing infrastructure, most
notably the nine bridges within and/or downstream of the Project Area. To reduce risk, the large
wood structures are engineered to resist specific types of movement. The criteria for resistance to
movement is expressed as a combination of target design floods and associated factor of safety.
The factor of safety is the ratio of net stabilizing force to net destabilizing force and typically
ranges from 1 to 2 depending on risk and uncertainty. There are four factors of safety critical for
large wood design: resistance to flotation, overturning, sliding, and rotation. The memorandum
entitled “Large Wood Risk to Lagunitas Creek Bridges to Inform Design Criteria” (Large Wood
Risk memo} was prepared to examine various aspects of the risk and uncertainty in Lagunitas
Creck. During the future 60% design stage, this Large Wood Risk memo (Attachment D) is
intended to inform Marin Water’s and State Parks’ selection of the appropriate factor of
safety for the wood structures.

Wood Structure Stabilization

Various stabilization methods were considered, The lack of adjacent floodplain and presence of
shallow bedrock in many reaches means that keying logs into the bed and banks is less viable in
the canyon reach of Lagunitas Creek (from Camp Taylor upstream) than in the more alluvial
channels downstream. While previous Marin Water restoration projects have opportunistically
wedged logs into existing trees to provide stability, there are limited locations where this
approach can be used given the goal of greatly increasing the number and spatial density of log
structures in this current project. As a result, logs will need to be ballasted by attaching multiple
boulders using rust-resistant pins and high strength epoxy. Chaing may also be considered.

Cables will not be used due to their potential to fray and break from the vibration of water. Also
logs will not be attached to each other so that if one log moves, it will not affect the other logs.
Knutson and Fealko (2014) noted that when multiple logs are attached together, if one log fails, it
has the potential to take the remaining logs with it, causing a catastrophic failure. Logs chained or
cabled together can float downstream as large mass and have a much higher likelihood of getting
stuck on a bridge or other infrastructure than individual logs (Knutson and Fealko, 2014).

Riffle-Pool Dimensions

To inform the dimensions and spacing of riffle-pool features, ESA utilized a high resolution
survey of four reaches of Lagunitas Creek within the project area. The survey was conducted by
ESA for Marin Water as part of the Lagunitas Creek Instream Flow Study (ESA 2021). The
survey covered areas in Lagunitas Creek where 20-25% of coho spawning in the mainstem of
Lagunitas Creek has occurred in recent years. The spacing and dimensions of several riffles and
pools were assessed from the surveys, and are summarized in Table 4. These dimensions and
spacing will be used to inform the Riffle-Pool-Wood design.

" Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 22 : ESA f D202000850
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

TABLE 4
LAGUNITAS CREEK — TYPICAL SPAWNING RIFFLE DIMENSIONS (ESA, 2021)
Parameter Typical Dimensions
Riffle Length 60-80 feet
Riffla Height : 1-2 feet
Pool Length 120-170 feet
Bankfull Channel Width 40 - 50 feet

SOURCE: ESA, 2021

3.2.1.3 Design Criteria by Element

Riffle Forcing Wood Structure

These structures are designed to intrude into the channel from both banks and constrict flow
sufficiently to create a backwater that traps bedload and maintains a riffle upstream while creating
a jet that scours a pool downstream. Previous studies (see Literature Review) and field
cbservations by the project team of existing log structures and natural log jams in Lagunitas
Creck (Figures 6a-b) suggest that they should block at least 75% of the bankfull channel width.
To induce gravel deposition, these structures are designed to have a significant hydraulic effect
on flows that transport gravel (estimated to be from 1600 cfs upwards). Consequently, these
structures are designed to be large, and will consist of four (4) 24-inch diameter logs, placed as
follows:

» Two logs will project from each side of the channel, angled slightly.

e The two upsiream opposing logs will be 20-30 feet long (depending on overbank space and
hill slopes) and sit about 3-4 feet above the existing bed.

» The two downstream logs will be about 16 feet long and sit on the existing bed to block
sediment from moving beneath the upstream logs.

Unplanned movement of these strctures (e.g. reorientation during high flows) is likely to

reduce their gravel trapping function. These larger logs may also pose a potential risk to
downstream bridge if they are to be entrained, transported, and deposited against abridge pier
(see Attachment D). Thus, the Riffle Forcing Wood Structure should be designed to have a
relatively high factor of safety for relatively large design flows. These structures are similar to the
high-profile obstruction wood structure constructed by Marin Water shown in Figure 3b that

with 5-6 tons of boulders held up to moderate flows but washed away during a flow exceeding
the 100-year event.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 23 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2024



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

Figure 6a
Functioning Riffle Forcing Wood Structure in Lagunitas Creek

Figure 6b
Functioning Riffle Forcing Wood Structure in Lagunitas Creek

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 24 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

Riffle Gravel

While the log structures are intended to trap gravel that is currently transported through the
reaches, additional riffle gravel will be placed directly in each log complex during construction to
“jump start” the process and to avoid interrupting gravel transport to existing habitat downstream
of the complexes. Gravel will be placed across the entire width of the channel upstream of the
channel constricting Riffle Forcing Wood Structures. General dimensions for gravel placement
were derived from ESA’s measurements of the Lagunitas Creek reference reach where coho
spawning is commonly observed (see Table 4 and Figure 7).

Thalweg Profile (Upstream to Downstream)

100
RIFFLE
CREST
BACKWATER POOL L T
99
i ok
= 1 RIFFLE
o ' RIFFLE
z 98 ! | J CHEST CREST
E f L BACKWATER POOL BACKWATER POOL
-
2 : z
I ! i
x 97 : ¥ i
w i 1 ‘ i
| MIPRLE _RIFFLE | Z
i I f 2 ;
96 :
Riffle Length = 60-80 feet i
Max Riffle Drop = 1.5 feet -
Backwater Pool Length = 120-170 feet
95
0 100 200 300 400 500 600

Distance (ft)

‘ Figure 7
Lagunitas Creek Reference Reach Profile for Riffle-Pool Measurements

The basic design criteria for Riffle Gravel are summarized in Table 5. Gravel will be sized based
on Bratovitch and Kelley’s (1988) study of gravel adjacent to coho redds in the mainstem of
Lagunitas Creek. Gravel will be sloped gently from the crest upstream to the existing channel bed
over a distance of at least 25 feet to form the pool tail, consistent with Bratovich and Kelley’s
observation that around 90% of coho spawning in Lagunitas Creek occurs in the area 25 feet
upstream of the riffle crest.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 25 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and 8asis of Design

TABLE 5§
DESIGN CRITERIA FOR RIFFLE GRAVEL

Parameter Typical Dimensions Source
Riffle Length 60-80 feet ESA, 2021
Maximum Water Surface Drop 1.5 feet ESA, 2021
Spacing Create pooals 120-170 feetin length ESA, 2021
Riffle Width Bankfull Width (approx 40 — 50 ft) ESA, 2021

D16 = 2-23mm Bratovich and Kelley, 1988
Gravel Size D50 = 8-45 mm

D84 = 23-64mm

Pool Habitat Wood Structure

These structures will be located in the pool upstream of the Riffle Forcing Wood Structure and
will have a lower hydraulic profile. Each structure will intrude approximately 30-50% of the
channel width, based on observations of similar features in Lagunitas Creek that appear to have
resulted in good quality habitat (Figures 8a-b). There logs will likely be smaller, approximately
18-inch in diameter and 20 feet in length. The entire of length of the log will be as low to the
channel possible optimize contact with water and summer rearing cover. Within each pool
section, habitat structures will be placed on alternating sides of the channel, with 2 spacing of
around one channel bankfull width, or 50 feet. Additionally, mounds of gravel will be placed on
the lee side of Pool Habitat Wood Structures to kick start bar formation.

Movement of these smaller logs is acceptable provided they remain in the wetted channel
providing their primary function of cover. Therefore Pool Habitat Wood Structures could be
designed with a lower factor of safety relative to the Riffle Forcing Wood Structure. The
advantage of using less ballast for stability is greater ease of construction, which lowers costs and
temporary construction impacts. The Pool Habitat Wood Structure will also incorporate several
natural factors that have been found to contribute to the stability of “non-engineered” logs:

» Logs will be oriented as close to parallel to flow as possible. Logs that are horizontally
oriented parallel to flow tend to be more stable (Braudrick and Grant, 2000; Merten et al.,
2010; Schenk et al., 2013).

* Relatively short logs with rootwads will be used. Logs with rootwads are more stable through
added streambed friction and entangling with rocks, trees, or wood jams. Rootwads will also
act as rudder reorienting logs to be parallel to flow (rootwad facing upstream), which further
adds to the stability of a single log (Braudrick and Grant, 2000; Merten et al., 2010; Schenk et
al., 2013). Davidson, et al. (2015) also found that in flume experiments that the shortest
pieces with rootwads moved significantly shorter distances.

¢ Logs will be partially to fully submerged in water, which will increase their density as they
become saturated. Logs with higher density have decreased buoyancy and increased weight
and friction, and thus travel shorter distances (Ruiz-Villanueva et al., 2016a; Ruiz-Villanueva
et al., 2016¢; Kramer and Wohl, 2017).

Lagunitas Creek Watershad Enhancement Fian 26 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

These structures are similar to the low-profile staggered wood structure constructed by Marin
Water shown in Figure 3a that with 3-6 tons of boulders only rotated or moved short distances
from moderate flows extremely large flows,

Figure 8a
Functioning Pool Habitat Wood Structure in Lagunitas Creek

Figure 8b
Functioning Pool Habitat Wood Structure in Lagunitas Creek

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 27 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

3.2.2 Gravel Augmentation

Basis of the Gravel Augmentation design is to meet the enhancement objectives of adding
sufficient gravel of suitable sizes for coho and steelhead spawning to overcome a bedload deficit
caused by upstream impoundments of around 1,700 tons per year.

3.2.2.1 Design Approach

In addition to gravel placement in as part of Riffle-Pool-Wood Structure complexes during
construction, ESA proposes adding gravel at the upstream end of the priority reaches. The overall
Gravel Augmentation design approach is to:

* Increase the overall loading of coarse sediment in Lagunitas Creek to partially offset
sediment trapped by Peters Dam, and to provide gravel that can be trapped by the newly
installed log complexes.

e Increase the ratio of coarse to fine sediment.

¢ Partially offset channel incision by creating thicker layer of alluvium over bedrock or shallow
alluvial creek beds to provide such benefits as deeper pools and hyporheic flow.

A thicker layer of alluvium supports biological processes that depend on coarse sediment and
hyporheic flow, including salmonid spawning, fry rearing, and production of benthic macro
invertebrates.

3.2.2.2 Design Criteria

Gravel will be placed in Lagunitas Creek at augmentation sites by placing approximately 3 feet
thickness of gravel over an area approximately 250 feet long by 45 feet wide, which is
approximately 1,700 tons (yearly deficit impounded by Peters Dam). A 1-foot-deep low flow
channel will be incorporated into the placed gravel to maintain fish passage. Ideally Gravel
Augmentation will occur annually. All sediment placed for Gravel Augmentation will be sorted to
meet ideal spawning sizes and washed of fine sediment. The depositional fans within Marin
Water’s reservoirs may serve as potential source Gravel Augmentation provide it is processed
(sorted and washed) before being placed.

3.2.3 Tributary Confluence Modifications

Basis of the Tributary Confluence Modifications design is to meet the enhancement objectives of
reconnecting tributaries that contribute large volumes of coarse sediment to the creek relative to
fine sediment.

3.2.3.1 Design Approach

As Lagunitas Creek has incised and trails have been constructed along its banks creating hard
points in the profile, several tributaries have become disconnected and now discharge down
riprap banks or via by hanging culverts. The largest such tributary within the project reaches is

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 28 ) ESA /D202609650
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

Wildcat Canyon, which joins Lagunitas Creek from the left bank in Camp Taylor. The tributary
has a sediment basin that was created where it passes via a culvert under the Cross Marin Trail.
The basin was created to prevent fine sediment from reaching Lagunitas Creek, but it appears to
be trapping a large volume of coarse gravel currently. The approach of the Tributary Confluence
Modification is to restore a supply of coarse sediment from Wildcat Canyon to Lagunitas Creek,
especially as a source of sediment to replenish the Riffle-Pool-Wood Structures placed
downstream.

3.2.3.2 Design Criteria

The proposed restoration design would replace the existing small culvert with a larger bridge or
bottomless arch culvert that would carry the Cross Marin Trail and the Nicasio Transmission
Pipeline, while eliminating the sediment basin and reconnecting Wildcat Canyon to Lagunitas
Creek via a regraded profile. The existing riprap-covered bank may also be modified.

Lagunitas Cresk Enhancement Plan 29 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



3. Restoration Prioritization and Basis of Design

This page intentionally left blank

Lagunitas Creek Walershed Enhancement Plan 30 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



SECTION 4
Feasibility Assessment

This section describes the various aspects that were assessed to ensure the proposed priority
reaches, selected sites, and enhancement actions are feasible. Below we describe how various
factors, including Stakeholder Input, Land Ownership, Environmental Compliance, Existing
Infrastructure, Construction Equipment, Site Access and Staging, and Dewatering Approach,
were considered in the design.

4.1 Land Ownership

A feasible restoration plan requires landowners/managers that agree to restoration occurring on
their property. The priority reaches and selected sites all fall within land owned/managed by State
Parks or Marin Water. Sites 2-11 are all inside the Samuel P. Tayler State Park boundary limits.
Site 1 is located within the Marin Water Protected Watershed, the upper Lagunitas Creek
watershed land managed by Marin Water. Given the proximity of Lagunitas Creek to Sir Francis
Drake Boulevard, there are sites that may be adjacent to Marin County/Caltrans right-of-way.
This may require additional flood analyses to ensure the proposed enhancement actions do not
adversely affect flooding within such right-of-ways.

Given State Parks role in the project, their input is crucial at every step and design stage of the
project. State Parks should have input on the risk assessment to existing infrastructure and
approve of selected safety factors for wood structures. A State Parks biologist and cultural
resource specialist reviewed and provided input to all selected sites, access routes, and staging
areas. The same State Parks biologist and cultural resource specialist will be consulted during
future stages of design, resource surveys, CEQA compliance, and permitting. Any restoration
worked to be constructed will require a Right of Entry Agreement between State Parks and Marin
Water.

4.2 Stakeholder Input

Stakeholder consultation, suggestions and feedback on the existing and historic conditions,
proposed restoration locations, sites, and actions have been integral to development of the Project.
The Lagunitas Creek watershed is a highly valued watershed in the region, and as such there are
numerous stakeholder groups engaged in the watershed. Many of the stakeholders in the
watershed, including Marin Water and State Parks, are part of the Lagunitas Creek Technical
Advisory Committee (Lagunitas TAC). The Water Board (San Francisco Bay Region), also a
member of the Lagunitas TAC, has been heavily engaged in the watershed for decades and is

Lagunitas Cregk Enhancemant Plan : 3 ESA /D202000650 -
Draft Report November 2021



4. Feasibility Assessment

relied upon as key resource for planning restoration in the watershed. Selection of the priority
reaches went through several iterations based on consultations with the Lagunitas TAC, and
additional field reconnaissance with staff from California Department of Fish and Wildlife and
the Water Board. Additionally, site selection, enhancement actions, and the 30% design plans and
their basis have all been presented to the Lagunitas TAC for review and input.

4.3 Environmental Compliance and Permitting

Planning feasible implementation of restoration requires environmental compliance and
permitting. Given the project located on State and locally owned properties, the restoration
implementation will need to comply with CEQA. Additionally, restoration within Lagunitas
Creek will likely require the following permits: The CEQA compliance and permitting also
includes performing the needed resource surveys and ensuring implementation of the project
includes protection of identified biological and cultural resources. Nothing have been discovered
that prevents the proposed work from being able to comply CEQA and acquire the needed
permits.

4.3.1 Biological Resources

The project will involve construction in the channel of Lagunitas Creek. Construction will include
measures that protect existing biological resources. Review of the CNDDB and discussions with
Marin Water and State Park biologists revealed the following species habitat potential at all sites:

» California giant salamander, but observation in 2015 within tributary at Site 8
e Foothill yellow-legged frog (possibly extirpated in the area)

¢ California red-legged frog

e Marbled Murrelet (there is critical habitat, but no known nesting)

o California freshwater shrimp occurrence showing up over every site

— Specific habitat requirements shown in journal article (Martin et al. 2009): 4 total of
1773 S. pacifica was counted during this study, all of which were caprured along
vegetated banks in Lagunitas Creek. Syncaris pacifica was most nimerous-in glides
(64%), then in pools (31%), and lastly in riffles (53%). According to logistic regression
analysis, S. pacifica was mostly associated with submerged portions of streambank
vegetation (especially overhanging vegetation such as ferns and blackberries, emergent
vegefation such as sedge and brooklime, and fine roots associated with water hemiock,
willow, sedge, and blackberries) along with low water current velocity and a sandy
substrate. These seemingly favorable habitat conditions for S. pacifica were present in
glides and pools in Lagunitas Creek.

» Several bat species
¢ Point Reyes Mountain Beaver
e American badger

¢ Several rare plant species
¢ Woodrat

Lagunitas Crask Watershed Enhancement Plan 32 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report Novamber 202%



4. Feasibility Assassment

¢ Fish

coho salmon - central California coast ESU

steelhead - central California coast DPS

[

chinook salmon - California coastal ESU

Tomales roach

|

Pacific lamprey

At this stage of design the project limits are sufficiently defined to support future biological
resource surveys including Habitat Assessment, Wetland Assessment, Jurisdictional Delineation,
USFWS Biological Assessment, NMFS Biological Assessment of Essential Fish Habitat, and
Botanical Survey. Additionally, the enhancement actions are sufficiently defined to develop a
draft Project Description. All of which will support CEQA compliance and permitting.

4.3.2 Cultural Resources

There are known cultural resources along Lagunitas Creek, including a historic paper mill site in
Camp Taylor, and the potential for additional resources near or within the selected sites. ESA
reviewed available data for the area, and conducted field walks with cultural resource specialists
from California Staie Parks to assess the potential for cultural resources. The cultural resource
data gathered is summarized in Table 6.

TABLE 6
CULTURAL RESOURCES IN THE VICINITY OF THE SELECTED SITES

Distance from National Register-

Trinomiat Primary # P/H | Site Type N eligibility
Project Component Potential
CA-MRN-478 P-21-000430 P | Lithic concentration 500 feet E of Site 11 Not evaluated
CA-MRN-542 P-21-000473 P | Lithic concentralion 200 feet SW of Site 7 | Not evaluated
i} i . Irving Fur Tannery boarding .
CA-MRN-543H | P-21-000474 H house/mess hall location 200 feet S of Site 7 Not evaluated
CA-MRN-546H | P-21-000477 H | Irving Fur Tannery location | Adjacent to Site 7 Not evaluated

Concrete bulkhead for .
H historic railroad bridge 150 feet N of Site 7

Early 1900s bridge

CA-MRN-547H | P-21-000478 Not evaluated

CA-MRN-548H P-21-000479 H remnants 300 feet E of Site 7 Not evaluated

CA-MRN-549H | P-21-000480 H | Attifact concentration/dump | 400 feet E of Site 11 Not evaluated
Pioneer Paper Mill (SHL . I

N/A NIA H | #8552 and Property Adjacent to Site 11 | poted on Calfornia
#090416) 9

# = Prehistoric / H ~ Historic-era

Construction sites and site access routes have been designed to avoid known cultural resources.
As mentioned at this stage of design the project limits are sufficiently defined to support future
cultural resource surveys and evaluation to support CEQA compliance and permitting. As part of

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 33 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report Nevember 2021



4. Feasibility Assessment

the next 60% design stage, additional plans for avoiding resources if possible and/or monitoring
are likely to be required.

4.4 Infrastructure Risk

A feasible restoration plan avoids risk to infrastructure. The primary infrastructure at risk from the
proposed enhancement actions of place in large wood in the channel are the nine bridges along the
length of Lagunitas Creek (Table 1). Review of previous large wood installations in Lagunitas
Creek has shown several that were moved or realigned at high flows despite being ballasted with
two to three 2-ton boulders, suggesting that a large weight of rock is needed for stability.
Conversely, the more rock is used the more the access and construction challenges will increase.

Marin Water will need to make a determination of stability (and potential design life)
versus risk, cost and construction impact. The appropriate design flow and Factor of Safety
will vary from site to site depending on the risk to safety or of property damage from shifting
logs, the risk of logs becoming jammed under bridges, and the potential for movement of logs to
undermine the habitat function of the restoration site. These factors should be weighed against the
cost and construction impact of increasing log stability.

4.5 Construction Methods

A feasible restoration plan should consider methods for construction. We first gathered
information on prior restoration efforts, and then considered likely construction methods and
equipment for the proposed design. An ESA restoration designer and an experienced restoration
contractor walked all proposed sites to assess staging areas, construction access routes, and likely
construction methods and equipment.

4.5.1 Prior Restoration Projects

Since 1997 the Marin Water has constructed nearly 60 large wood structures in Lagunitas Creek.
The first structures were built by bringing in boulders and logs with a helicopter, but since 2000
‘almost all structures have been built using the techniques described here. Logs and boulders were
loaded onto a flatbed trailer at Peters Dam using an excavator with a thumb. A second excavator
unloads materials at the site. Heavy equipment operates from the bank, although steep banks have
necessitated operating equipment up to 200 feet away from the placement site, With a few
exceptions dewatering the creek wasn’t necessary during construction. Boulders were rolled from
the location of the flatbed trailer down to the creek. They were positioned by wrapping them with
chain and pulling them using the excavator, ropes, and pulleys. Logs were carried or pulled to the
creek by the excavator and then positioned using ropes and pulleys. Logs were then lifted onto
structures by using a pulley or second piece of equipment on a high opposite bank. Whenever
possible, logs were secured to trees using threaded rebar. Metal cable was attached to boulders by
drilling into the rock, flushing out the hole, and filling with epoxy before pushing the cable in.
The attachment point on the boulder needed to be lower than the attachment point on the log.
Threaded rebar was inserted through the log and a loop in the metal cable. Thick metal plates and
nuts were used to pull the cable loop to the log. Marin Water had two crews: one for placement

Lagunitas Creek Watershad Enhancement Plan 34 : ESA /D202000650
Draft Report Novembar 2021



4. Feasibility Assessment

and one for anchoring. A crew of four would place a three-log structure in a day and the
anchoring crew of three needed a day, for two days per structure.

4.5.2 Likely Construction Methods and Equipment

Construction of the designed large wood structures is going to require the handling of large
materials such logs and boulders that weight 1 to 2 tons each. During implementation, it is common
to attach boulders to logs in a staging area and transport them by excavator to the installation site
already assembled. According to experienced construction operators, a 314 hydraulic excavator that
is 8 feet wide can carry a 1-ton log with 3 tons of boulders attached. A 336 hydraulic excavator that
is 10.5 wide can carry a 1.5-ton log with 6 tons of boulders attached. Anything larger will need to
be constructed at the channel location, which may be difficult depending on the confinement of the
site, and which may create additional construction impacts to sensitive aquatic and riparian areas.
Additionally, gravel will be added for the Riffle Gravel Structure and Habitat Pool Wood Structure,
which will require transport and placement into the sites by heavy equipment. Other heavy
equipment that may be used includes tracked dozers, tracked loaders, rubber tired skidders, mini
excavators and dump trucks. There is also specialized equipment that can work on steep slopes
such an All-Terrain Spyder Walking Excavator, Minzi Muck Walking Excavator, or a small
Tambocor Feller Buncher with extendable boom. For certain applications, a hydraulic truck
crane, all terrain crane or RT crane (3-ton capacity) may be appropriate.

Placement of gravel for the Gravel Augmentation is assumed to be done without the need of
heavy equipment access from the Cross Marin Trail to the selected sites through the use of
specialized methods. Gravel has been placed downstream of Englebright Dam in the Yuba River
from steep slopes well above the river through the two following means (Figure 9):

e TB 135 truck-mounted gravel conveyor was used to reach out over the river and pour gravel
into the river below (Pasternack, 2009)

e Sluicing system consisting of a frontloader, hopper, sluice pipe, ropes and pulleys. Sediment
is placed in a hopper, blended with water, and sluiced down the hillside to the river below
(Brown and Pasternack, 2013)

SOURCE: Pasternack, 2009; Brown and Pasternack, 2013

Figure 9
Gravel Augmentation Methods on the Yuba River

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 35 ESA [ D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



4, Feasibility Assessment

4.5.3 Staging and Storage Areas

The construction of several sites, such as all of Phase 1 or 2, in a construction season or two will
likely require a contractor to use several pieces of large construction equipment listed above. This
will require large staging areas to store such equipment, plus large amounts of materials such as
logs and boulders, storage sheds, and other needed equipment/material/facilities to efficient
complete the job. More importantly, this will require designated and landowner approved access
routes from staging areas to the construction sites,

Three large staging areas were identified at the Irving Group Picnic Area parking lot (Sites 2-6,
12-13), Redwood Grove Group Picnic Area parking lot (Site 7-8), and the horse trailer parking
just off the Cross Marin Trail (Sites 9-11). These large staging areas will be used to store the bulk
of the materials such as logs and boulders. The two group picnic areas are revenue generators for
the Samuel P. Taylor State Park and will likely need to be reserved by the contractor for use
during construction. Smaller temporary construction staging areas were identified at various
locations in close proximity to several sites. These staging areas are sufficient to place small
amount of materials or temporary park a single piece of heavy equipment.

4.5.4 Construction Access

Construction access to Lagunitas Creek is possible from either Sir Francis Drake Boulevard or
from the Cross Marin Trail, both of which run adjacent to Lagunitas Creek for the majority of the
priority reaches. Sir Francis Drake Boulevard has relatively heavy vehicle traffic, a narrow
shoulder, and only a few unpaved tumouts. Therefore, the Cross Marin Trail was determined to
be the more feasible route from which to access the selected sites. The Cross Marin Trail is a
narrow pedestrian path heavily used for recreation, with an overhead powerline running along
much of the alignment and the Nicasio Transmission Pipeline running under the trail. The Cross
Marin Trail also provides access for emergency vehicles for fires or maintenance vehicles for the
powerline or water transmission pipeline. As result open pathways will need to be designated and
traffic control required.

Temporary construction access from the Cross Marin Trail to Lagunitas Creek will require
traversing confined, steep, densely wooded hillslopes. Additionally, there is very limited
overbank areas along the Lagunitas Creek from which to travel and stage equipment/materials or
work. Many of these hillslopes are so steep that some grading may be needed to create a viable
access route for heavy equipment. The constrained access limits the size and type of construction
equipment that can be used, as well as the size of construction materials (i.e. logs and boulders).

Temporary access routes from Cross Marin Trail to Lagunitas Creek have been identified for each
site within Samuel P. Taylor State Park. Temporary access routes were identified, delineated, and
mapped with a Global Positioning System (GPS) device. Proposed access routes are shown on the
Preliminary Design Drawings (Attachment E) and summarized as follows.

¢ Site 1 is not within the State Park and therefore was not assessed.

¢ Clear access routes were identified for Sites, 2,3,4,6,8,9,and 11.

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 36 ESA /D202000650
Draft Raport Novamber 2021



4. Feasibility Assessment

e Site 5 did not have a clear access path, however, was determined to be close enough to be
accessed from Site 4 via Lagunitas Creek.

¢ Site 7 was moved downstream to a viable access path.

s Site 10 enhancement design was modified to only consist of Pool Habitat Wood Structures
that can be placed by a crane from the Cross Marin Trail above,

» Sites 12 and 13 are expected to have Gravel Augmentation performed through sluicing
methods and not require heavy equipment down into the creek.

Because construction access is a such a critical component of feasibility, the identified access
routes were reviewed by State Parks for acceptability. Both the selected restoration sites and their
associated temporary access routes were reviewed by State Parks biologist and cultural resource
specialist. All routes were deemed acceptable by State Parks provided the following measures are
followed:

¢ For any required grading, there should be limited import and no export of graded material.
¢ Restore all graded access routes to their original condition.

¢ Surface detritus, referred to as duff, should be removed, temporarily stockpiled and replaced.
Where needed, removal of trees may be acceptable, pending review of specific trees.

¢ Protect existing stands of mature coastal redwoods by maintaining a buffer of 5 times the
trunk diameter from the base of the tree.

s Ifthe specified tree buffer is not possible due to constraints, protect tree roots using crane
mats or similar measures to reduce the direct pressure and compaction within this buffer from
heavy equipment traffic.

4.5.5 Dewatering

Construction of the large wood structures in Lagunitas Creek may require full or partial
dewatering of Lagunitas Creek. Anticipated summer baseflow rates in the Lagunitas Creek will -
range between 6 and 8 cubic feet per second (cfs) or less. Isolated work areas will be dewatered
as needed to maintain a reasonably dry work environment for the work. The contractor will
locally dewater active work zones as they deem necessary to satisfactorily complete the work in
accordance with all applicable permits, and as needed to allow surveying and to verify design
compliance. The contractor will need to design and install temporary water diversion/dewatering
systems as needed to isolate work areas from flows.

Prior to construction, the contractor will submit a Water Control Plan that satisfies the
requirements of all applicable permits. At a minimum, the plan shall describe the Contractor’s
proposed methods and equipment for isolating work areas from river flows, scheduling of fish
rescue operations, controlling surface water and groundwater entering the work area, and
protecting river water quality. The Water Control Plan will describe how the Contractor will
maintain a generally dry work environment, or sufficiently isolate and control water within the

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 37 ESA /D202000850
Draft Report Novembar 2021



4. Feasioility Assessment

work site as needed to perform the work consistent with permit conditions and to prevent any
permiit violations. All in-channel activities will be scheduled to minimize the length of time
during which the dewatering and flow diversion/isolation will be necessary, so as to minimize
impacts to aquatic resources. Pipe and pump inlets drawing from surface waters will need to be
screened in conformance with California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and National
Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) fish screening criteria for “fry-size,” and all applicable permits.

As applicable, any dewatering systems in the active channel shall include coffer dams installed
along the channel bank, and/or at upstream and downstream ends of the system, to isolate the
work zone from Lagunitas Creek and prevent flow or backflow into the active work area. Coffer
dams will need to be constructed starting at the upstream project limit to allow fish to move
downstream out of the work area. Coffer dam materials will need to be clean, water tight and
sufficiently stable to resist washout or displacement by river flows. Acceptable coffer dam
materials are likely to include the use of sandbags, bladder dams and/or K-rails. The Contractor
will need to discharge the removed water in an environmentally acceptable manner, in accordance
with project permits, applicable law, and such that property is not damaged and in a manner that
prevents discharge of turbid water to the active flowing river or existing drainages. Removed
water will be contained and treated as needed to adequately remove suspended sediment prior to
disposal.

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 38 ESA /D202000650
Oraft Report November 2021



SECTION 5
Design Analyses

This section describes specific preliminary analyses and assessment that were performed at the
30% design stage to ensure feasible enhancement actions were being proposed. Given large wood
is central to the proposed enhancement actions a preliminary large wood analysis was performed.
A preliminary hydraulic analysis was also performed to support the large wood analysis.
Additionally, given the steep confined topography, site access routes and staging areas were
assessed and determined for each site selected, as described in Section 4.5.4.

5.1 Preliminary Hydraulic Analysis

ESA developed a two-dimensional hydraulic model for the project reach using the Hydrologic
Engineering Center’s River Analysis System (HEC-RAS) hydraulic modeling software. At the
30% design stage, the purpose of the hydraulic analysis was to generate the design parameters
used in the large wood structure stability analysis.

The model domain encompassed all potential enhancement sites in one continuous domain
extending from the San Geronimo Creek confluence to the state park boundary just downstream
of Big Bend (Figure 10). The topographic data source for the model was the 2018-2019 Marin
County bare-earth LiDAR surface, captured by Quantum Spatial, Inc. (QSI) between Dec 2018
and March 2019 (QSI, 2019) and downloaded from MarinMap. While this does not include
bathymetric data for deep pools, many riffle crests appear to be visible in the surface that were
likely only shallowly inundated during the LiDAR flights. This topographic dataset was
considered appropriate for this high flow hydraulic analysis, since the large spatial coverage and
relatively high spatial resolution captures how the channel geometry influences the hydraulics
throughout all the enhancement sites.

A model mesh cell size of 5 ft was used to balance model run time with the ability to resolve
variation in the hydraulics across the width of the channel. Manning’s n roughness of 0.045 was
uniformly applied to the channel region as consistent with other modeling studies in the
watershed (Stillwater Sciences, 2016), and a roughness value of 0.1 was uniformly applied to the
overbank region to reflect the generally dense vegetation conditions. A normal depth slope of
0.4% was set for the downstream boundary condition based on the average reach bed slope, and a
model time step of 1 second was used.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 39 © ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



5. Design Analyses

Jaw el

4 RM 7.5

72
o~
RM 11.5
®
N
*  River Mile .
Selected Sites
! 0 0.25 0.5
] 2D model domain T — Viles
Figure 10

2D Hydraulic Model Domain

40 ESA /D202000650

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan
November 2021

Draft Report



§. Dasign Analyses

Table 7 presents the design flows included in ESA’s preliminary hydraulic analysis (source of
hydrology: KHE, 2014). The selected design flow rates range from the 2-year to the 100-year
storm and represent the typical range of hydraulic conditions used to calculate drag and lift forces
in log stability analyses. For each design flow, the model was run for sufficient time to equilibrate
to this steady flow throughout the model domain. No calibration was performed given the
preliminary stage of this modeling analysis. '

TABLET7
DEsIGN FLow RATES {KHE, 2014)
Recurrence Interval Flow Rate (cfs)
2-year (Q2) 1,850
10-year (Q10) 4,380
50 year (Q50} 7,190
100-year (Q100) 8,520

Figures 11a-b show the 100-year (Q100) model results for the Manning’s n = 0.045 model run.
Due to the fairly uniform water depth and velocity conditions across the sites, we assumed a
representative force analysis for the two structure types would be applicable throughout the entire
project reach.

The main hydraulic parameter used in log stability analysis is flow velocity. For each of the
modeled recuirence intervals, the peak velocity was identified for each of the eleven Riffle-Pool-
Wood sites for the modeled 2-, 10-, 50-, and 100-year flows (25-year flow was not modeled). For
this simplified analysis, the average velocity from the eleven sites was used as the peak velocity
for the 2-, 10-, 50-, and 100-year flows. Average peak velocity for the 25-year flow was
estimated.

TABLE 8
PEAK VELOCITY
Peak Velocity for Sites 1 Average Peak Velocity

Recurrence Interval through 11 (it/s) (ft/s)

2-year (Q2) 55-70 6.6

10-year (Q50} 7.5-95 8.8

25-year (Q25) not modeled 9.5 (estimated)

50 year (Q50) 2.0-11% 10.5

100-year (Q100) 85-125 11.0

More detailed hydraulic modeling is recommended at the 60% design stage to refine the large
wood analysis and assess hydraulic and geomorphic effects of the enhancement actions at each
site.

ESA /D202000650
November 2021

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 41
Draft Repart



5. Design Analyses

m

0

RM 7.5

®  River Mile
Modeled 100-yr storm depth (ft)

N

A

o} 750

1,500
Feet

Figure 11a
2D Hydraulic Model Results (Downstream)

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan

Draft Report

42 ESA /D202000650
November 2021



5. Design Analyses

® River Mile

Modeled 100-yr storm depth (ft) N

18
- A RM 11.5
.

0
0 750 1,500
Feet

Figure 11b
2D Hydraulic Model Results (Upstream)

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 43 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



5. Design Analyses

5.2 Preliminary Large Wood Analysis

To assess the feasibility of the large wood structures, ESA developed design criteria and
performed a preliminary large wood stability analysis of the two structure types, Riffle Forcing
Wood Structure and Pool Habitat Wood Structure. The wood structures are presented in
Attachment E, Sheets D02 and D03, respectively.

ESA developed the design criteria and calculated the force balance using recommended guidance
from various publications including the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) and U.S. Army
Engineer Research and Development Center (ERDC) National Large Wood Manual (USBR and
ERDC, 2016). At the 30% design stage, our objective was to estimate the destabilizing forces
acting on each structure, and what anchoring forces may be needed to resist those forces. This
preliminary large wood analysis focused on factors of safety related for the vertical forces
(resistance to flotation) and the horizontal forces (resistance to sliding). In the future 60% design
stage, the more detailed large wood analysis will also consider factors of safety related to the
vertical moments (resistance to overturning) and the horizontal moments (resistance to rotation).

5.2.1 Design Assumptions

The following design assumptions informed our log stability calculations:

*  Anchoring Techniques: Throughout the project reach, the presence of shallow bedrock and
the steep channel banks preclude the use of typical engineered wood anchoring methods such
as vertical log piles or embedment. We assume the primary ballast approach will be boulders
pinned and/or chained to the logs.

e Log Species and Density: For the Riffle Forcing Wood Structures, the buoyant force is
calculated using a conservative dry density of 33 pounds per cubic foot for imported douglas
fir (Miles and Smith, 2009). For the Pool Habitat Wood Structures, the logs are expected to
be completely or partially submerged year-round based on their elevation on the channel bed.
For these structures, the green weight of douglas fir was used as a rough approximation of the
expected actual (semi-saturated) log density.

s Log Dimensions:

— Riffle Forcing Wood Structure: 24-inch log diameter x 30-1t log length, rootwad diameter
5" x 1’ rootwad length, rootwad porosity of 0.2.

— Pool Habitat Wood Structure: 18-inch log diameter x 20-ft log length, rootwad diameter
of 3.75" x 1" rootwad length, rootwad porosity of 0.2

e Coefficient of Lift: Lift coefficient approaches zero as the gap between the bed and bottom of
the log exceeds half the log diameter (Rafferty, 2016). We assume some flow beneath the
Riffle Forcing Wood Structure, and a lift coefficient of 0.2. For the Pool Habitat Wood
Structure, we used a 0.45 lift coefficient, the is maximum lift coefficient for a cylinder placed
perpendicular to the flow, with cylinder in contact with the bed.

e Coefficient of Drag: 0.9 for a fully submerged structure (USBR and ERDC, 2016). For the
Pool Habitat Woed Structures oriented parallel to flow, we assumed there was some flow

Lagunitas Cresk Watershed Enhancement Plan ' 44 ESA /D202000650
Craft Report November 2021



&, Design Analyses

separation between the rootwad and the trunk of the log. Therefore we assumed drag force
was acting on 2/3 of the total log length.

5.2.2 Factors of Safety

The USBR and ERDC (2016) guidance were used to identify a range of appropriate safety factors
for the Project. Using the risk matrix shown in USBR (2014), the site is considered to have low
public safety risk since Lagunitas Creek has low recreational (e.g. boating and/or swimming) use
(see Attachment D). The site is also considered to have moderate to high property damage risk.
While the project is located in a State Park and there no homes or other floodplain structures at
risk of flooding or damage, there are bridges locating within and downstream of the Project Site.
Also, the stream response potential includes some higher risk factors given its relatively confined
conditions and flashy hydrology. The USBR (2014) recommended safety factors for the project
conditions are presented in Table 9.

RECCMMENDED FACTORS OF SAFETY FOR EN;IS-;:IEI!ELEigD LARGE Wo0D STRUCTURES {USBR, 2014)
Minimum Factor of Safety
Public Property Stability Design Rotation &
Scenario Safety Risk | Damage Risk Flow Criteria Sliding Buoyancy | Overturning
A dpper End_ Low High 100-year 1,75 2.0 1.75
g eLcoo“r:?r:qEEg od Low Moderate 25-year 1.5 1.75 15
gfl(‘a ?::;;)E"d {for Low Low 10-year 1.25 1.5 1.25

However, for the Habitat Pool Structures, a lower safety factor for sliding - between 1.0 and 1.5 —
could be also be supported for the foliowing reasons:

¢ Some movement of the Habitat Pool Structures is considered acceptable provided it does not
present significant downstream risk.

o Bridge failure is primarily a function of flotation transport (Zevenbergen et al., 2006; Schalko
et al., 2018; De Cicco et al., 2018), rather than traction.

» Distances transported by traction are significantly shorter than by flotation (Bocchiola et al.,
20006).

e D’Aoust and Millar (2000) observed a factor of safety for sliding of as low as 1 sufficient to
prevent entrainment of single large wood structures.

» The Pool Habitat Structures include rootwads and are placed parallel to flow, which gives the
logs some natural stabilizing elements (Braudrick and Grant, 2000; Merten ¢t al., 2010;
Schenk et al., 2013).

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan - 45 ESA / D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



5. Design Analyses

Ultimately, the selection of the specific safety factors for the design should balance Marin
Water’s risk tolerance with other considerations such as habitat goals, cost and ease of
construction. The higher the safety factor, the more ballasting rock needs to be attached to a
single log. A lower factor of safety could be considered to significantly reduce the amount of rock
and improve cost and ease of construction. This cost savings should be evaluated against the
likelihood, and estimated cost, of any potential damage to existing infrastructure.

5.2.3 Preliminary Calculation Results

For each structure a series of calculations were performed to estimate the total weight of ballast
boulders needed for stability against buoyancy and sliding. We estimated the amount of baliast
needed to meet the high and low end of recommended safety factors based on low safety risk and
medium-to-high property risk (Scenarios A and B in Table 9). We also included Scenario C,
which is the lowest protective level recommended by USBR based on low safety and property
risk, as a point of reference.

The preliminary calculation results for the Riffle Forcing and Pool Habitat structures are
presented in Tables 10 and 11, respectively. As noted, achieving the recommended safety factors
within the project reach requires a considerable tonnage of ballast boulders per log. Based on the
preliminary calculations, the Riffle Forcing Wood Structure requires between 11 and 16 tons of
ballast is needed to meet the recommended safety factors. For the Pool Wood Habitat Structure,
the corresponding required ballast is 7 to 10 tons. Adding this amount of rock to the 300 proposed
logs will be labor intensive and costly. Therefore, we have also considered designing the Pool
Wood Habitat Structure with a lower safety factor for sliding, for reasons stated in 5.3.2 above.
Between 4.5 and 6 tons of ballast is needed to meet the reduced safety factor against sliding for
the Pool Wood Habitat Structure.)With this amount of ballast, the structure would have a
relatively high safety factor of 2.8 to 3.4 against buoyancy.)

ESA has prepared a Large Wood Risk Assessment (Attachment D) to help Marin Water and other
project stakeholders understand the specific infrastructure risks associated with wood placement
in Lagunitas Creek, and inform selection of appropriate safety factors as the project moves to
detailed design.

As noted, these calculations are preliminary and subject to further refinement during the future
60% design phase. Items to be further refined include:

¢ Including analysis for overturning and rotating moments,

o Refining hydraulic analysis, particularly estimates of peak velocity at each site.

» Refine calculation of lift and drag forces on the logs.

» Refine estimates of log density due to partial or complete saturation.

Lagunitas Cresk Watershed Enhancement Plan 46 ESA / D202000850
Oraft Report November 2021



5. Design Analyses

TABLE 10
RiFFLE FORCING WOOD STRUCTURE
A B c
Upper End Lower End Lowest End
Scenario Recommended Intermediate Recommended (for reference}
Design Stability Flow Event 100-year 50-year 25-year 10-year
. . . 9.5 fps
Design Velocity {feet per second; fps) 11.0 fps 10.5 fps (estimated) 8.81fps
Public Safety Risk Low Low Low Low
Property Damage Risk High Medium-High Medium Low
Minimum Factor of Safety: Buoyancy 2.0 1.75~-20 1.75 1.5
Estimated Factor of Safety; Buoyancy 4.4 37 3.3 3.1
Minimum Factor of Safety: Sliding 1.75 1.50-1.75 1.50 1.25
Estimated Factor of Safety: Sliding 1.81 1.52 1.50 1.32
Preliminary Ballast Boulder Weight
per Log 16 tons 13 tons 11 tons 9tons
NOTE: Assumes dry density of log, 0.2 lift coefficient and log oriented perpendicular to flow.
TABLE 11
PooL HABITAT WOOD STRUCTURE
B Modified c C Modified
A B Reduced Lowest Reduced
Upper End Lower End FOS for End (for FOS for
Scenario Recommended | Intermediate | Recommended Sliding reference) Sliding
Design Stability
Flow Event 100-year 50-year 25-year 25-year 10-year 10-year
Design Velocity {feet 9.5 fps 9.5 fps
per second; fps) 11.01ps 10.5 fps {estimated) (estimated) 8.8 fps 8.81ps
Public Safety Risk Low Low Low Low Low Low
EEE erty Damage High Medium-High Medium Low Low
Minimum Factor of
Safety: Buoyancy 2.0 1.756-2.0 1.75 1.75 1.5 1.5
Estimated Factor of
Safety: Buayancy 4.5 3.85 3.91 3.35 34 2.8
Minimurm Factor of
Safety: Sliding 1.75 1.50 1.50 1.25 1.25 1.0
Estimated Factor of
Safety: Sliding 1.81 1.46 1.57 1.27 1.37 1.02
Preliminary Ballast
Boulder Weight per 10 tons 8 Tons 7 tons 6 tons 5.5 tons 4.5tons
Log

NOTE: Assumes green density of lng, 0.45 (ift coefficient and log oriented parallel to flow.

Lagunitas Craek Enhancement Plan

Draft Repart

47

ESA /D202000650
November 2021



5. Design Analyses

This page intentionally left blank

Lagunitas Graek Watershad Enhancamant Flan : 48 ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



SECTION 6
Construction Cost Estimate

The Draft 30% opinion of probable construction costs is provided in Attachment F.

For planning purposes, we have provided order of magnitude estimates to allow cost comparison
of alternatives. Construction costs have been estimated at this 30% phase to assist with site
advancement selection, budget planning, and project funding. These cost estimates are intended
to provide an approximation of total project construction costs appropriate for the conceptual
level of design. These cost estimates are considered to be approximately +/-30% accurate and
include a 35% contingency to account for project uncertainties (such as final design, permitting
restrictions and bidding climate). Note that these costs are for construction only and do not
include estimated project costs for permitting, design, construction management, monitoring, or
cngoing maintenance.

Estimates are subject to refinement and revisions as the design is developed into future stages of
the project. The actual costs of construction may be impacted by the time of construction,
availability of construction equipment and crews, and fluctuation of supply prices when the work
is bid. In providing opinions of probable construction costs, ESA has no control over the actual
costs. Estimated costs are presented in 2024 dollars assuming a 3% annual escalation from 2021
dollars.

Quantities are based on the Draft 30% Design Drawings in Attachment E. All earthwork
quantities are provided in bank cubic yards with no account for swell or shrinkage. The unit
pricing utilized is generally based on ESA's previous project experience and bid prices from
similar projects. Assumptions for select construction items are as follows:

¢ Cost for the SWPPP and compliance is based on a shared construction general permit with
the State Water Resources Control Board for ali sites and temporary BMP application and
maintenance at each site. The item includes preparation of the SWPPP, filing and submitting
payment for the NOI, completing all necessary inspections, monitoring, and reporting, filing
the NOT, and complying with all applicable requirements for stormwater protection through
the use of maintained temporary BMPs throughout construction.

* Water control and diversion assumes one (1) construction season and separate stagings at
each site that will not exceed a maximum length of 500 feet per staging.

¢ Staging area restoration assumes disturbed surfaces will be returned to their original, pre-
project condition with native materials stockpiled from the staging area during mobilization.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 49 ESA /D262000650
Craft Report November 2021



6. Construction Cost Estimate

¢ Existing utility, structure, and trail facility protection includes gravel and structure import,
placement, and removal. A minimum six-inch thick gravel protection layer is included for
placement over existing utilities and structures, and a double railcar bridge is assumed for
placement over an existing pedestrian bridge at Site 11. Temporary crane staging and access
preparation as well as temporary channel bed protection for site 3 inter-site access also
includes gravel import, placement, and removal of a minimum 6-inch thick gravel protection
layer.

e Temporary access road construction and restoration includes stockpiling of native surface
materials, access road grading, import of necessary materials for access road construction and
compaction, off-haul of any imported material, restoring the original grade slope of the
impacted banks, restoring native cover material over disturbed surfaces, and placement of
erosion contro] fabric and straw wattles on the disturbed surfaces.

e Wood structure unit costs include the material cost of logs assuming procurement of Douglas
fir trees meeting the detail specifications.

¢ Costs assume that construction would be performed under one or two bid packages. If
construction is phased over different years and performed under three or more bid packages,
costs of mobilization and other general elements would likely increase (in addition to
escalation).

Lagunitas Greek Watarshed Enhancament Plan 50 ‘ ESA /D202090650
Draft Report November 2021



SECTION 7
References

Braudrick, C.A. and G.E. Grant. 2000, When do logs move in rivers? Water Resources Research
36 (2): 571-583.

Brown, R.A. and Pasternack, G.B. 2013. Monitoring and assessment of gravel/cobble
augmentation in the Englebright dam reach of the lower Yuba River, CA: 11/01/2011 to
12/1/2012. Prepared for the U. 8. Army Corps of Engineers, Sacramento District.

Davidson, S., MacKenzie, L., Eaton, B., 2015. Large wood transport and jam formation in a
series of flume experiments. Water Resour. Res. hitp://dx.doi.org/10.1002/2015WR017446

Environmental Science Associates (ESA). 2016. Lagunitas Creek Floodplain & Riparian
Enhancement (Feasibility Study). Prepared for Salmon Protection and Watershed Network
(SPAWN).

Environmental Science Associates (ESA). 2018, Memorandum: Lagunitas Creek Floodplain and
Riparian Enhancement - Basis of Design. Prepared for Salmon Protection And Watershed
Network (SPAWN).

Environmental Science Associates (ESA). 2019. Memorandum: Lagunitas Creek — Winter
Habitat Hydraulic Modeling Analysis. Prepared for Salmon Protection And Watershed
Network (SPAWN).

Environmental Science Associates (ESA). 2021. Lagunitas Creek Instream Flow Study. Prepared
for Marin Municipal Water District.

Kamman Hydrology & Engineering, Inc. (KHE) 2013. Lagunitas Creek Salmonid Winter Habitat
Enhancement Assessment Report. Prepared in association with Fiori Geosciences and Dr.
Bill Trush. Prepared for Marin Municipal Water District and CDFW Fisheries Restoration
Grant Program.

Kamman Hydrology & Engineering, Inc. (KHE) 2014, 100% Basis of Design Report Lagunitas
Creek Salmonid Winter Habitat Enhancement Project. Prepared in association with Fiori
Geosciences and Dr. Bill Trush. Prepared for Marin Municipal Water District and CDFW
Fisheries Restoration Grant Program.

Knutson, M., and P. Fealko. 2014. Pacific Northwest Region Resource and Technical Services—
Large Woody Material Risk Based Design Guidelines. U.S. Department of the Interior,
Bureau of Reclamation, Pacific Northwest Region, Boise, Idaho.

Kramer, N. and E. Wohl. 2017. Rules of the road: A qualitative and quantitative synthesis of
large wood transport through drainage networks. Geomorphology 279 (2017): 74-97,

Lagunitas Cresk Enhancement Plan 51 ESA / D202000650
Draft Report Novemnber 2021



7. Referances

Lawrence, J.E., Resh, V.H., and M.R. Cover. 2013. Large-Wood Loading From Natural and
Engineered Processes at the Watershed Scale. River Research and Applications 29: 1030-
1041.

MacWilliams Jr., M.L., Wheaton, J.M., Pasternack, G.B., Street, R.L.., Kitanidis, P.K., 2006.
Flow convergence routing hypothesis for pool-riffle maintenance in alluvial rivers, Water
Resources Research 42, W10427. doi:10.1029/2005WR004391.

Marin Municipal Water District (Marin Water). 2011. Lagunitas Creek Stewardship Plan.

Martin, B.A., Saiki, M. K., and D. Fong. 2009. Habitat Requirements of the Endangered
California Freshwater Shrimp (Syncaris Pacifica) in Lagunitas and Olema Creeks, Marin
County, California, USA, Journal of Crustacean Biology 29 (4): 595-604.
https://doi.org/10.1651/08-3134.1

Merten, E., Finlay, J., Johnson, L., Newman, R., Stefan, H., and Vondracek, B. 2010. Factors
influencing wood mobilization in streams, Water Resour, Res., 46, W10514,
doi:10.1029/2009WR008772.

Napolitano, M. 2014. Staff Report: Lagunitas Creek Watershed Fine Sediment Reduction and
Habitat Enhancement Plan. California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San
Francisco Bay Region

National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS). 2012. Recovery Plan for the Evolutionarily
Significant Unit of Central California Coast Coho Salmon. http://
www.westcoast.fisheries.noaa.gov/protected_species/salmon_steeclhead/
recovery_planning_and_implementation/north_central california_coast/
north_central_california_coast_salmon_and_steelhead_recovery_plans.html

National Marine Fisheries Service (INMFS8), 2012. Final Recovery Plan for Central California
Coast coho salmon (Oncorhynchus kisutch) Evolutionarily Significant Unit. Volume III:
Appendices. National Marine Fisheries Service, Southwest Region, Santa Rosa, California.

NOAA Fisheries. 2013. Office of Protected Resources. Coho Salmon,
NOAA Fisheries. 2013. Office of Protected Resources. Steelhead Trout.

O’Connor Environmental, Inc. (OEI). 2015. Lagunitas Creek Sediment and Streambed
Monitoring Plan: Technical Completion Report Stream Conditions 2012 through 2014.
Prepared for Marin Municipal Water District.

Pasternack, G. B. 2009. Current Status of an On-going Gravel Injection Experiment on the Lower
Yuba River, CA. Prepared for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Sacramento District.

Prunuske Chatham, Inc. (PCI), 2010. San Geronimo Valley Salmon Enhancement Plan, A
Guidance Document. Prepared for Marin County Department of Public Works, February 9,
2010.

Quantum Spatial, Inc. 2019. Marin County, California QL1 LiDAR Technical Data Report.
http://www.marinmap.org/dnn/Portals/0/Uploads/Marin%20County%20Report%20-
%20FINAL _Signed.e98e1c53-dedd-4d67-8710-dbecb001{feb3. pdf

Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan 52 : ESA /D202000650
Draft Report November 2021



7. References

Ruiz-Villanueva, V., Piégay, H., Gurnell, A. M., Marston, R. A., and M. Stoffel. 2016a. Recent
advances quantifying the large wood dynamics in river basins: New methods and remaining
challenges, Rev. Geophys. 54: 611-652, doi:10.1002/2015RG000514.

Ruiz-Villanueva, V., Wyzga, B., Zawiejska, J., Hajdukiewicz, M., and Stoffel, M, 2016b. Factors
controlling large-wood transport in a mountain river. Germorphology 272 (2016): 21-31.

Schenk, E.R., Moulin, B., Hupp, C.R., and J.M. Richter. 2013. Large wood budget and transport
dynamics on a large river using radio telemetry. Earth Surface Processes and Landforms
(2013): DOI: 10.1002/esp.3463.

Stillwater Sciences, 2008. Lagunitas Limiting Factors Analysis, Limiting Factors for Coho
Salmon and Steelhead. Prepared for Marin Resource Conservation District.

Stillwater Sciences, 2010. Taking action for clean water — Bay Area Total Maximum Daily Load
Implementation: Lagunitas Creek Sediment Budget. Prepared for San Francisco Estuary
Project/ Association of Bay Area Governments, Oakland, California, SWRCB Agreement
No. 06-342-552-0.

Stillwater Sciences, 2016. San Geronimo Creek Habitat Enhancement Project — Basis of Design
Report. Prepared for County of Marin.

United States Department of the Interior Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), 2014. Reclamation —
Managing Water in the West. Pacific Northwest Region Resource & Technical Services
Large Woody Material — Risk Based Design Guidelines, U.S. Department of the Interior
Bureau of Reclamation Pacific Northwest Region Boise, [daho. September 2014,

USBR and United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), 2016. National Large Wood
Manual — Assessment, Planning, Design, and Maintenance of Large Wood in Fluvial
Ecosystems: Restoring Process, Function, and Structure. January 2016.

Woodsmith, R.D., and Hassan, M.A., 2005. Maintenance of an obstruction-forced pool in a
gravel-bed channel: stream flow, channel morphology, and sediment transport. Catchment
Dynamics and River Processes: Mediterranean and Other Climate Regions 10, 69-196.

Lagunitas Creek Enhancement Plan 53 ESA /D202000850
Draft Report Novambar 2021



iHem Number: 06
Attachment: 02

Attachment E
30%-Complete Design

Drawings
7 ISA



9t 40 61 133HS

100

NN LTS

NY1d
LNIWIONVYHNI
L3ls

ENURE=TH

SONIMYHO

N9OISIA %0t 14vHa
35vHA

Lrex22) 3218 T4 01 Q3LLONd
HIHIA HMOHS 5% 51 37705

LZOZENLL A1va 3nsst

HITHON 130N

515980
OHIIONYT 'W_3DEVHI NI
CELASEREERR)
JAS NAMYHO
MOCMIT_03N9IS30

THOWAWOSI0_ SIva ¥
SHOISIASH

FWWYN LO30Bd

AlNnG e
Nv1d INFWIONVHNI
Q3HSHILYM 3340
SYLINNDYTMI

ET =
NIHYW

NOLLONAHLSNOD
404 LON

AdYNINITIAd

dreris

dAL ‘SHUNLONYLS
[ 13AYHO HYE ¥ JWNLONULS
aogh&._mtx .._ccm

D€ =.1 -31¥IS Nv1d

2<‘_n_ ANIWIONVHNI L 31IS

20y

14 E.ozv avoy
SSIDIV ANVHOINEL
N

“$0Q LIIHS NO T

aNY | STI¥L30 335 TI0S 40 NOLLOVAWOONIAD

WOHL SLO0Y 000MAIY IANLYN LI3L0¥d

01 03033N 38 AV STUNSYIN "SHHEYd

3LVLS A8 IWAOHJdY ONIONId G3AOW3H 38

AVIN S33L ONLLSIXT "NOLLIGNOD LO3rodd-34d

01 3LNOY $5300V INIYOLSIY Nl 3SN

HO4 3LIS-NO STIVINILYIN ALLYN 3TdAN00LS

"S$320V ¥YINJIHIA NOILLONHYLSNOD 318VLS

‘H03 03033N SY IVINILYIN LHO4N TIVINININ SV

T13M SV IONVBHNLSIA ONY ONIOYAD HONIN

30NTIIN1 OL TINHVHO OL TIVEL ¥O vy
ONILSIX3 WOYd OVOY SSIDIV AMVHO4WIL ‘T

‘N9IS30 QI WVL30 -

FHNLNE NI G3WHIANOD 38 0L NOLLYLOY

ANV LNIWIOV1d SY T13M SY ALLLNYND

IYNLOY - ATNO FONINIITH HOS NMOHS
LNIWIIV 4 13AVHD ONY SIHNLINYLS ADOM I

S310N

JUNLONHLS ACOM LY LIBVH ._oo@ﬁ

avou ssa00v auwvoanas [ |

JUNLONYULS TIAVED [

WIHY ONIDYLS NOILONMLSNOD H n n &

anN3931

FUHYID INYHAALS AFOBLLONE N 5L O § IZOIBI0L 3L¥0 LG B L JLISNY T DADATIVE J WHIBIURLUT BIVINEM Y001 SEUNTET OWINA - 00 039C0020I0VR0EZONTYD 10 d 3114




9€ 40 0Z 133HS

¢0D

HIBNON LTS

Nv1d
ININW3INVHNI
¢ 3lLls

ENUFEET

SONIMYHQ

NDIS3Q %0€ LdvHa
E]

£¥ex22) 3718 TINd 0L 43110
NIHI A0S SY S1 3TA05

1ZOZZLLL LD INGS

j00°058000202 y38wNH 193roud

515980
OHIIONYT 'W_3DVYHI NI
83¥_ a3NI3IHD

NS NN
MOCMINT_A3NDIS30

NOILJI¥OS30  31v0  #

SHOISIASH
P
i g
=9 i
Im=
Zms
~
o5 O W
22 mg
o8 = p= @
2é mAC
55 m =
o =
= % Sl
o
L
G m
=0
NET
NIYVYW
AN3ND
NOILOMYLSNOD
HO4 10
JAYNINITHd
AWYLE

WO DOSSYST MM
0065569 SLF - I0L4H0
Z1976 V2 TV THVD
0501 3LINS

FNNIAY ONVHD BRL

r
VSd 4

06=.1 3908 NY1d
NYv1d INJWIDNVHNI Z 3LIS

Er - SRR R )

© ELD 133HS 335 - m.N¢Nwm V1S INOHDLVI

— — —

dAL TN 138V XONddY
A% =

W IR

%

: dAL LI hm_maxm nw@‘ \/ /
b ; o NS
B / A ,

e
AT43HLNOS
| $3NNIINDD SS300V

AL '3UNLONYLS 13AVHD | i
© uva?3unionuls {(e0d

— -

dAL 'FHNLINYLS
IAVHD 31441

QAN (3)

| IN3 NOISSINSNYIL
1
bk
oy &

e
)

dAL ‘3LNOY mmm"..u.._zo_._b:z._..mzcu N . g

z

R = ~ ' ssa00v NowoNuLsNOD R
/7 308V ONISSOND HIMOd Jal - TR
//.uﬁ:zm‘s“zo_._.:«u : ORARY
S
" R
N INMHAINTD ~

ey HIFWD SYLINNDYT Huﬂ.mnm
/. o €00 133HS 335 - 00495 VIS wzﬂ:.ﬂk

"NOILIONOD
123rodd-34d 0L A3¥0LS3Y 38 TIVHS
LVHL ONISSOND YNOZIMY SNILSIXT ¥IA SS300V €
¥00 L3FHSNO T
ONY | STI¥130 335 “1I0S 0 NOLLOYHWOIN3A0
WOX4 SLOOY Q0OMOIY IUNLYW 123108d
01 3033 38 AV SIHUNSYIN $HYvd
IVLS A8 TWAOHDdY ONIGNId O3NOW3Y 38
AWIN S334L ONILSIXI "NOILIONOD LO3ro¥d-3dd
OL 3LN0Y SSIOTV ONIMOLSIH NI ISN
HO4 JLIS-NO STVIHILYIN FALLYN TdHI01S
'$S300V HYINIIHIAA NOLLONYLSNOD 3NaVLS
HO4 03033N SY IVIHILYIN LEOJNI TWIWINIW SY
T13M SY IONVEENLSIO ONY ONIGYYHD HONIN
3ANT2NI 0L IFNNYHO OL TIvHL 30 gvoY
ONILSIX3 WOYd OYOH SS3DIV ANYHOIWIL T
“NOIS3Q Q3VLIa
FWNLNA NI Q3WHIINOD 38 OL NOLLYLOY
ONY LNIWIDVd SY T13M SV ALLLNYND
AYALIY - ATNO FONIHISIH HOJ NMOHS
LNIWIDV1d T3AYHO ANV STUNLINHLS OOM I

S310N

JUNLONYLS JOOM DNIDHOSA Bmt.t‘@
JHNLINELS QOOM LY LIBVH JQOLg

QVOY SS300V AYVHOdNIL U

JUNLONULS T3IAVHD |0

XIW 3T8B0-I3INVHED GIANNOYE o

WIHY ONIDVLS NOILONYLSNOD |/ m / u

anN3931

FHHAID ANVHALS A OILIOE We 5L 1S § 1Z0TISEI0L 1w LOTd BMP TILISHY Td-E0DN DAIUEIS HUHUIATURLLT PRUSITIEN ¥99I3 SERURLET OAMNW - 00 053000202 0NENNaZ000w0 10 d 314




9 40 12 133HS

€00

MIANON 1 TIHE

NYId
ANIWIONYHNI
€3L8S

EJUNEETH

SONIMYHO
NOIS3A %0E LIvHa
35vHd

[$£2.22) 371 TIN4 0L O30T
HIHM NAMOHS SV 51 3Tv0s

10z aLva anss|

00 0SS000Z0Z HIFNNN 130N
515983

OHIONYT W IDUVHD NI

83V Q3HIIHD

OAS NavHg

MODFPAWT_03NDIS3a

NOLLJINOS3a  Juvd  #
SHOISIAZY

|

JAYH L230Hd

WINSOATYD
ALNNOD N
NY1d INFWIINVHNI
QIHSHILYM H¥33H0
SVYLINNOVIT MW

YILYM @
NIUVW
ANZND

NOILONHLISNOD
H04 LON

AdvNIWITIHd
s

— — — — — —
. T00 133HS 335 - 00+9£S VLS INNHILYN

ATH3IHLNOS
S3NNILNOD 55300V
IVHL NIIYIN SS0HD
. it

Je, T
S ww
3 g

€ =1 3W0S Nv1d
N¥Id LNSW3INVHNI € 3LIS

dAL IUNLINHLS
QOOM SNIDHOA 31441H
F

S &

.l:/- 7 3

S
\ = w\
ve15
InT¥aLNE0 #3380 svimnov S %
b
/. 4AL 1IN 1937084

N S$5329¥ NOILONYISNOD
3A0EY ONISSOYD ¥3IMOd
QVIHY3AO ‘NOILNYD

—'ummmﬁguﬂ(om \
SSIIIV AUVHOLWIL \
/  dilovaHuano®
\. 3704 ¥3M0d (3) did

‘SIDNYNILHENDdY

Ny 3did ALMILN O1 32YAYa

AN3A3¥d OL 3LNOY SSIOIV NOILOMHLSNOD
A8 03SSOHI S3ILITLN ONILSIX3 H3A0 Q303N

SV 032¥1d 38 OL ¥3A0DMTS 3AILD310¥d -

"NOWLIONOD

123royd-3¥d OL 0340LSTH 38 1IVHS

L¥HL ONISSOHD YNOZINY ONILSIX3 VIA $S300V
P00 L33HS NO T

ONY | STIVL30 335 105 40 NOLLOV4WOIHIA0
WO¥S SLOOY GOOMOIY JUNLYIN LI3L0UL

O1 03033N 38 AVIN STUNSVIW "SHHVd

3LYLS A TWAQHLdY ONIONId 0IAOWIY 38
AW S$33d1 ONILSIX3 NOLLIONOD 103rodd-3ud
01 ILNOY SSIDIY ONIYOLSIH NI ISn

04 ILIS-HO SIVIYILYIN SAILYN 3UHHD01S
"S§S300¥ YWINIIHIA NOILONYLSNOD 318VLS
HO4 03033N SY IVIHILYIN LHOJAI TWINININ SV
13N SY IINYEUNLSID GHY DONIOVHO HONIW
3AMTINIOL TINNVHD OL TIVHL HO OV
ONILSIXI WO¥d OYOY SS300V ANYHO4WIL
NOIS30 QIWVLIA

3¥N1N4 Nl G3WMEISNOD 38 0L NOILYLOY

ONY LNIWIOVd SY 113IM SV ALILNYND
T¥NLIV - ATNO 3ON3YTF3Y HO4 NWOHS
LNIWIOVTd TINYHD ONY STHNLINELS GOOM

‘L

S31ON

FUNLONYELS GOOM SNIDHOS w‘_uu_@
fog
FUNLINYLS GOOM LYLIBYH 100d it

YIHY ONIDVLS NOILONYLISNOD . H / ” ﬁ
avoy ss300v AviodnaL [ |

UNLINYLS FAVED |

XIW 371880-13AVEO QIANNOY | /. _

b

aN3om

gD L0Ld 3T

BYI0 INYHIILS AT OTLLOT Wd P10 | 42076304 3L L0 Bwe EILISNY v E DM




88 40 gz 133Hs

14010)

HIINON LTS

Nvd
INIWIDNVHNI
¥ 3ls

EUUSEETH

SONIMYEA

NDIS3A %0E LdvHa
35T

{rE%,22) 320 TiN4 OL G3LL0
HIM HMOHS 5 §1 31905

1Z0ZELLL 31w 3nss)

00°059000Z0Z M38WNN 15300
515980

OHIIONYT ‘W IDOUVHI NI

:ELEEVBETE]

NS NAMYHG

MDEAMINT_d3nDIs3a

NOILJI¥OS30  3Jiva  #

SHOISIATY
m 8
ZzS . f
T E
> s
oE O W
5258
=
22 F3acC
ww ZzMZ
L%w
.|
T
G m %
=0
HILYM S
NISYW
PUEN )

AdYNIWEIIEd

AWTLS

WOODOSSYST AN
DOBG968'51LF - 304440

0€=.1 J¥IS Nv1d

ELTR-ETLE bo]

’ iV SSOBO NOLLONULSNOD
o s/ 3USH3INI

0—0-0—0—0—0-077

&
7

H3IYD SYLINNDYY dAL “FUNLONULS 1INVED B
HVE 2 IUNLINULS
QOOM LYL1IBYH 100d q
7 / : dAL FANLONYLS
! Ao 33a (v ) 3
dAL FHNLONHELS B —
; 000M DNI¥OA 3133l \ 1 )
P
H3FHD SYANNOVT v g _
o
Q ~ —
'$5300¥ NOLLONYLSNOD ] =
dAL LINIT 103rodd £ JA0BY ONISSOHD ¥3IMOd Q \ /
\ O¥3HY3A0 ‘NOLLNYD 5 B ~
A g YR Q (e 310N ™
i € JLON) S5320V ./.—

_ LNVHOAH 3
23 TH e

'))

=50 . SINNUNDD -
. SS300% vl
. NI¥VIN SSO¥D

- ¥370d ¥3mod (3) did
g

)

MATCHLINE STA 555+70 - SEE SHEET C05

4

.

: 50 Tebvg

ts v

~ dAL'31N0Y¥ SSI00V NOILINYLSNOD

e SR
i S

3NM3dId NOISSINSNYHL

83115 HONOWHL
© S3NNILNOD §5320V
L NISVA 550

v,

H

‘DS+EZS YIS MVIN IAvHA
SIINVYL HIS JO J0IS HLYON NO TIVHL NIdv
SSOYD J40 (r02 L33HS) ¥IUY DINDId dNOHSD
ONIAYI LY Y3HV ONIOYLS NOILDNHLSNOD ¢
“30¥1d NI S3UNSYIN
NOILO310Md 38 T3NNYHO HLIM S 31IS OL
¥ 3LIS WOY4 TINNVHO YIA SSI00V JLIS-YALNL €
P00 LIFHS NO T
QNY | STIVL30 335 "110S 40 NOLLOYdWOOHIA0
WOHd SLOOY 0OMO3Y JUNLYW 1I3108d
0L 03033N 38 AV STUNSYIN 'SHUYD
31VLS A8 TVAOHLdY ONIONId QINOWIY 38
AV S3341 ONILSIXT "NOILIONOD LO3r0¥d-38d
OL 31N0Y SSIDDV ONIYOLSIH NI 3SN
HOd ILIS"NO SIVIHILYIN IAILYN INLHD0LS
“S$5390Y HYINOIHIA NOILONYULSNOD 318VLS
HO4 03033N SY IVIHILYIN LHOJWI IWNININ SY
713M SY 3ONVEUNLSIO GHY DONIOYEO YONIW
3ANT2NI QL TINNYHD OL TvHEL ¥O avoy
ONLLSIX3 WO OYOH SS3DIV AMVHOLWIL T
"NOIS30 d3VI3a
FENLNA NI O3WHIINOD 38 OL NOLLY.LOY
ONY IN3W3OVTd SY 113M SV ALILNVND
IYNLIY - ATNO FONIHIAIY HO4 NMOHS
LN3IWIOVTd T3AVHO ONY STUNLINELS JOOM  °L

S3LON

FHUNLONHLS AOOM DNIDHOS 314418

i
JUNLONYLS OOOM LY1IB¥H ._o?mg d

QY0H SSITIV AUYHOJIWIL

3unionuIs TaAvES |

XIW 318802-13AYHD AIANNOY ©

aN3o31

3N SINYHAILS ABOILLONS Wd EVEE | 4Z0T/T08 LY LOTd B9 pILISHY IS0 DMNIUFL FUaIB0uR LT Ba usioier ¥8 91 supunBe] AN - 00 0330002020V Uea0TIaYD bih d TT.




9¢ JO €z 133HS

S00

NY1d
INIWIONVYHNI
S 3LIS

EUUSE:H

SONIMYHa
NOIS3A %0E 14vHa
Fshd

14Ex22) 3215 1104 01 GALLONS
H3HIA NMOHS S¥ S1 305

0T A1v¥a INSSI

0005300020 zannN Lo3roMd

515980

CELEGEEREDT]
JAS NAMYHO

OHIIONYT "W 398VHI NI

MOrMINT_03N9IS30

SHOWIASH

NOILJI¥OS30  31v0  #

3WVN LO3roHd

WIN¥OAITYD
JLNNOD NI
NVTd LNJWIONVHNI
QIHSHILYM H3FHD
SYLINNOYTMIN

NOILONY1SNOD
404 LON

AdYNIATIE
LS

OO DOSSVST I
£OSS ALY - ADUH0
ZUSKE D ONYTHYO
0501 3WNS

ININY ONVEO 081

r
YSd 4

- ~ S3ANLLNOD §S32¥

(Z 3LON) §8300%

: NOLLONHLSNOD
hY

3LISHILNI

“LINN LD3roNd

B /

omsE )
il

TVHL NINVIA SSOHD

Q€ =.1 3T¥2S N¥1d

NYId LNIW3ONYHNI 6 3LIS

4ALIHNLONNLS T3AVHD /503"
HYE 7 3UNLONMLS t -

QOCM LYLISVYH 100d

~ - i 3unonuis (i0aY
v I v )

. &
O0O0M DNIDHOS 374414 q

dAL ‘3HNLONYLS

ANIYIALNID
33D SYLINNOYT

wazud Qw_zooﬁ. v

uenss 5

93ls
HONOX¥HL SS320Y

TYHL NINYW SSOND =

05+EZ5 VLS HYIN Divia
SIONYHd ¥IS 40 30IS HLYON NO TIVYL NIdvN
SSOMD 440 (P0D 1ITHS) WIHY DINDIH dNOHD
ONINYI LY YUY ONIOYLS NOILLONMLISNOD
0% 1d NI SFUNSYIN
NOILIILOYd 038 TINNYHD HLIM S 3LIS OL
¥ 3LIS WO TINNYHD VIA 5S300V JLIS-H3INI T
'NOIS3A 03VL3a
JUNLNA NI O3NSISNOD 38 OL NOILVLOY
ANV LNIW3DV1d SY T13M SY ALILNYND
AVYNLIV - ATNO ITINIHII3Y YOS NMOHS
ANIWIDVI 1IAVED OHY STUNLINYLS GOOM 'L

S31ON

Vo
FUNLINYLS GOOM DNIDHOS 1441
JUNLONYLS GOOM LvLIgYH 100d g

FUNLONYLS TIAVED

XIW 318802-13AYYO G30NNOY ‘ \

aN3o3a1

SEHGNEET QA - 00 0390002020NINGZOTINS L0k d 34

DYID FINYHAILS A8 OFLLOTd Vel 8O PE ¢ LIGLIELDL 1% 107




9€ 40 ¥Z L3I3HS

90D

HIANON LIS

NYId
INIWIONVYHNI
g3Ls

EQUSEERH

SONIMYHT

NOIS3A %0E Ldvda
35Hd

{p15.22) 3215 Tind OL G0N
NI HMOHS SY 5131905

LZOTEMLL
J00"059000Z0Z M3mWNH 153r0N
515983
OHIIONYT ‘W IOUVHD NI
83Y  IHOIHD
2AS WY
MOTAIWT  O3HDIS3a

aLva 3nsst

NOILJINOS3a  Juwd  #
SHOISIATY

TN 123°0Hd

VINSOAYD
ALNOD NIYYI
NV1d LNIWIONVYHNI
A3HSYHILYM Y33H0
SYLINNOVT MW

T
NIHYW

1NN

NOILLONYE1SNOD
d04 IC

AdVNINITSHd
s

WOO DOSSYSTIAM

VSH 4

AL LINN LD3r0Nd s

dAL ‘QY3H¥IN0
¥ 310d ¥3IMO0d (3) did

Ald3LsY3
SINNILLNOD §§322V

LE=.1 3IVIS HYd

N¥1d INJWIDNYHN3I 9 LIS

3NITHILNID HIFHO SYLINNDVT

dAl 3WNLONYLS
QOOM ONIDYOA 314414

dAL F¥NLONYLS

dAL ‘IHALINYULS 13AVED B

i
e

-~ HVYE 7 3¥NLINYLS
QOOM LYLIBYH 100d

(z310H) ayoy
SSI2DV AHVHOCWIL
(€310
| ¥3uY OINDId JIOXD
INM3did NOISSINSHYHL
MW (3) did
: $300V NOLLONYLSNOD
IA0AY ONISSOND HIMOd
QV3HE3N0 NOLLNWD
R

DS+EZS YIS MYIN IHVHO
SIINYYL HIS 40 30IS HLHON NO TIVHL NIYYN
SS0HD J40 (F09 133HS) ¥VIYY DINII JNOHD

ONIAYI 1Y YIHY ONIDVLS NOILONYLSNOD

‘DS+HZS LS

¥YIN 018 IHVHA SIONVYS IS 30 3AIS HLEON
NO (P09 133HS 335) W3HY JINDId dNOND
ONIAYI NOHS SS30DY TIVHL NINYW SS0HD

“F0Q 133HS NO Z

ONY | STI¥130 335 “TI0S 40 NOILIVANOIHIAG
WOY4 S100H QOOMAIY 3MNLYIN LI3LONd

0L 03033N 38 AVN SUNSYIW 'SHIVA

ILYLS AB WAOHddY ONIONId 03AOWIY 38
AW S33HL SNILSIX3 ‘NOLLIONOD 1O3rodd-3ud
01 31N0Y 55300 SNIMOLSIH NI 35N

Y04 3LIS-NO STVINILYW IALLYN IUDID0LS
*S5300V HYINJIHIA NOILONHLSNOD 318VLS
04 03QTIN S¥ IVIHALYIN LHONI TYWININ SY
T13M S¥ JONVEHNLSIO ANY ONIOVED HONIW
3AN1INI 0L 1INNYHO OL TvH1 HO OvoH
ONILSIXT WO¥S O¥0Y SS3ID0V AHYHOWIL
“NOIS30 a3Ivi3a

3NN N 03NHIINOD 38 OL NOLLYLON

ONY INIW3OW1d 5% T13M SY ALLINYND
WNLOY - ATHO 3DNIHIATY HO4 NMOHS
ANIWIOVT T3AVHD ONY STHNLINYLS JOOM

b

S310N

JUNLINYLS AOOM DNIDHO S w._.._u:%

JYNLONYLS OOOM LYLI8VH 100d

AYOH SS3D0V AMYHOLNIL D

JYNLINYLS M3AVED T

XN 318800 T3NS azannoy |

aN3oa

3¥HYI0 JINVHSILS A9 O3LLOMS W L0 5 | IZ02/6T08 TLw L0Td BVR TALISNY I LONDMOISI 1owsIuRUUT PHYSIAIEM 19040 STRunle] QAW - 0 0350002OZONIRERIZONTND L0V d 3T




8¢ 40 sz 133HS

0D

HIBWOH LIS

NY1d
INIAWIINVHNI
L3118

EAUSEEEH

SONIMYSEA

NOIS30 %0E LIvHa
I5vHd

7) 3718 TIN4 01 03110
31 NAOHS 5Y 51 3705

L20ZZHLL Avd Inss)

00'0S3000Z0Z HIBWNN 1D DM

515980
OHIIONYT "W 3DHYHO NI
T & ovowm
_ans w0
MDrMINT - g3NoIs3a

NOILJINOS3a EREE]
SNOISIAGY
i 8
22
m
VEM
EBE
£2 HMW
At
g2 Om=
3 Z =
L%ulv_
T
T
L m @
= 0

HIVM S
NI¥YW

1IN

diveis

WODDOSSYET MM

ANMIAY GNVHD 041

1
YSd 4

1334 ERLBE
(— o ———

YHL NIYYIN SSO¥D

Fia

— - -
e e
~ ey
dAL ‘F¥NLINYLS

TAVUD HVE T
JYNLINYLS QOOM
AV1ISYH 7004

dAL 3NN 4mum¢n. XOHddY

b

a

3
A -
QA8 IHVHO SIDNVYL HIS (o0

08 =1 FTWOS Nv1d

Nv1d LINIJWIDNVHN3I £ 3LIS

(z 310N) avoy
55300V AMYHOdWIL

00+€08

T

dAL 3UNLONULS

3AVYES 37441

» & 3LIS HONOYWHL
SSIV0V VML
NIYYN SSO¥D

S

dAL ‘3LN0OY SS300V
NOLLONYLSNOD

ANIMHILNID M3 NI SYLINNOYT

dAL JUNLONYLS a
QOOM ONIDYDA F1aty \_I )
& 3 i

EEELLE]
123royd 3¥nLnd NI O314LLN30I ONY O31¥007
38 0L 134 34V SIOUNOSIY NV STUNLINYULS
IYOIHOLSIH ONY TVENLIND TVIIN3LOd  F
‘00+/8F ¥1S HYIN
QYO HyYd HOTAVL 440 FDA¥E HOTAVL dWYD
40 30IS WY3H1SdN OL LINIOYraY ¥3uY JINOId
dNON9 IN0UD GOOMO3N NI (800 LIZHS)
B 3LIS LY Y3IuY ONIOVLS NOILDNULSNOD '€
#00 L33IHS NO T
AaNY | STI¥L30 335 105 40 NOLLOVAWOOHIAO
W04 SLOOH QOOMOIY JUNLYN LI3L0¥d
O1 G3033N 38 AYIN SIHNSYIN "SHNYL
JLVLS AR TYAOUJJY DONIONId O3AOWSYH 38
AVIN 53341 ONILSIX3 "NOILKONOD 1O3royd-3ud
0L 3LN0Y SS320V ONIMOLSIH NI 3N
HO4 3LIS-NO STVIHILYW JAILYN 31JdHND0LS
“$S3D0V WVINDIHIA NOILLONHLISNOD F18VLS
HOd4 Q3033N SY TYIHILYN LEOJNI TYINININ SV
T13M SY IONYBNNLSIO ONY DNIOVHD YONIN
FANTINI 0L TINNYHD O1 TvHL N0 VoM
ONILSIX3 WOY4 O¥0Y SSAD0V AUVHOJWIL T
'NDIS3a 03 IVL30
JHNLNS NI Q3WHIINGD 38 OL NOLLYLOY
AONY LINIWIIVH SY T13M SV ALLLNYND
TYNLIY - ATNO FONIHIITY HOH NMOHS
AN3IW3DVd 13AVHO ONV SIHUNLINYLS G0OM 1

S3LON

FHNLONYLS QOOM LYLIBYH ._Doag

OQV0Y SSIIIV AHVHOSNIL
FUNLONYLS 1IAVHD

XN 31880 2-13AYHD Q3ANNOH 9% ‘_

anN3oa

HOR0ZOT VXN

FUUT GOSN Y600 SEINNETT ONIAH - 00 03

104 ALYO L0 B¥R 3 LIS-HY 1 SOOUSANWEI S Wauis:

0 55 L 12025

MEYID IINVHILS A8 03107 Vd




9 JO 9z 133HS

800

MITNON | TG

NY1d
IN3WIONVHNI
g3LIs

ENURE=T

SONIMYHO
N2IS30 %0 14vya
3Hd

1PEXZT 3705 TIN4 01 GALLON
M3HA NAOHS S¥ 51 3TvDS

HISAON LI3r0Hd

2oz ENLCE ]

515980

83V J3x23HO
OAS NN
MONMINT_ 03N9DIS30

CHOIONYT 'W_JDUVHO NI

SHOBIAH

NOILdI¥DS30  31va  # |

NN L3CHd

AlinG i
NYTd INIJWIONVHNI
Q3HSHILYM %3340
SYLINNOYTMIN

404 1ON

AdVMNINTIEd

LS

WOO'DOSSVET I
D055 B55LY - IIIHI0
TH996 YD ONY IO

5d 3 00+0 ¥1S AMYLNEBIHL NOANYD LYDTTM

O€ =.1 3IVIS NY1d

NY1d INSW3ONYHNI 8 3LIS

C dAL W3y .,.uz_m.uq.hm

g T ¥ o
A ZDFu:EmZDu (€ 3L0K)
— .b.' 3D0IY8 HOTAVL dINVD WO

$S300V QVOH HYd HOTAVL

(2 3L0N) Ovoy . M
S5302Y AUVHOIWIL £ % e S
fu.x
k ’ L. ¥3u¥ JINDId dNOYS
. > IN0HD QOOMATH

\ ..
\ ANMYILIN3D b\
J HIFUD SYLINNDY

dALLIWIN L23royd

dAL IHNLONYLS
TINVHO ¥YE 7
FHNLONHLS AOOM “
...(.r_.us‘_ 1004 [

= e .. %,

FUNLONULS QOOM

- ONIO¥04 31341y
TN

wnﬁnc* (Fw u_mmzu m(._._Z_JEfJ

39N3NT3NOD

‘390148 NYdS

3344 HO 'ONILHONAYA DNISSOHI YNOZINY
TWYLNI AVIN LNE 'SISYHJ NOISIO 39nLnd

NI O3NIWY3130 38 O1 NOLLYIIHI00W LH3ATND
‘antg

IHVEA SIDNVYL HIS WOHL HLNOS 'MOTAYL
WY HONOYHL S5320Y IDAINE HOTAVL dWVD
P00 LIIHS NO T

ONY | STIYL30 335 I0S 40 NOILOVAWOIHIAO
WOM4 S1O0Y 000MAOIY IUNLYW LO310¥d

01 03033N 38 AV STUNSYIN "SHUVL

3L¥1S AB IWVAOYHddY ONIOM3d J3A0W3Y 38
AV S33YL ONILSIXS 'NOLLIGNOD 133r0¥d-34d
‘0L 3LNOY SSIIIV ONIYOLSIY NI 35N

HO4 31IS-NO STVIHILVIN AILYN 3dHI0LS
"SSIDIV UVINIIHIA NOLLONYLSNOD T18VLS

© ¥04 Q3033N SY TVINELYIN LHOJWI TYWININ SY

T13M SV IONYENNLSIO ONY ONIOVED HONIW
30NTONI OL TINNYHD OL MyHL HO avoy
ONLLSIX3 WOH4 QYOH SSIIIV ANVHOINIL
‘NOIS30 037Y13a

FHUNLNS N A3WHIJNGS 38 OL NOILVYLOY

ANV LNIN3IV1d SV T13M SV ALLLNYND
TVNLIY - ATNO FONIHIATY HOJ NWOHS
ANIWIIVTd 13AVED ONY SIENLONHLS GOOM

N

FHNLONHLS AOOM DNIDHOS m._uu%

S310ON

JUNLONYLS GOOM LYLIBYH .—ODE% ?

W34V NOLLYHOLS3H 3DV4uNS %
vauy vaoway tamaas T
VIUY ONIDVLS NOLLONNLSNOD §
vox ss300v AnveoanaL [ |

FWNLONULS TIAVHD |

XIW 318A00-13AVED G30NN0Y [ |

HOTAVL dWVI HOMNOWHL
wmuuu VO YA BOTAYL —~

aN3oa

[EPELT

X9310 SEANERT CAUNA

IHEYID INVHAILS AT 03LI0TE We L5 96 | 1ZOTKLI0L 3LV LOTd BWD 83 118Ny lams0:




98 40 [z 133HS

600

HITNAN 1FFHS

NY1d
ANIWIDNVHNI
6 3LIs

UL 133HE

SONIMYHA

NDIS3Q %0E L4vHa
3svHd

{rX.27) 325 T4 OL 03LL0%d
H3HM HAKOHS S S13 VDS

IZOZRLILL 31v0 3NssI
00°0S900020 a3amnn 1I3ro84
515883

_OHOIONYT W ZouvkO M
83Y_ 03INO3HD

NS NMYHO
MODIMWT  Q3NDIS3a
NOILdI¥D53a EIL ]
)
m 9
= E
Im=
Zms
=
03 O W
2 mes
3g 23 @
22 mdC
wm =
= % w
=
T
Em?
= Q
YILVM S
NIHVW
ANIND
NOILDNELSNOD
HO4 LOMN

A vNIAITE NS
anis
WOYD0SSVSI MM

0065 B68'S1F - 321440
1996 ¥2 'OV DIVD.

“GATE IHVHA SIINYHJ YIS WOHd HLNOS
HOTAVL diYO HONDYHL 3DCING HOTAYL
dNYD WOHS SSID0V OVOH HHYd HOTAVL 'S
00+ I1¥¥ YLS HYIN TIVHL
NI¥VW SSOYD VIA Q3SSITOV HOIND S TINIT 40
QN3 SHL ¥V3N YINY ONDIEYd HIVHL ISHOH
1¥ (509 133HS) v3uY ONIDVLS NOILONHLSNOD ‘¢
"$S300V HO4 HLVd TVEL AMYANOD3S
‘ONILSIX3 H3A0 G30vHO 3§ 0L dWVY '€
#00 133HS NO
ANY L $TIV130 33S 110 40 NOLLOVAWODHIAD
WO¥4 SLOOH OOOMOIH JHNLYIN LDILONS
0L O3033N 38 AVIN STUNSVYIW "SHUY
r J1VIS A8 IWAQHLY ONIONId O3A0WIY 38
: e AV S33L ONILSIX3 ‘NOLLIGNOD LO3rONe-T4d
4 $ & 4 OL 31N0Y SSIDIV ONIYOLSIH NI 3SN
Jr k< i \ HO43LISNO SIVINILYI IALLYN TUMO0LS

O£ =1 AWos HYld
NYId LNIWIONVYHNI 6 3LIS

S HOTAVL VIA S5322V
~ VUL NI¥YW SSO¥D

g A e
s -
S N
(S JLON) QYO MaVd S o™ o ./. .

. FLSELANI
. 183AI02
N T diND 8L () did — T

. T
/,
~ ./
~ a ~
8 <

s ~
&.@v 23 3 /

.+ 'SS3D0V ¥VINOIHIAA NOLLONYULSNOD 318VLS
ﬂ. HO4 03033N SY TYIHILYW LHOJWNI TYWININ SY
T13M SY IONYEUNLSIA ONY ONIOYHO HONIW
3ANTINI 0L TINNVYHD OL TIvy1 ¥O avoy
OMNILSIX3 WO¥H QYO SSI0IV ANYHOLWIL 2
‘NOIS30 a3VL3a
FENLNA NI O3WHIINOD 38 OL NOLLVLOY
ONY LNIWIDV1d SY 113M SY ALILNYND
IYALIV - ATNO 3ON3YIF3Y HO4 NVOHS
¢+ IN3IWIIVId 1IAVHO ONY STUNLONHLS GOOM L

3ATYA 30INM3S
¥ILYM (3) did

3NITTdId NOISSIWSNYHL

_own @ did S3LON

%, 7 i ) {~

s,
P

N ? ' I~ X s
. - \\ 3 \ FYNLOMNYLS OOM ONIDHOS 14418 o
ANNEILNID HIIND SYLINNOYT \

3 e ! (€72 3L0N) Ovou 5

o \ // $5309V )mt‘.mcm—-_w._r FHUNLONHULS QOOM LYLISVH 100d il
~

i QV0oY SSIVIV AMVHO4WNIL =
Funionuis 13avee |0
XIN 31880013AVED Q3ANNOY ¢ .. \\ _
% SRR Ak aN3oaT

Cpts SSPUE DY . £

55323V NOLLONYLSNOD

ATYIHLYON
/ SINNLLNOD S5300V

VAL NIV SSOUD -
N
N

B dAL ‘FENLONYLS TIAVHD
q HYE ® IHNLONHLS

QOOM LYLIBYH 1004 =

S a dAL JHNLONYLS \c.;\.\ .v,w,w?
T3NVED F1441 o o,

s Y s &qsa
S (200N aau3unionuls ~/ 4,

q OOOM ONIDHOS 3441 2 -

dAL'LINM 123r0Nd
%, 7
N
K w/ Y
ey Do
e o

Y . £0-080-991

il M g Nely

3970 IINYHAILS A QILIONE Wt 25 46 1 12026201 31w LOTd B9 SILISHYTd-DI ADMOIRL INOWaTURYu3 Pausiale {6213 Sepuntie] ANV - DO'033000LOCVRCGIONIYS LA d 34




9€ JO 8T 133HS

01D

HISNON LTS

Nvd
INIWIONVHNI
0L 31s

ENUSE=RH

SONIMY SO

NOIS3A %0t 14vHa
25vHd

Lpex27) 32 1iNd 01 03110
MIHIN HMOHS S¥ 81 3Tvas

L2022 A1va 3nsst

HIBAON LOFOld

515080
OHOIONYT "W_30HVHI NI
T mav_aawoand
375 NAAWNO

MDrMINT_03NSIS3a

NOLLJINDS30  3ivad  #

SHOGIAH

AVH 123r0Hd

VINHOAITYD
JLNAOD NIV
NV1d LINJWIONVHNI
QIHSHILYM X33H0
SVLINNOVT MIN

AdvYNINIIIYEd

anvis

WO DOSEYSTINAM
BOESBRTSLY - IDHI0
U996 YD ONYDIVO

L€ = .1 3TVIS

NYld

N¥1d LNIWIONVYHNS 01 31IS

FEGEL ANI
LHIATIND anD 81 (3) did et
& 6311S HONOHL SS300V
VAL NIYVIN SSOHD

3NI3d1d NOISSINSNYHL

INHIALNIO TR (3) did

n #3IIY3 SYLINNDY
vy,
t

’
0059,

B ' %n.ﬁ FANLINYLS T3AVED
’ ) 4¥8 7 IUNLINULS

0OOM LY1I8VH 1004

M SS (3 did
o

dAl ‘3N S5 (3) did

- FTUZLANL
LEIATIND W0 +2 (3) dI

s

S

dAL ‘3LNOY NOLLONYLSNOD '

dAL 1IN 19370¥d

00+ LFF V1S HY3IN TIWHL NIHYIN

SS0¥D ¥IA 0355320V HOIND S.IA3A JOONI

3HL ¥Y3IN (50D 1I3HS) VIHY ONDIEVL HITvHL
ISHYOH LV YUY ONIOVLS NOLLONYLSNOD '€

"S3SWH NOIS30 34N LN NI G3INIWY3 130

38 TTM 135440 "INIT3dId NOISSINSNYYL

OAMIWIN 0¥ 135440 WNINININ ¥ 38 O v3uY

ONIDVLS INVHI 'ONIDINTS HO/ANY INVHD AR
@3SS300V 38 LSNW 31IS 55300V ALIS A3 T

‘N2IS30 03V13a

JUNLNS NI G3WHIINOD 38 OL NOLLYLOY

QNV INFWIOV1d S¥ T13M SV ALILNVYND

IVNLIY - ATNO IONIUIAIY HOJ NMOHS
ANIWNIIVTd 1FAVHO ONY SIUNLONYLS QOOWM L

S310N

FHNLONYLS QOOM LVLIBYH JOOL%. i

FENLONYLS 1IAVHD

anN3oan

0D Lovd 34

IUHYID INYHLILS AT QILI0TE N EF 95 1 LZ0TBTI0 IAVD L0 Td BYR LI LIS-NY I | LOUDMOWE S 1HAWBIVELUT PAUSISIEMN X210 SEINNEET GMWA - 00 03500020CN Rt




98 JO  6Z 133HS

1334

11O

HIBNNN 13315

NYd
ANIWIONYHNI
LLals

JUN LIMS

SONIMYHO

NDISIA %0E L4vHd
EE)

Lyex22) 375 104 01 0310
HIHA NAMOHS 5V 51 375
\ZOZZ WL IR,

S15980
OHJIONYT "W 3DYYHI NI
83% _ APHITIHD

J00'0S9000Z0Z HIBWNN 103 Old

NS NMYHO

MODAMIWT_03N9IS3a

NOLLJI¥OS3a  31va  #

SHOIAZY
;
Mo S
Rz ¢
HV_._._M
NNVA
g3 O
£3 :._M
InZ=r0
So
i O0RS
ul%m
0
T
Lm?
Z O
ET
NIHYW

OE =.1 WIS Nyld

NY1d LNIW3ONVHN3I LI 31IS

R A G T T
01 3LIS HONOWHL

HYd X0¥dd
© $5320V Tivdl o5

J . TR
© dAL'ILNOY §5300¥ B
- NOILONHLSNOD

e

did

© dAL'3NNsS (@)

FLETL ANI
L¥3AIND dWD .81 (3) did

dAL ‘A¥IHEIA0 z
7 3704 ¥3IMO4 () did L
FEVEL AN T

L1¥3AIND WD .81 (3) dld

dAL 'VIHY ONIDVLS
- NOLLONHLSNOD

FLVTLANI
A¥3IAIND dWD 8L (3) did

{# -2 S3LON) avoy
SS300V AdYHOLWIL \

a AL SHNLONNLS TIRVED

s P

e B dAL IMNLONHLS

5 LN
A B dAL FUNLONHLS
2 TOOM DNIDHOS 374418

E

5 e

=

"S3ISVYHA
123ro¥d 3¥nind NI g3141N30I ONY 031¥201
38 01 L3A 34V SIOUNOSIH ANV STUNLINUYLS
YIIHOLSIH ONY TYHNLIND THLNILOd 7§
"390148 1004 AOOM ONILSXI
SSOUDY ONINNYLS 300148 AHYHOJWIL
SY 030v1d 38 OL H¥3 1Ivd 318N00 ¢
"SIINYNILUND Y
QNY 3did ALNILN OL 3DVINVD
AN3A3Yd OL ILNOYH $SI0DV NOLLONYLSNOD
A8 03SSO¥D SIALLNLLN SNILSIXI H3A0 03033N
S¥ 030Y1d 38 OL ¥3A0INW4 JALLDILOHd '€
YOO LITHSNO T
ANV | STVL30 335 "1I0S 30 NOLLOVJWOIHIAD
WO¥4 SLOOY QOOMO3H IUNLYW L23104d
01 03033N 38 AVIN STHNSYIN ‘SHivd
31YLS A8 TWAOKJJY ONION3d 0IAOWIY 38
AV S3341 ONILSIX3 NOILKINOD 103rodd-3dd
01 3LNOH SSIJOV ONIHOLSIH NI 35N
HO4 JLIS-NO STIVIHILYIN SALLYN FdHI0LS
’S§300V HYINOIIHIA NOILONYLSNOD 318VLS
¥O4 03033N SY TYIHILYW LHOdNI TYWININ SY
T13M SY JINVEHNLSID ONY DNIOVED HONIW
30NN OL TINNYHD 01 TvHL HO aYoH
ONILSIX3 WOYS OYOY SSIOOV AUVHOIWIL  Z|
'NOIS30 a37v130
FWNLNA NI O3WHIINOD 38 OL NOILYLOY
ANV INZWIOVd SV T13M SV ALILNYND
TYNLIY - ATNO FINIHISTY ¥Od NMOHS
AN3WIIVTd T3AVHO ONV STHNLINKULS O0M 1]

S31ON

Y3HY ONIDVLS NOLLONMLSNOD
aVYON §S300V AHVHOLINEL
FHNLINYLS T3AVHD

XN 3188001INVHD Q3ANN0Y L -y

[SEREN]

02w 1k 304

IAMVID IINVHAILS ABOILLO WA STSE | LEDIBIOL LY L0 P11 2LISHWITH ADIMCIUTI iUy uT PoUSINEM 18040 SebuniCe] QMNP - 00 039000202 TVNDNG;




9€ 40 0 133HS

¢lO

HIBANN 133HS

NY1d
ANIWIONYHNI
Zl3ls

UL LTFHS

SONIMVHT

NDIS3A %0E Ldvya
F5vHd

(¥E4E2) 3215 1N OL TILLOW
H3HM NANOHS S S1 3708

J00'0S5000Z0Z w38wn LO3roud
515880

83Y_ OI!MOIHD
ons NWved

N¥1d LNIW3DNVHN3I Z1 31IS

i

SHEET

"0S+ECS VLIS HVIN INVHA

SIONYH4 HIS 40 3015 HLHON NO HVHL NINYW

SSOUD 440 (0D 133HS) VIHY DINDId JNOYD
ONIAYI LY VIUY ONIOVLS NOLLINYLSNOD €

‘$3SWHd N9IS3a

S¥NLNA NI G3NINY3130 38 TIM 138440

“INN3dId NOISSIWSNVAEL GMINN WOH4 135440

WNWINIA ¥ 38 OL INIWGIND3 "TIvEL NIYY

SSOHD NO GIDVLS LNIWLIND3I 32IMIS 13AVHED

HO/ONY INVHD "ONIDINTS YO/ONY 3NVED A8
@355300V 38 LSNW 3LIS 'SS302¥ LS QaLWNN T

“NOIS30 OFTVLIA 3ENLNE NI

Q3WHIINOD 38 OL NOILYLOY ONV INIW3OV1d

SY¥ T13M SV ALLLNVNOD TVNLOY - ATNO
3ONIHI4TY O NWMOHS INIW3OV1d 13AVES "L

et et
CHLINE STA 96460 - SE|

1ZozZL/LL 31¥0 INESI

OHJIONYT W _3DHVHI NI

NOMMWAT_03N9IS3a

S31ON

NOLLVLNIWONY 13AYED %

SNOIBIAIY

NOLLINO$30  3Lva  #

VINNOAIVO
ALNNOD NI¥VN
NV1d LNIJWIONVHNI
QIHSHILYM X33HD
SYLINNDVTMIN

FWYN LO3r0Nd

L6+FB5 VLS X3IJHD SYLINNOVT
00+0 V1S ¥3IHI ONINOYID NS

WALYM @
NIYW
A3

12)

NOILONYLSNOD
d0d LON

AUVYNINN3Hd

aHvLS

aN3oaT

CEE]

0913 SERURERT NI

FHUYID INVHIILS A8 OILLO TS We PE O | LZOHEZ0L FAWA LOTd BMPYLALIS-NY




SE JO £ 133HS

€10

HIANNN 13HS

Nv1d
LNIWIONYHNIT
€l als

ELITREE T

SONIMYHO

NDISTIA %0E 14vHa
35He

LpExzz) 3718 1IN4 0L 03L100E
HIHA HAAOHS 5V S1 305

1202 31va 3nss|

00" 059000Z0Z HzannM 103roud

515380

OHOKINT W_398YHI NI
EECANGEREELE]
OAS___ WMwHG

____MDMMWT_0aNoIs3a_

NOILAINOS30  31vd  #
SHOISIAIY
;

m o] z

zZy H

I m w

Zm=

=
0: O W
2 mS
5 V 9
S EhE
53 zmZ
3 % W
o
o

Lm?

Z 0O
RET =
NIMYW

FUED-]
NOILONHLISNOD

HO4 1ON
AdYMIWET3Ed

dYLS

WODDOSSYST I
0065558 517 - 301440
T1996 VD OHYINVG

DE=.1 3OS Nvd
NY1d INFWIONVHNI €1 3LIS

sy
004685 — e

FNMYILNID HIFHD SYLINNDYT

AT¥31Sv3
S3INNILNOD
= SS300 TVl
B NIHYW SSOuD
= g g

dAL ‘Q¥IHYINO 7
3704 H3IMod (3) did

$S300V NOLLONHLSNOD
3N08BY ONISSOND Y3IMOd
LEGEELTH %

231IS HONOYHL SS300Y
UL NIEYIN SSOHD
VLg%
b7
Nk

— i — — — — — — ) e
200 133HS 335 - 562+285 VLS INTHOLYW /.llﬁlwwl.. : i

0S+EZS V1S HY3IN VHA

SIONYYS YIS 40 3QIS HLYON NO TIVHL NIdv
SSOY2 430 (F0D 13IHS) VIHY DINOID NoYD
ONIAY] LV ¥IHY DNIDVLS NOLLONHLISNOD
"§3S¥Hd NOIS30

JYNLNS NI O3NINE3130 38 TIA L35340
“3NI3dId NOISSIWSNYYL GMINN NOYS 135340
WNIWINIA Y 38 0L INSWHINDT “1IVHL NIivIN
SSO¥D NO AIDVLS LNIWLIND3 32IN7S 13IAVHD
HO/ANY INVHD "ONIHNTS YO/ONY INVHED Ag
@3S5300Y 38 LSNW 3LIS "S5303% LIS Q31NN
"NOIS30 Q3 NVL3A JHUNLNS NI

Q3IWEIINOD 38 OL NOILYLOY ONY LNINIOVId
SY TIIM SY ALLLNYND T¥NLOY - ATNO
3ONIHI4IY HOJ NMOHS LNIWIDV1d 13AVHD

'k

S31ON

NOLLYLINIWONY 13IAYHD vv ¥ w‘.‘ )

an3oa

IHEID INYHIALE A8 O3LL0TE W 6 (b | 1Z0TBEI0L 3190 L0 BWR L TLISNYIGTOTADMINEIC IUAWB3UE UUT 59 430l X900 SEHURER ] QMM - 00'03S000ZOCVROOGZINYD L0V d 3704




9€ 40 Z£ 133HS

ONPANYTS
40 51Y ISNIYOY HOILO3LOND 304 €
—\ o “3LIS HOV3 L¥ 3SM MO 358 NO ON343a
TIM INIWIOVTd 13AVHO SO IHOIH T
“ONINWYJS QYIH133LS
B ONY NOWTYS OHOD ¥04 318¥LINS
13AVHO UIONNOY QILHOS ONY QIHSYM
40 15ISNOD TIIM 3¥NLON: 3
ERCER A JUNLONULS wM_mu_.MOL. e w3 Tnsoud £ 1334 ELLE
. ————__— 3}
FENLONYLS 1FAVHD I7d41d \ ¥ ok s 0 st &
JHNLONYLS i
adooM-100d-314414
08 -.08
ERUSE:E
SONIMYEA
N9OIS3A %0E 14vda
ISYHA

{frexze) 3218 TIN4 0L G3LLO
NIHA NAOHS S S1 3705

120z ILW0 NS
JO0'0S3000Z0C ¥38NNN L3308
515980

| __OHOIGNYT W 39dYHO NI

B3V 03#03H0 >
IAS NMVYO )
MDIAINT_03N9IS30 i 13AVHO G3ANNOY m
OV ORY O L0 IS 3Junonyts aoom (200
= ONI¥0A 3 (T )
o
=
]
o
NOWLJIHIS30__ 3lvd #
SHOISIAIY
0L = .1 TI¥oS M3IA NY1d
3 1334 3vos i FUNLONYLS QOOM-TCO4-3 14414 TwIIdAL
B e D=
Q9 oc oL o 5 o
2o
2 - f dAL OPI-06 dAL 0809 |
Im=
Z03
P
e o
>3
£E= M = )
g = >
€ mdcCc
5 zM=Z
| =
= % W_
ok e
Lm?
=0

NOILONYLS

404 10N

AAVNINTTIEd

a1

WO DOSSYSIT MM dAL ‘FHNLINYLS O0OM LYLISVH 100d
DOSS S6E'SIY - IDI0 (1 ILONI JUNLINHLS TIAYHD TT4414 1
U986 VD QHYTIVO

ANMIAY ONYHO 081
‘ruz..:u:z._.m aoom (700

‘ ONIZHO3 34 \ 21

0LBZ0L FLWQ 1OV VD AMANG- T ITUDMCIUR S |4SUsSUTHUT PO Y HTM, 48813 SEIUNER T QWA - 00 D53000Z070VX00T0TdND kv d 314

NI ITHILS AS DILLOE WA PP LT L L




%8 40 £ 133HS

c0d

HITHOM | IIHS

vi3a-
JYNLONYLS AOOM
ONIOYOS 314419

ENTIREETE

SDONIMYYA

NDIS3Q %0E L4vHa
35Hd

27 3216 T4 01 G3LLod
I NIAOHS SY SI 37905

1ZozeLe
J00°0S8000Z0Z H3aWNN 193r0Hd

S15980
OHOIONYT'W 3OHVHO NI
83Y  O3%23HD

31v0 3nss!

NS NMWMYHO
MDA 03NDIS3a
NOILLdINOS3Q 3va  #
SNOISIASH
SE
. 2R3
2 O<h
£z M s o
g =2
z< m — =
R zm=
= % ulv_
T
=
bem
>0
HIALYM
NIIYW

inana

dWris

WOD DOSSVST PN

£=.1 3w0s man Nowoas £=.137v08 MIRNd

ONILNYId 310d AN \¥E/ ONILNYd 3104 3AN &/
1334
—_—— EE Chiss

rm ==
* £ » £ o sl £
{5 ® ¥ '£3LON) 53104 AN
FUELELVE] HON3¥L woLll08 9 r o R B s B T — — — — —
¥ NIN YAV T1OULNO:
NOISO¥3 q
(13NNYHD

S3VA

3AvHS NaIS3a

2148V TOULNGD
NDISOY3 —_wjﬁ_w_:._.9
5310430 1NVId N/

HIOHAIE MOTIVHS
JYIHM Ld30X3 D0 £
dAL 'S370d MOTIM 3AN

(z 40 dAL) Q¥MLOOY
HLPWA D01 81 X W10 .¥T

01 O3NNId

b mt. 201
H30IN08 NOL-Z

dAL “TINNYHD 3AILDY (3}

(z 40 dAL) Q¥MLOOY
HLM 901 .0 X ¥I0 .#Z

(£00) ans 001 oL a3nNIs
\&z/ 430708 NOLT

{1 3L0N)
(z 40 dAL} O¥MLOOY
HLUM 907 .0¢€ X ¥IQ .¥Z

{1+ 310N

{13101

01 -0 S3HvA

40 3903 ® ® ®
»NVE 4O 301 _

NE3LIVd
ONILNYd
HYINONVIEL

(5% ¥ e SALON)
3704 3AN

NOLLYTTYLSNI OL HOIMd §3104d 3AIT WOHZ S3AYIT TI¥ dIdLS TIVHS HOLIVHINGD
“O3LNINT TN

N338 3AVH STUNSYIN TOULNOD NOISOHI ¥IL4Y INIWIOVTH ¥O4 03 1IHI0LS

ONY SNISENHS NV ¥¥310 ONRING 03LS3ANYH 38 TIvHS S3231d 0OOM JAILYN
"ONIAITNON ONY S310345 3AILYN

HIHLO FB AVIN %0S ONINIYWIH "SMOTTIV AT %05 40 WNNINIW ¥ 38 TIVHS STHONVEE
‘SISATVNY ALITIEYLS NO 03S¥E TY.LLIWSNS 1X3N

NI O3NIS3¥ 38 0L "AMYNINITI NG S1 ONLLSYTIVE ONY SHOISNIWIO ‘NOILYHNDIINGD 501
T13NNYHD 3HL 3A08Y SSINGIILS 3d0TS NO 3SVE AYA 1T D01 WYIHLSdN 40 HIONTT

€

T

L

S3LON

5=.1 308 M3IANOILYASTS /HvA 1334 3Ivas
| = e ———CEN
IYNLONYLS AOOM ONIDHOS 1441d \ 2/ i . e
XIW 318803 13AVHO
Q3ANNOH HLM TTI3MavE 38 13NNYHD (3) .
ISM MO IsvE dAL 907 0L O3NNId @
H30WN08 NOL-Z O q
ZI=L SIIEYA -~ 3avyo (3)
~
-~
QS-S SIRYA -
~
~
~
&

S=.1:3WIS

MIIA NYId

HYA

34N1ONY LS AOOM ONIDNOS T4y W'/

_l/mt ‘34075 40 301 (3)
|

(Z 40 dilL) avmLOOY

055k S3IHYA

XIW 318B02-13AVED _

QIANNOY HLMW TIDYE
HIW 907.51 X VIO .¥Z

(100 3unionuLs
qﬁ:qm@ EREET

dAL'00701 03NNId /£00
¥30noa Not-zoLt ¢

HOOHO3E MOTIVHS
FHIHM 1dINT D0 £
dAL S370d MOTTIM 3AI

Mawd v d 3T

702!

rauon

IHEYID INVHAILE 4B OILLOTA Wel L5 b7 4 1Z0T/8204 ILv LOTd G¥P DOOMSTNDMOIPlG 1U90BIU (U3 P UsiDIRN, 4333 SELUntE ) MM - 60 D33000:




9€ JO € LIIHS

€0d

HIANON L3I

qvL3a-
JHNLINYLS OOM
1v.ligvH 100d

FUIL L3S

SONIMYHO

NDIS3Q %0E 1dvHad
i

LpE2I7) 3218 1Ind 01 GALLO T
I3HAM NMOHS SV 51 335

LZOZZLLL 3L¥a INGSI

00°052000Z0Z H38WNN L93r0Nd

515980

83v_ a3n23HO
DAS NMYNO
MOTIMIWT - 03NDIS3a

OHIIONYT'W_3DUYHI NI

SHOIASH

NOILdINOS3d  31vd  #

FAN LIFORS

VINEOSITYD
NV 1d LINJNIONVYHNIT
J3IHSHILYM HI3HD
SVYLINNOVTMIA

HILYM @
NIHYW

1N

ANALE

WOODOSEYST MM
0055 966ELF - 30140
Z19VE ¥ QHYINYO
0501 3LS

FNNIAY ONYHO 081

r
VSd 4

A=.1 3o MWLIQ WAL /N
NIVHD -, JAILYNHI LV, ONINNIJ ¥3071N08 0L 901 \.*_/

S31YvA) ¥301N0CE NOL-L HO NOLT

H3OTNO8 OLNI NIW NIF8 3711850
J10H OLNI G3IX0d3 ¥YSOYIHHL

NIYHD W 77 w_/r
A dAL'LAN X3H

H.
YIAVIHHL HO4 310H TIHa 001 L\

(L=l 3vos VL3O WOIMAL /FvAY
NOILOSNNOO 0O¥ 13315 \ &/

QoY 1331Ls
030V3YHL .}

D07 NI HOLON
\|V/

AU 1S S X EX.E

HWIHSYM 1331S
1NN T331S
aod 1331
40 ONI WOOHHSNIN
J=.3W0S TVLIA WIHAL 1334
UvE3d - ONINNIJ ¥30N08 0L 901 VN 2/ ¢ "
(SAwA) ¥301N08 133HS SIHL NO

NOL-L YO NOL-Z

'€ VL3I0 NOLLDINNOD QoY 133Ls
¥3d 207 0L N3 H3HLO 3¥N23S
310H OLNI HLd30 TIn4

00y Q30VIYHL 133LS b LYISNI

370H NI AXOd3 30V1d

(H1d30 NIW .8)
H30INO8 OLNI IT0H 8/1-1 1IHa

\l 201

S=.1 3vas mainnowoss N 1334 awos
e e
34N10NYLS QOOM LvLiavH 100d \ 8./ of B O ST S

dAL ‘00701 G3NNId (200
w3aInoaNoLzoL 1z J

\ dAL ‘30vH0 (3)
“““““““““ —_

T e
PNy S
=
~
ASMMOTY 3SvE
(1 310N} 3¥NLONYHLS A¥YMLOOY

A3AVHO ¥YE HLIM 907.0Z X vid a1
S§=.1 308 man 3dod N 1334 EALAN)
ey T S
3ANLONYLS QOOM LVLI8vH 100d \.¥_/ ot s 0 st s

dAL 30wy (3

|\ o
ISMMOT4 3SVE avMLO0Y

dAL ‘00704 GINNId /200
5307N0A NOL-Z 0L }

HLIM 901 .02 X vId .81

16 E]

S=.1 308 MIIANYTE /TvAY
3YNLINYLS AOOM Lv1IgvH T00d \_*/

.

dAL 907 0L Q3NNId
¥30MNOBNOLZ OL | 014

H3IN0D HOL HSVIS OaY

(1 31ON) 3¥NLINYLS

(£ 40 dAL) a¥MLOOY TINVHO ¥YE

HLM 907 .07 X ¥i0 .81

T3NNYHO (3) 3o 3903

"SISATVNY
ALIMIBYLS NO 03SVE TVLLINANS LX3N NI

° . = TO3NI434 38 OL "AHYNINI3Yd S| ONILSYTIvE
q ONY SNOISNIWIO "NOLLYYNOIINDD 901 T

ot "ONINMYJS

Qv3IHI331S ANV NOWTYS OHOD H0d

3I8YLINS TIAYHO O30NNOY OILHOS ANV
G3HSVM 30 LSISNOD TTW 3HNLONYULS YA I

S3L1ON

B HO0HA3A MOTTVHS
e 40 SNOLLYDOT NI Ld32X3

'0'0 £ '$3710d MOTIIW 3NN

2avD o d 34

| 340 LOTd 895 Ly LIYH CIHGIUSI 1HUs3TINS B3 UBITON 151 SSnER T NI - 00 039000202CH IR

INEVID INVHAILS AR OZLIONE W 50T8 4 4




9 4O sE 1IFHS

¥0Q

LA TS

Jivi3a
= a¥0y 55300V
AUYHOIWIL

ELITgE: T

SONMYEA

NOISAA %0E 14wHg
I5vHA

AT 3718 TW O1 AALI9YY
HIHA NANDHS S 51T

1Z0ZT 1L v IS
O0'CSO000Z0T umnnM L3rOwd

515983
CHIIGNYT "W _3DHVHI NI
37 QIAIIHD
SAS MM
MOCMWT _Q3aNDISIT

TP T

SereH LIIroRd

VINBOATYD
ALHNGS HiEvw
NYTd LINJWIONVYHNI
QIHSHILVM MITHD
SYLINNOVT M

HEivm S8
NIYYW

NGILONYLISMNOD
HO4 LON

AHYNIVITZED

drens

WL OOSSYEI VAR
CORGRERCLY - I3
TASKE WD THY TG
5L IS

SNV QNVED 08}

-
Vs 4

"NOLLIVIAODYIND WOHA S1ODY OOOMATY JUNLYAW 1231044 O1 J30I3N I8 AV SUNSYIN
"IRIAY TOUINOD NOISOUT

TEVAYYOICOIE HOA L3NG NOLLIOHOS DNIYOLSSE NIG3SN 38 OL TYNILYW QI LUOIM 0N

“ALISHO QI NGHIOLE ONY OddIHD 33 TIVHS TVADIWIH ONIFIND Y
SITUL ANV "SHUVA ILVLS AB TVAOHAAY DNIJNTJ 03A0WIY 38 AV STFHL ONLLSIXT B
ALIS-NO QTUSHIOLS ONY A3LINYIS 58 0L (4400 SHIANTIND SNIHIAGS ANNOHD DHUSHA 2

1334 Tivas *43R0 ONY SdIHIOGM 93OS ONTTIONI DNINIAOD TYIHZLYW JALYN HLA "JaVSHNS ONIAING T1AYVLS
l——’ss o w2 U3HOLSIY 38 0L ¥IHY QITUNLSI0 ONY '030VHD 38 DL AHdYNI0J0OL TWNIDIHG 93 TvH 440 HOJ GIOITN SV YINILYW JLLHOAWI 40 INIWIIVTS SV 733 5V IZHVEHNLSIT ONY DNIGYHS
S @ ¢ o€ 8 ONY OZACINIE 38 0L TVINILYW FALLVA-NON ‘NOLLONULSNG? 40 ROILTTINGD NOdA HONIW 3ONTISHI OL TANNYAHD OL TI¥Al 50 O¥0Y SNILSIXI WO 3LM0H $5320% AHYHOGWIL )
S3LON
9.1 308 nowass /N 2=.1°31¥0s Nouoas /T
1N3 -2 3dAL 3d0TS 0IHOLSTH \ B/ T - ¢ 2dAL A40OTS AINOLSTY \ Y/
- e
- NOLLOVANOD X —-
30vuD Oy -~ MLV %58 O, 111 T
34075 {3} INIDVrQY duy HALYN 0IHINTE . .
NOLLIONOD 1OFOH4-3ud
HOLYW L 30VH9 ONY FavuoEns
34018 HNYE JHOLETY
30vu9 (3) HIIYW
dAL ‘SOvHE Nols3a
30vHO (3) HOLYW
DIMEYA TOUINOD
OIHEVS TOMINGD . nNQISOu3
Nowso I0YAD ANV FdO'1S {3}
- O 1S {3
<AL A0YYD NDISIO dAL F0VHO {3} - AN2DYraY ONY NOLLIGNOD
JOWHI (3) HALYW IHLLYIN 123roud-Jud HOLYW
FALLYN-NON JAOWTY - AL 30V (3} b
' IALLVN-NON TrONIH
-
8=.t:37908 Nowo3s £\ 924308 NOILDBS /-y
T4 -2 IdAL OYOH SSADIV AUVHOIWIL \ B/ 1ND- ¢ 3dAL AYOH $$IITY AMVHOLWAL \ ¥/
20VHDENS A3LOYIWNOD - FAVHIANG AILIVINGD
-
4078 SNILEP J0 - S5332% T10HIA NOILINHISNOD
HANVI4MOTIS TH SALLYN -~ 379VLS ¥O2 0I0IFN §¥ NOILIYANOD

Q3LIVIKROD 'AFHINZE

dALIAVHO NOIS3A

$5323¥ 310HIA
HOLLONYLSHGD
TEYLS HO2 303N
SY HOLIVSHOD
QHY VI3 LYIN

"I 03LOv4WaD

9=.1:31v08 N SN

T3 - 2 AdAL O¥OH §SIDOV AUVHOLNEL \ 2/

MNVE TSNNYHD ONLLSNG
OLNI Q3aVeS T4 avod
S5300V AUVHOANEL

ONY TYIEALYIN T4 Q3LIVINOD

N e
Y NG
ﬁlJz_zb_ln_
1

<AL ‘IO¥HI NDISIQ
dAL 30vy0 @)

9=, 3W08 wd oy

1N2 -1 3dAL QVOY S$3DDV AHVHOIWAL \ 2/

T _ \/\

1 o
ey
NYE TINNYHD SHILSP

N /OE_ A30VHD OHY 1N
- QVOH 85320V ANVEOCINAL

DD INHAILE A O3 LON M LEF L IOUELAL LW LOTd 540" ALCwOR-CROANTHY ot WA 3Ll YT BAy SA wé D Smunter] Wi - 00 TSHEO0Z0CaVXOEOionged IR 4 3314




9t 0 og 13IIHS

cod

YIBAW ITIHE

AlvL3a-
TOHLINOD NOISOY3

EQTSEETH

SONMvd

NOIS3J %0E LivHG
I5¥HA

{227 I8 TN 0L GALIOT
NEHA NIADHS £ 51 T35

12021
00 DSI0DDZOZ HIBKNM 103 g
515982
CHINYT W 3oEYHO MI
A3¥  O:MIIHD
DA NWWHO
MOCMWT_Q3NDIS3T

ENEL]

i3 NotLvotuEvd

aviaa 7N

MIAANOLDAS /7N

Z=.} AWVIS 31¥35 0L 10N o =1 ETVOS Z=.0:3TW0s MIIAKOILS3S )
VLS TTLLVM NICOOM \ &/ TvL3a I1LIYM \¥L/ II¥13Q INYLS DlBvd \ B/ w130 HONSYL JO1 N5/
1334 Tos 1334 35 1334 LS
- —_— e — ) 1=, .|
..EHHN T — £ MIA NOILDIAS z o 5o 3 2 z 0 L 2
dAl "$3031d e thahaowa (aH %08}
113 HONIML NI TVH3LYW
WNQIAMGNI HOLON \\l NIA.» D3N3 ANTTEAINGT ZAUYN GALIVIKAS ans mivas - )
£ TIAGHYSY MO 'THYLS amevd (5
i = TOOM OULEY NIW
H / HAINII NO £ O32%d B 03003303 SoiHL
SIavLS SHOVdE . 256 'NId DOCADEVH X
TAVLS TULYM “ QYL TOHINOD
WIEANT & X T
TWATIAIGHI \_t / _ 1 HolSoNI
X2 NIN LSO W3IA1 IN8noa
HONIML O Z ABM )
AdOH ¥IINvIA .\m HuM HIW DHHAYH AHNS —IZ
IOPLS 1 3L Lath N I 2 3O¥HE NDISTD
AASIA NY T MNYE
AMIINNYID i
% 12 ZLON} SINVE 40 dOL WGNS

Z=.43Tvos manNowaas N
Y130 HONTHL 340TS-aN \. 2/
1334 TIv35 s
3 z A
NGLLJR3S30_31vG ¥ A AALTANLS £ -
SHORIan HINIHL NI W LYW LI,
JALYN 03LOvdNoD :
2
.m \!\ /I DIHEYY TOHINGD
o 5 NOISONI ¥3AV) 319n00
z5 £
shE
mz
: 52
g O W FNLLYM MYHLE
cz M = o
a8 = DI4EYI 10¥INOD
Ze mAdC NOISON3 ¥aAY] A18n00
= M ZzM=
485
02>
w w
m
Z 0
o
uavm %
NIHYW
'HLGL ¥3EO100 A8 GHITIANOD 30 TIVHS HHOM J0MINOD HOISONI TV 01
Anans "HOILYTIVASKI
QL HOlkd INLVINISTUATY SHINVO AD QIHINIA 38 TIVHS SNOILVOCT 35NIA LIS ‘DNIOVED HONIB
ONIYNG TIHNYHI SALLDY FHI 40 JOL LY 3NN LIAM LOZr0H THL ONOTY SONIS L1IS NRINTAW ONY TIVLSNI 6
NOLLDNHLSMNOD "3dO75 30 301 LY HINIUL WOLLOE TIVISNI B
“LIIHS
802 LON SIHL 'S ONY | STIVLI0 Y34 OMNDIE UNYE 0 dOL THL WG ATIVRELY) ZNIW GZONILXE 38 TIVHS AnEvS L
- “HOLFYLS LON G0 3OVAHNS 30¥HD HSINIL 3HL K1
NN L3VLNOD L3I NIYLNIYN G (TVINOZIHOH) D0 ZONY (TYDILHTA) D0 Z THYLS ONY AT2SOC DIHEVA A1 9
) “SNOLULYDINZAS
ameis 34 1YV TOULNDD NOISGYI INTTVAINDS TINOHAJY 4O NBSTHD 20 SHIAVI ) oML IOV 'S
"SNOLLYI210T4S ¥4 TOLINGD NOISOHE D, HOING 30TS WA OWL '+
ROOICESVET A “$3d018 NIV14000T-1173 MO DAVUNLSIA TT NO QI TIVLENI 38 VTVHS DIHEV T0HMINGD NOISAET
Pt b “FALVINISTUSTY SHIUNO HLW AdIHZA ONY SIJ0TS NV SIHONZA NIVI4000TS LINT DIYLE TWHS
THIFE W2 THY D HELIVEINGD "DIMEYL TOULNOI NOISCHT 40 NOILYTVASHI GL H01Hd "AYYA IJ0TS NIWIJA00 14 20 SLINM 8
e “MOILYTTYLSHNI
DIHEVA JYOJ3A SSYHO ONY SHOILS 'SGOTD 'SHO0N ASCET 40 OIUVIID 3G TIVHS FOVAUNS IOVHD HSINE 2
“BALLYINISIHAIY SHINANO THL A8 GILIIUD SV ZORVTIANOD dddMs ANY HLNDD NOISONT 404 03033N
SY SINNSYIA TNOILKIY TIVLSNI "STENSYIN TOUINGS NOISCHE O WNHINIA SWOHS LI3HS SIHL 4
§31CN

AVTWHILYT Z NIA HON3ME N1938

Z=.137v0s mannounas /N Zx. IS A3 NOLLO3S
TVLEIA HONIHL WOLL08 \ B MY\ F
1334 Exce] e/ 1334 37938 2/
e 71 e —— Zr.l
? Z o 3 * T 1] 3 z
123 %08)
HINTHL NI TVIHELYW
HON3H1 O .Z1L AR
SALLYN 0319¥JNOD A S NI DIYEYS ARRD
[ -
3401540301 NIGSdOL ZALLYN
soakonzuL /7Y (ZILON) aAL
A VLS 3L q IVIFALYA SALIYN 03 1MI0LS “Javuo NSIS3g
{5 310K)
JAL "DIHEY4 1041400
AT EAITION
za_mazw_ﬂuri_wu%ww MYHLS NOISOMTMAN 373Ned
W50t LON Mannotiozs 7y
DI¥8Vd TOYINOD NOISOuT \ 1./
’ dAL ‘YIS
NEW, e
HONAL J015-0IN
PE TN
OBV TOHLHOD %
NOISGHE 40 SHIAYT oML IMW
e
ky i
30vuD OIS0 INON+ HILLY A 1O 155
1402 BV YO LP
A 1451- 1
S 1401- 4343318 40 12
5 “ONIIVS T1LLWm
=&
L
- ¥
............. i )
HONZHLHNI
JRigvd Tunoas
D713 40 401

ThwZ S1mnDn T VAR - 00 DSI00LOLOVARIOZONDWS 100 4 3O

THEYID FNYHILS 4D T3LLOT W I 0 L VEOTHO0L TLVO LOTd S¥R NI NS BT




§€ 40 4 133HS

109

YT LTIHS

133H8 3L

FuuLIMs

SONIMYAAT
NDIS30 %0L L=VHG

AsvHd

Lptem2) 29T TV OL ORI
HIHAA HMOHE S¥ S)3Tv05

LZLZZ v 3nssi

HIEMWN L33 0dd

515990

CHIIONYT N ISHYHD NI

B3Y  aDJEHD
s HwvYHa

MOFMINT_03NDIS3a

ROILJMISIC

B
gz
4a

AWt La3rag

YINEDATY)
ALNRGD NIV
NV 1d LNIFWIONYHNI
QIHSHILYAM ¥IFHD
SYLINNDSVYTMI

HvM D%
NIV

FrE]

NOLLONHELSHNOD
HO4 LON

ALVMIFT3dS
dHYLS

BONZAY ONVED TR

r
vSd 4

LT~ TOHLNOGD NSN3 $00 o
IWLI0 - QYOH SSIVIV AHVHOSWZL Yoo 58
AVLI0 - IHALONYLE DOOM LYLIEYH 100d £00 e
NI - FUNLIMELE QCOM DNIDHOS T4 far ] £
TVLI0 - MAAEIAD FHMLINYLS JOOM- 1004 T141H tod £4-3
SUV13a >
NY1d INIWIINVHNI €L LIS £12 (13
WY INIWISHNYHNT 24 LIS Z12 o
WY1 INWADNYHNG L) 30S Ha &
NYTd ININIINYHNS 0L JLS o1 '
NYTd INTFWIDNYHNT & LIS 602 Z
NY1d EHIATFINVHNG 8 3115 02 2
NY1ld LNSARINYHNT 2 308 02 =24
H¥1d LHFWIONYHNT 9 3485 502 ¥z
N1 LNIWEONYHNT § 3LIS in £~4
N¥1d LNIWAONYHNT b 3115 Ha =
N¥1d LNIW3ONYHNT £ 311 [{in] 14
NI LNIW3ONYHNT Z 3115 wo [4
N¥Id LNIWIONYHNT | 3LIS W B
SLNINIINVHNE 1D
SNCLLIONGD ONILSIX3 €4 3LIS 219 L13
SHCOLLIONOD ONLLSDA T4 ALIS 19 F13
SHOLLIONGD ONLLSIXS L1 LIS 19 k1%
SHOLIONGD ONLESIXT Ol 3LIS 510 sl
SNOWIONOD ONLLSIXT 6 3LIS pLo L
SNOWIGNOD OHLLS XTI e 3LIS E1D %l
SNOLLIONDT DHLLSIXT £ 3LIS IS zl
SNOLLIANOD OHLLS XTI 9 3L1S He 1}
SNOLLIGNODD SHLLS XTI S 3LS as ol
SNOLLIGNDD BHILSDA ¥ 3US 509 &
SNOLLKIHOD SHILSIXT € 3LS °09 1]
SNOLLKGHNOD ONULSIXT T3LIS fiio] L
SNOWRIHOD DNLLSIXT § SLIS 809 L]
WIUY SNV HIYHL SEHOH ~ VIEY OMIDVLS NOILINKLSNGD 500 E
YIUV DINDId dNOUD DNIAYI - YIHY SNIDVLS NOILINYLENOS o) 4
MATAHIAD 0w £
SNOLYIATHESY ANV 'ONI 9T 'S310N wa Z
133HS UL 1) ]
IHINTD
FULIF3HS "ONLITHS "ONTOVL
XA0NI 1334

D051 x.3 HTWDS
Y NOIYOOT

HIFHD SYINGIYT
MIDTB HIYIN J2IOUD

HIFYI HI WD RWAST

T ISOE WO

1202 "HIFWIAON
VINAOSITYO "ALNNOD NIMYIN

SONIMVYHA NOIS3A %0¢ 14vdd

31¥I5 0L 10N ALNNOD NRivW
d¥IW ALINIDIA

N
VA0
AT orloyd
OWINGYID NYS

STUIS LITOBd

SHoHEYES

TYHOLYN

S3A34 LNIOJ

STION L8340T <., .. %, TWI10
=SYLINOVT ,w A% -

NQILYLS
S3A3YLINIOd ~

3

NV'ld LINJWIONVYHNI AIHSHILVYM MITFHD SVYLINNOV]

H31VM NIIVIN

WITHD SYLINNDVY

I 1k F

0t 1S JNYHAILS A8 031107 A 00 94 | 17078701 FLV LG B 3110 oMy




et J0 T 1334s

c0O

HEERNN LTIHE

SNOILYIA3HaRY
anNyY
'AN3937'SALON

ELTREC"

SONIMYHA

N2IS20 %0E Livyg
a5vHA

Lred 308 TNH 01 ALY
HIHA NAMOHS B 51TTV08

1Z0ZEM 1L 31va anssi

S15580
OHIIOKYT'W IDUYHE NI
CELAEEEETR
IS Nvda
MDrAAW1 _ gINSIs30

[00'05S00GT02 aaknN 10370

SHOSIATE

WV LIIrOE

WINMOAITYD
ALNNGS NEwA

NY1d LINSJWIDINVYHNI

AIHSHILYM H3ITHD

SVYLINNOVT AN

HOLdINDS3g  3Uva #

YAV DS
HiHYW

HEm

NOLLOAYLSNOS
HO4 LON

AHVMIAIAN

arnaLg

SHALINHLE JOOM BNIJHOS T4

JUULINYLS OOOM LMLIGYH 100d

VAHY HOILLVHOLS3Y 30V4Ens

VIV TVACWEH LNIMA3S

VAUV ONISYLE NOLLINULSNGD

390189 ONUSIXF

avoy §3300¥ AHYHOJIWIL

NOIWYLNIRONY T3AVYD

XI 218200 13AYYD QITNNOY

SNKITING DNLLSHT

Fdld ¥IMIT AVLINYS

3did ATIAHIS ¥ Tvar

2KM3dld EEI

ALCIELN OV3HYANG

YNOLNOD HOMW SINLLSDG

HNOLNOD BONIA SHLLSDG

RNOLLOZHIa MO

OHRINOLIVLS INIWNOITY

LN 123rowd

ANCH SSIV NOLLOINYLISHGD

ANIWISYI THIPOLNON ¥ IONVHILNYW

SINN TIDYvd

N3O

SNNIN/SNTd o

HY3A HA

NOUYATTI ADVIUNS ¥ILVM ELS0 Y

Sldid 3AHIS ¥ILvM M

ANN3dld NOISSINSHYS L HILYM QMR M

HUM M

@3l K AJIN3A ELY

SAEYA HYA

WYId1S4N =N

VDAL dAl

NOLLYLS ¥is

123018 15

YAMIS ARVIINYS B8

avod ay

3did JLAHONOS OAIBHNIFY 42

33V HILDALOUS did

SALMILLN TYIHHIAD HO"OHAD

YALNID NO 20

LINHLSKD HALYAA TYDINAIN NIXYIN ML NI ORI AN

WORINGY M

TTHOHNYH HA

HAADYW XN

ANTWACT v

ONUSNE X33

Hollvadna RE]

HIARNN OHIMYHD oMa

WYIH)SHANDD s

¥3LIWVIQ ¥ia

FHIvdHD NDIS3a0 o0

1NIOd TOULNDD a2

3dd T¥L3M QALYONYHOD dWD

QANOCDIS H3d 133d Jians sS4

Auns 3

QA3 Thea [ily:}

ALYNIXOUddY XOuddy

HITHNN 132UV SHOSSISSY Ny

JALLYNYILTY ny
SNOLLYIATHESY

FEEL O WALYO eI LH3A

“13NNYHD SHL NI SALS NIIMIIE

QN OL S5300Y 404 33033IN 5v 038 TINKVHI NO 030v1d 38 TIIM HIAYT 1IAVYS JALDILOH “ZE

SOV ONIHILYMED AUvHOdNIL

30 INIWZIY 1 OL HOIHA TYAOWIY ONY NOLLYTOS) JONTIN) STUNSYIN NOLLITLOHA HS *S3LIS
123roHd 3HL 40 NCUHOd ¥ HOH QZIVSIHANY SNCLLDILONA HSI DNITNIONI "ONINIIVAARG  “th

“SAIAHNS ANVANNOA INISIHAIN

LON 00 OHY ILVHIXOHAdY 3y SINIT LNINISYI ONY TIDHVd "dWW KEYH YA LI0Z NI QEHIVIEO
SV YLV ¥ HOTSISSY ALNNOD NNV NO 3SvA Iy MMOHS S3HM LNZN3SYI ONY 1353vd 0L

‘sFLnn

OKNOADYITHN TTY AUYD01 TN €L {118 HO 005Z-1TT 0061 LHI TV FDIAMIS ANNONDHHIGNN
FHL ONV "SHIHMCONYT "SHIONIDY 3IVISS0USIY T LOVINDD LSNH HOLIVEINDD JHL NHOM
DNIINIHNGD OL HOR SIILNILN ONILSNE TV 40 NOLYGT JHL AINEA ISNM BOLOYUINOD BHL 6

“HOLLYDG) 103r0Hd JH N0 1334 27 ONIOY AB SROAVN
OLETOAZN WOML ILHIANCD NV SENMYHO QUOIIY ¥3d I¥V SNOLVATIA L¥3ANI ALNLLN B

“SHAYHD010H] TVINIV ONY 'SOHMYEA

OBODIY "SNOLLYAHISEC U114 NO OISV TIVWDONIIY TV RWOHS SNOLLYIOT ALNWLN 2
ALYNXOHALY UV KILSAS TIVHL ONY "SOV0 'SLNHALOCY SNIQNG DHILSKE "9

“1334 AINENS SN ML 3YY SLNN SHIMYET 'S

"610Z OKY GLGT NI DILIATIOO0 VIV AHIDVANIOHIHO ADNLE
AHIIVIN ALNOD N ROYD SYIK NIBYI YIA L20Z NI O3KIVLEO SYM NMOHS AHIOWWI TWIway 7

‘L0 ONY

8107 N) QLI NG ASAHNS (HWarT) SHISNYY ONY NOZLNALIA LHON NOLLNIRS3H HAH ALNNGD

B¥YM IDUNTS AHYHODGOL 3avHD BHLISIXT ©

“U332 SN 02USArDY LLOZ) EA0VN 651 SO MNLYT Ky HE2 N HLUON (£0b0 Sdid)
WILSAS JLYRIOHCOD Il INOZ SNV Id ILYLS VINSOIMYD IHL SIONIHISTY $SONEVIN SO SISVl T

“(gRaAYN)

HLHON 3HL O J3d ONY L334 NI 35Y SNOLLYATTE L

S3LON TYHINTD

A 1D 3ANYHAILS 4B OILLOTH Mt RT 51§ IZOLEEAE IU] LOId BMRAGEEY ONIDIT S3LON HOMDIUMLY IUSWISIIYE PAGSIOTeM Wi HALUNES T QUAMA - (0 T30 B20ACNS | & T




o 40 1334 YOS 7

€ 133Hs e n

0001 005 0 052 005 3

moo 005 =1 3vas NYId ¢
HIINON LIS MIIAE3A0

MIIANIAD fe R Lumdoud
i JEETETIETI
IVAIDINDN NIV
FUUL 133HS . VIV ONMWAIIA HSI NINOHD 1 037 |
SONIMYHG , &) : :
NOIS3T %0 L4vda

aswa B 30018 ¥3LIvHS =

Lrta.22) 3215 Tind 0L 03L10Td
NI NWMOHS S 51 3Tv05

LZOTEVLE 31va 3nsst
[00'055000Z02 238nnN 10370
T swwo
OHIIONYT'W_3DNVHI NI
B3¥__A3IIHD
T ons  wawan
MODIMINT_ 03NDIs3a

HYvd 3LVLS
HOTAYL "d TINAYS

INMYILNID ¥IWD
= OWINOH3D NVS

WOILIM0530_ 30v0 LAY . :

DIHVID IINYHAILE A8 OILLONS W 1530 1 IZOTEL0L LW L0Td BME MAAD I EADMOWRE

m
o
ped
Ims : :
242 E ot
z = dAL $S3IDV NOLLONHISNOD
oz O W g - =
22 mE =
g =32
F25 m-C
xJ =z M=
44835
o>
Lm?
= B
Hivm S
NIMYW

Muvd 31VIS 3 * % v
5 # & . ELLEEILIES
HOAVL'G TANYS oy 28 7  HOAVL'd TENHYS -

MOILLONHLISNOD
H04 1ON

AdvNINISHd
NYLS




%€ JO ¢ 133HS

0O

HIBNON LITHS

¥3dY JINDId
dNOYO ONIAYI
- ¥Y3HY ONIOVLS
NOILONHLSNOD

EUUSEET

SONIMYHO

NDIS3Q %0E 14vyd
IsHd

{Lrexze) 3215 TN 0L 03LL0Y
NIHM HAOHS SY S1 3OS

515880
OHIIGNYT W 39Y¥WHI NI
B3 aINIIHD
JAS NWYHa

SHOISIASY

1ZOZELILL 31¥a 3NSSI
00°0S9000Z0T x3amnn 193r08d

MOPAMIWT_g3NDIs3a

NOILJINOS30__ 3iva &

IWwN 193r08d

Mo
TE=
uv_..—._M

: £ X
28 Q<

= ms
e =50
£ 0ms
ul_mmw

T
b2 m %

=0
dILYM D

NIHYW
AMano

NOILDNYLISNOD
404 [ON

AdVNIWNIT3ES
LS

ATH3LSYI
SINNLLNOD SS320%
WL NIYYN SSOHD

OE =1 -TT¥IS NY1d

¥3YV DINOId dNOYD ONINYI - Y3HY ONIDVLS NOILLONYLSNOD

o0Y 1 d T4

N80I3 epunte]

WD VHIILS AG OILLONG Wd 87 L1 | IZ02EZ0)L ILwd LOTd M OVIS-ONO LEIXT




98 40 5 L33IHS

S09

Y3V ONIMEYd
YF VL ISHOH
- V34V ONIOVLS
NOILONHLSNOOD

ENUSEERH

SONIMYHO

NOIS3A %0t L4vHa
Eas]

Lyex22) 3218 14 01 GALLOTY
N3HIA NAOHS S¥ S13T¥05

LZOTTNLL Auvd 3nsst

HIDWNH 1OIOHA

515980
OHIIONYT "W 39D¥YHO NI
83V a3xNI3HD
A8 NAYHO
MOCMINT_A3NDIS3T

NOLLAINOS30  3ivd  #
SHOBIAIH

IWWN 1D370HS

YINHOAIYD
ALNNOD NIMYW
NY1d LNIWIONVYHNI
Q3IHSHILYM HI3FHD
SYLINNOVT MIN

Havm S
NIHYW

NOLLONHISNOD
d04 LON

AdYMIANITIEd
LS

OE =1 31¥IS

NY1d

Y3HY ONIXYYd 337vHL 3SHOH

. 01 3LIS HONOWHL 5300V
— TIvalL NIdvW SSO¥D

Y3dY ONIDVLS NOILONELSNOD

AL HA S5 (3) dld -
: S

Y34V ONIDVLS

SANNILNOD SS3DTV
MTHL NIHYIN SSOHD

iod 314

0 sENGe T aMWH

X3 ANTHAILES AT OBLI0TE NG 001 L IZONBTOL 3w LOTd Bup's




9€ 40 9 133Hs

909

HIFWON LIS

SNOILIONOD
ONILSIX3 | LIS

FLLL 1334

SONIMYEA

NDIS3Q %0E 14vua
25vHd

{rtx.22) 3218 TInd 0L 03LLO N
NIHM NMOHS SV S1 3Tvas

J00°0S9000T0Z H3amnN 130N
SL5983

ELEELRELR]
JAS NMYHa

IZOZEL/LL 31va 3nssi

OHIIGNYT W 39¥WHO NI

—__ MDUMWI_03noisaa_

NOULJINOS3O 31V #

SNOISIASY
m g
£8_ i
= M m
: £2X
o O w
cEm=2
g8 =5 ¢&
wm zMmMZ
m=
J83
Mg
L m?
=0
YALYM D
NIdYW
1ano
NOILDNELISNOD
04 LON
JdYMINIT S
i

08 =.1 31¥08 N¥1d
SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 | LIS

et
¥3HY ONMIIN HSIA NINOND L 031

I3 JINYHSILS ATQILIONE WA 05 94 | LIOZELN 3LNT 107 R L TLISTONOD-LS X DIDACIVEId 1oWaIVSHUT PauSISIEM %9213 SeNunEe OAMAV - £ DIBO00ZOICMCROIOTaY D biid 314




9 JO /. 133HS

09

HITWON 1ITHS

SNOILIONOD
ONILSIX3 Z 3LIS

EUUSEETS

SONIMYHA

NDIS3Q %0E 14vHad
e

{rE322) 3295 YINd 0L GO
H3HM HUMOHS 5% 51 3105

10T 31va 3nssi
J00°0SS000Z0Z H3amnN 153r0Hd
515883
OHIIAONYT ‘W FOUVHI NI
B3Y _IOIHD
NS NMYHA
MOPAWT_ g3NDIS3a

NOILJIN0S30 3iva #
SHOISIAZY

JWwN L123r0HH

VINYOTYD
ALNNOD NIEYN
NV1d LNIWIONVHNI
Q3IHSY3LVYM HI3HD
SYLINNOVT MW

HILvm S
NIHYW
AN3ND

NOILDNYLISNOD

AdYNIRITIdd

Anals

WO DOSSYSTANAM
0065 S6RSLE - 301440
21976 Y2 THYTHYO
0501 UNS
INNFAY ONVHO 051

r
VSd 4

1334 ELCEEY
— - — —
09 0 o S1 0E

E1D L33HS 33S - GT+TVS VIS .,m-t._zuh.ti.

——— i I A3EHS 335

- - - dAL "LINIT 193rOYd . k!
I ATHIHLNOS
 SANNILNOY SS320V ¢ A
TITHL NI¥YIN SS0¥D

O€ =.1 TWIS NYld

SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 Z 3LIS

A

ol

(1 310N

dAL '3LNOY SS300V NOILINYLSNOD

"NOILIONOD
123rodd-34d 01 AIHOLS3Y 38 1IVHS
1VHL ONISSOHD YNOZINY ONILSIXI WIA SS300% 'L

S310N

%

S5300¥ NOILINYLSNOD
. INOBY ONISSOHD H3IMOd

OVYIHYIAO NOILNYD -

ﬂ/ INMYILNID

™ 334D SYLNNOVT hﬂutw..h
B — — — P

/.\._ e 809 133HS 335 - 00+9L5 VLS INITHILYW

3HHYID INVHAILS AT 031107 Wd €754 | LZ0TSI01 LY LOTd EWR T3LIS-ONODLEIN-S0MOMIURLS 199139UBYLT 3 USIGIRM 15343 SeRunBe] CAAM - 00 BISO0DEOZCIARNRI0TaND kit d 3704




8¢ 40 8 133Hs

8090

HIANON LTS

SNOILIONOD
ONILSIX3 € 31IS

EUUSEESD

SONIMYUT

NOIS3Q %0E LIvHa
3w

{5£2.22) 371 1IN 0L 031107
HIHA HAMOHS Sv 51 3T705

102U 31va 30551
00 0SS000Z0Z H3BMnN 103rou-
515680
OHJMNYT W 3DYYHI NI
B3¥ __A3¥33HD
NS HMYHA
MDrMIWT_03N9Is3a

HOLLdINOS3a  31vd  #
SHOISIASH

NN IO

Al b
NY1d INSWIONVHNI
Q3HSHILYM ¥3340
SVLINNDYTMI

HILYM S

NIdYW

NOLLDNYISNOD
d404 LON

AdvNInETIIEd

drTLS

"NOILIONOD
123ro¥d-3dd OL 0IHOLSIH 38 1IWHS
LVWHL ONISSOHD YNOZINY ONILSIX3 ¥IA SS300% 'L

S310N

OE=.l 31IVDS HY1d

SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 € 31IS

W a——
109 133HS 335 - 00+515 V1S INTHOLYA -
\ PNy
/ N

Vd XOHddV |

e

ATHIHLNOS
S3INNLLNDD $§320%

$S322Y NOLLINHLSNOD
IA0CAY DNISSOHD ¥IN0d
AYIHEIA0 ‘NOLLNYD -

,\ dAL OVIHYIAO ¥
3704 ¥3MOd (3) did

FHMYIO ANYHIILE AS Q31107 Ve 5607 | LEOXLID1 3190 107 B0 EILIS-ONOT L SIXT-S00 DTN 1bubauBLLT PoUSIBIOM X310 SeUenbe ] GANAA + 00 C3900020CNEnazanans 1ovd 374




8¢ dO 6 L33HS

609

HIANN 133HS

SNOLLIONOD
ONILSIX3 ¥ 3LIS

ENUNEETH

SONIMYHO
NOIS3A %0E L4vHa
35w

{¥Ex22) 3718 TIN4 0L 0311074
NI NAGHS Sv 51 3TH05

LZOTIZH L ELELEH]

J00'0S9000Z0Z H3BWNN 193 Oxd
515980
OHIIONYT W _3O¥VHI NI
§3¥_ 03423HD
T ons nwwn
MOFMINT_03NDIS30

TOILdNOSIa 3lva ¥

SHOISIATY
m g
o
=0 m
: ZX
gz Q<bh
cz m M
Is =230
Mm mdC
3 zM=Z
=0 W_
0T
5 %
=0
HILYM D
NINYW
ANZND
NOWLDNHELISNOD
H04 LON
AHVMIVIT3Ed

WO DOSSYSTAVAM
0065 969 °CLE - 301440
ZU5EE W3 OHYTHVO

0501 3UINS.

INNIAY ONVHO 031

r
VSH 4

“054£25 VLS HVYIN Ivy0

SIONVHS HIS 40 30IS HLYON NO TIvaL Nidvw

$SOYD 340 (#0D 133HS) Y3V DINDId dNOY¥D
DNIAYI LY YIHY ONIDYLS NOILONYELSNOD T

“30V1d NI S3HNSYIN

0E = .1 3WVIS NYd * 5 u“ﬁﬂ“ﬂ.ﬂwm ﬂw—m._l_wz_‘(fu HLM S 3LIS 01
NI 2 VIA S5320% IS-HIINI L
SNOILINOD ONILSIX3 F 3LIS =L mu.r_oZ

A

1324Vd XOHddV
I

3INITH3ALNTD

#3349 SYLINNOVT L \ - ; g, j(/.

AN S - i NS &

= gt - .
/ - T ng

. . = P X
\ e %,f N . _
/ ; Ly _- / ‘\\\\l / lo 2o, //
33U SYLINNDYT .\..wwm N - ~ _ .
+— o P N+ ; / \\ // ’ /./
™ : y : / N . |
; y / ~
y S5320V NOLLONYISHOD L4 7 // 2 ~
dAL LINI LO3rOHd . \ Ecﬂﬂuﬁ%ﬂﬂw%@u 7 \ .//.. ’ —

/ {1 3L0N) S5300Y .Ill _m

NOILINHLSNDD ~ |2

3LIS-Y3ILNI / m
N Gg, 7 —Ws/

5 ~. i

g

ATu3LSYE £

s

SANNILNOD
$S300V vl

dAL "3LNOY SSIDDV NOLL
- 5

9 3LIS HONOHHL &
S3NNILNOD SS300V . =
IYHL MMV S

BHAYID IINVHATIS ASOILLONE Wa I 4T 4 1Z0TET0L 3490 L0 VP rILISONOI-LS IKT-LODIDMONHG INHUSIELUT BOUSIIEM N0 303uEe ] GMINK = DO 053000202 00CDZ02IYD 101 e TT14




9¢ 4O 0 L33HS

0O

HIBNON LIS

SNOILIONOD
ONILSIX3 § 3llIs

F1L 13IHS

SONIMY YA
N9IS3Q %0€ 14vHa
35VHd

LrEx22) 378 TIN4 OL GALLON
N3HIA HAOHS 5¥ 51 3705

LZOZZULL 31v0 3NSSI

00'05900020 H3EWNN LI370ud

515980

LELEERE ]
AS NMYHO
MOCMINT_a3NDIS30

NOILJI¥DS30  Jiva  #

SHOISIAZY

OHIIONYT "W 30UYHO NI

FAVH LD3rOHd

VIN¥O4T9
ALNAOD NINWI
NV1d LNIWIDNVYHNI
JIHSHILVYM MIFHO
SVLINNOVT MIN

YILYM S
NI¥YW

1M

NOILLONY1SNOD
404 LON

ABYNINITIYd

LS

1334 Ell

0E=.1 TS Nd
SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 § 31IS

04+555 WLS INMHOLYI

—2, ﬁ!u‘

i
/ ey

5 - G3lowss3oav
f! \ NOILINYLSNOD
X ~3LIsHAN

AL LW L23roYd

_ Au31sva .
SINNILNOD §5300V ' g S
IV L NIMYY SSOHD S

e o = -
3NIM3did NOISSIWSNYHL GAMINN (3) did
; TR e

“OS+EZS VLS HV3IN IVED
SIONYH4 HIS 40 30IS HLEON NO VYL NIXviN
SS0¥D 440 (k0D 133HS) YIHY 2INDId dNO¥D
ONIAYI LY YIHY ONIDVLS NOILINYLSNOD T
“30V7d NI SFHNSYIN
NOILD310¥d 038 T3NNYHD HLIM 5 31IS 01
¥ 3LIS WO TINNYHO VIA SS3D0V JLIS-HIALNIL '}

S310N

m._z MYIALNID
H3FHI SYLINNDVT

a0 o7

g

HONOX¥HL §5320V
TIVHL NI¥YN SSOHI —

i

v bond 34

FUHYTD IINYHAILS AT QILL0TE Vid §222 | LZOZEIDL FAVD 10T BWP SILIS-ONCT L SIXTHICADIMCIIN S




8€ 40 14 133HS

Lo

SNOILIGNOD
ONILSIX3 ¢ 31IS

EQUSEET

SONIMYHO
NOIS3Q %0¢ 14vHa
35vHA

lrexz2) 3218 TIN3 0L AALLOTE
HIHA NIAOHS 5¥ 513735

1202 31w INSSI

00°0S9000Z0Z rzawNN L3rONd

515982
CHIIONYT "W _394VHI NI
EELACEERELE]
S HMYHa

MODFMIWT_03N9IS3a

NOLLINOS3a  31va  #
SHOISIASH

AV L3008

WINHOATYD
ALNMOD NIEYW
NY1d LNIJW3ONVHNIT
QIHSHILVM XI3HO
SYLINNOYTMIN

NOLLONELSNOO
804 LON

AdYNINIT Y

LS

- MdAL'umnLodroud

0e=.1-3WIS Nvd

SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 ¢ 3LIS

-
——

= . —

d— S

dAL OVIHY3AO
2 310d ¥3M0d (3) did

| S3NNILNOD 553097
UYL NNV S50HD

“DSHEES VLS HVIN VN

SIINYYL HIS 40 30IS HLHON NO TIWHL NIHYI

§S0¥D J40 (v09 133HS) VIV DINDId dNOHD
ONIAYI LY YIHY ONIOWLS NOLLONHLISNOD ‘2

DS+EZS YIS

HYIN 018 IHVHO SIONVHA HIS 40 30IS HLHON

NO (¥09 133HS 33S) V34V JINIId dNO¥D
DNIAYI NOYS SSIDOY TIVHEL NI SSO080 'L

S310ON

EEE

FHHYD FINYHAELS AS Q31107 Wd 02 €2 | 12028204 3L¥0 LOTd B¥E 5T LIS-ONODLSINI-S0DOMDILE




%€ JO 2L 133HS

clo

SNOILIONOD
ONILSIX3 L 3LIS

L LTS

SONIMYHa
NOIS3Q %0E L4vda
A5

Lyex22) 3218 TIN4 OL Q3LLOT
N3 NAOHS SY $1 3705

[ A T 31w 3nsS)

00'059000Z0Z H3SHNN 123708
515980
_OHOIaY1 "W 3ouvHo
H3Y_ Q3INDIHD
INS NMYHO
MDIMINT_ a3NDIS30

HOLLdIS3a 3iva ¥

SHOISIAIY
o ;
o
20§
Sm=
EG2
23 As%
30 wva
3¢ mdC
wm zMZ
m=
lSW_
s o
m®
=0
FET
NIHYW
RUE -]

NOLLONHLSNOD
404 LON

AdYNINIIEd

Eat

dAL'aNn

T3DHY XOHdd

L€ =.1 TTWIS NY1d

SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 £ 31IS

dAL ‘ILNOY 5300V
ZO_u_.UJEMZQU

'S3SYHd

123rosd 3¥N1N4 NI G314IN3AI ONY 031201

38 0L 134 34V S30HNOSIY ONY SIUNLINYLS
TYOIHOLSIH ONY TWHNLIND TWILNILod T

“00+/BF ¥LS HYIN

QYO MiVd HOTAYL 440 JDTINE HOTAYL dWYD

40 30IS WY3H1SdN O INIOVIAY ¥3¥V DINDId

dNOY¥O A0 OOMATY NI (€19 133HS)
83415 L¥ Y3 ONIOVLS NOLLONHLSNOD ‘I

S3ION

AP BTN DM - 00 D35000Z0ITUNIIONaND 10 d TT1d

IHHYID TNVHIILS AG QILLOTE Wid BOPT | 120UEL 34w LOTd BVRY




¢ 40 €p 133HS

1334 VIS
[——————__ —— ]
m F o 09 ot o S1 o8 i
IVHA SIDNYHS HIS WO¥J HLNOS HOTAVL
_— 4WYD HONOYHL SS300V 390148 HOTAYL dWYD L
S31ON
SNOILIONGD € = .1 ‘TTVIS NV

ONILSIX3 8 3LIS

FUIL 133HS % 5 S ? {
SONIMYHO St e s S > 0 dAL 3NN T30V XOUddY
NOISIA %0E 14vya b &) s Bt Y R = N

I4£2.T7) 3218 11N 01 GA1LOW
NIHI NMOHS S¥ 51305

LEOTIENILL A1va anssi

HIBAON LI3M0ld

515980
OHJIONYT'W IDUYHI NI

ELEERRECE]

JAS NAMYHO

MDrMINT_03N9IS30

00 .o..‘.o O
QH yvd HOTAYL

MOILJI¥OS30  31va  #

SHOISIASH
2
3
3 3
- M J : 5 5 - 2 WUV DINDId dnoHD |
m o : ; ) AN & T i ; : i ~ 3n0MOQOOMAZY
A = " L3NNG IO .0 (3) a5 . : t . : SEaney
> m P ol 2 c - " N 7 o
> m M (R O B el dAaNnss@ldds E
22 Ash o au = i :
Iz =P Hi Nl
22 mdCE 0¥ $SIDIY NOILONULSNOD
5 0m= e g
= =
W @ INNYILNID
Z %33O SYLINNDVT
!
dAL LINIT LO3rO¥d
Havm S it i (. o e " e S
NINVW s, LA A ) ; o 90+88F ¥LS Y332 SYLINNOVT 3 "
: i s 1 Wi . ey Y 0040 V1S AYVLNAINL NOANYD LVOOTMA Tt
S s JON3NTINOD 3 SR
N3N .1\.“ 5 2
NOLLOMYEISNC
404 LON
AGVYNINIIIYd
dNTLS

WO DOSSVSI VMM

[EVE

o1 SEUAEE OMAR

A2 JNVHAALS ABCILLOTd We 1057 | 1Z0THTI0L LY LOT v AILIS-OF




SE 4O 7I 133HS

14%39)

HIANON 135

SNOILIONOD
ONILSIX3 6 3LIS

EUUSEET

SONIMYHEA

NDIS3Q %0E 14vuad
357

{rix22) 3716 T4 0L 03LLO Y
NIHM NMOHS 5¥ 51 31905

\ZOZELLE 31va 3nss1
00°0S900020T #3amnM 133roHd
515689

OHIIGNYT W 39¥YHI NI

83y QINI3HD
OAS  NMvEa
MDPMWT_ 03NDIS3a

NOILJINOS30  3iva  #
SHOISIASY

INVN 1D3rCNd

VINHOII YD
ALNNOD NIYwW
NV1d LNIJWIONVHNI
JIHSHILYM MITFH0
SYLINNOYTMIN

WILYM @
NIXYW

1M3ND

NOILDMHLSNOD
404 1ON

AdvYNIAIT3Ed

dresis

WODDOSSYSI MM

g,
Sy

~

D

mz_Jxﬂzuoxmmzuﬁp_zaﬁl\ “.

Of =.1 II¥IS NY1d

SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 6 3LIS

(2 ILON) QWOX Sidvd
HOTAVL ¥IA 55300V
VAL NIgYR SSOUD

.8

B2 FLSEL ANI
L¥3AIND
T

oy / IAWA J0NEIS
= ¥3LvM (3 did

/ CE INNZdld NOISSINSNYHL
. r ) avmin (3) did

O, *
by

Lo

"~ dAL '31NOY SS300¥ ZG_.FGJE..NZGU

nﬂ.w%

H.zw:._.znmz
/, S3NNILNOD SS300V
A/.:(ﬂh NIMVIN S5080

“OATE 3MVHO SIONYHL HIS WOHd HLNOS

"HOIAVL JIWYD HDONOYHL ID0IYE HOTAVL
JINYD WOHd SSID0Y OVOH MHvd HOTAYL T

DO+ WIS HWAN TIVL NI

SSOYD WIA 0355300% HOIND S.1IA30 4O aN3

FHL ¥VIN (50D 133HS) WIHY ONIINVE B3 TVHL
3SYOH LY V3HY ONIOVLS NOILONYLSNOD  °L

S310N

HYYID ANYHIILS AD QILLOT W £532 | LZ0ZES01 3UVA 107d BMR§3LIS-ONCT LSIXI 21 DIDMTIUNS 1UIWISIURYLT PLSIBIEM 4923 Sebunfie] OANNI - 00'0330002000WX00T0TaND b0t d 34




9t 40 5 133HS

159

HIANON LTS

SNOILIONCD
ONILSIX3 0} 3LIS

FUILLIIHS

SONIMYHA

NDIS3Q %0E LIvHa
I

Lyex22) 3218 1Ind 01 GALLOTY
N3HMA NMOHS S¥ 81 3T¥0S

LZ0ZTLLE aiva ansst

HIBAON LO3rOHd

515980
OHIIONYT "W 3DHYHD NI
ELEEXRELE]

OAS NAAYHO
MOCIMINT_d3NDIS3a

NOWLdI¥DS30  31va  #
SHORIASH

IWH 153r08d

PRt
NYd LNJWIONVHNI
QIHSHIALYM %3340
SYLINNOYTMIN

HIIVM D
NI¥YW

N3N

AdYMINITEEd

drTLS

OO DOSSYSI MM
D055 568 51T - ID1440
T19%6 VD ONYDIVO
0501 30NS

IONIAY ONVHD 01

r
VSH 4

1¥3AND dD 81 (3) did

ELEETUE ]

g0, YFIMISYLNNSN
tlop »/
+
¥

aareuv

E < 5 \.'.\«41!* A =
‘ .ﬂ
FESELANI =

T

INN3dld NOISSIHSNYHL
ami (3) did

OE=_1 I¥IS Nv1d

SNOILIGNOD ONILSIX3 0L 31IS

dAL LIWIN 123roydd

ATYIHLHON £
S3INNILNOD 55322Y

TIVEL NIYYIA SS0HD

00+ 1FF W1S HYIN TivAL NRIVIA
SSOYD YIA 0355320% HOIND S.IA30 40 ONI
IHL ¥YIN (S0D 1IIHS) VIHY ONDIMY HIUVHL

3SHOH LY YIHY ONIOVLS NOILONYLISNOD T

“S35¥Hd N9ISIA 3UNLNJ NI G3NINY3130

38 7MW 135440 "SNIT3dId NOISSINSNYS L
QMW O¥4 135440 WNINININ v 38 OL vady
ONIDVLS INYHD "ONIDINTS HO/ONY INWHI A8

Q3SS30DV 38 LSNW 3LIS 'SSIDIV LIS 31NN °L

S3LON

07w L0 d 34

DHAVIT FINVHAILS ABTILLOT Wd o7 62 | LIOZBTOL 3LV 1O B 01 311S-ONDT-L ST | CADMCNEN LU3LISIUTYUT PSS H8aiD SEURGET M - 00 035000202 Qmmong




9t 40 81 133HS

1334

=N

SNOILIANOD
ONILSIXT LL 3US

T LTS

SONIMYHA

NOIS3A %0E 14vHa
FSWHd

Lrezz) 3218 T4 0L 031107
NIHM HAOHS 5Y 5] 37405

1Z0ZLL 31va 30551
J00°053000Z0Z ¥3aWNH 130U
515980

OHOIGNYT "W 39HVHO NI
A3Y_ 03403H3
oAs NMYEa

MDFMINT_03NSIS3a

SHOIRIATH

HNOILJINOS30  31va  #

3WwN LO3r0dd

VINYO4ITYD
ALNNOD NIWYIN
NY1d LNJWIONVHNI
Q3IHSHILVYM MI340
SYLINNOVT M

ET
NIHVW
AN3ND

NOILONYLSNOD
404 LON

AdVNIWITIYd

LS

0e o 5L 0E
'S3ISYH
133royd 38n1n4 NI O3HILN301 ONY Q3LVI0T
38 01 134 38V SI0OHNOSIH ANV SIUNLONULS
IYIIHOLSIH ONY TWHNLIND TWIANILOd L

S310N

0g=.1 3Wos Nyld
SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 LL 31S

5 e | Ay 3 F

L ahe X r
- 0L 31IS HONOYHL . ‘3NN 1308V XOUddV

5300V VYL g

FLEZLAN |

\ 90-080-99/
LH3AIND WD 81 (3) did - | '
; : g
R y =3 -
2 - e
Vs ) dAL QV3HYIAO = =
. \ : 5 ¥30dHIMOd @did - - dAL Y3HY ONIDVLS
\.\. T6'TLANI . = 7 TR NOLLINYULSNOD
< . 1H3AND dWD .81 (3 did SRy B e .
¥ T e HN 5SS (3} did
W - =S R
™ /
! \
// ~ e i FLVTLANI
Ot B : L¥IATIND dWD .81 (3} did—

390188
FT10H DNININMS

N0 FINTHIILS ABLIOTd W 7E L2 | 12025201 LV L0 BB 1 13LIS-ONOD-LEIKT PL DUOMONeI 1998308y U PAUSISIEN 4921 SEHUNGET CANMI - 0O 055000Z0ZCRURIGZOROYD 10vd 3114




9t 40 {} 133HS

L1O

HIBNNN LTIHS

SNOILIONOD
ONILSIX3 2L LIS

U L3E

SONIMYHEa

NOIS3A %0E 13IvHd
i

L¥ix.2) 3215 1904 0L 03LIOTS
NIHM NMOHS SY 51 3Tvas

LE0ZREL Alvd Inssi
00" 059000202 B3BNNN 103F08d
515980

CELEERRECTE]
NS HMYNO

OHDIONYT "W_39¥vHI NI

MOMMIT_d3N9IS3a

NOILJI¥OS30  3ivd  #
SHOISIASH

SWVN L3rodd

VINGOSITYD
ALNNOD NIYYIW
NV1d LNINIONVYHNI
J3HSHILYM X3390
SYLINNOYT M

NOILLONALSNOD
H0O4 LON

AdYNIWITEYd

LS

WOXDOSSYST M
0065 668°1F - 301440
21976 ¥ THYINVO
0501 A1INS

IONIAV ONVHD D8l

r
VSd 4

0E=.1 305 NVld
SNOILIONOD ONILSIX3 Z1 3LIS

.
SNNY3INSD
HIFHD SWLINNDYT

€1 aLs

HONOYHL §5300%
VYL NINYW SSOND ———
= X u.._ov\.

x/ :

ELREEIUERDEELT]
.D_.ﬁzoxmu NYS

7, Jm. 5

/ s e

2L z6rves vis H3IW0 SwuNnOVT |
- 00+0 VLS ¥I3YD OWINOYID NYS

3IN3NTANOD s / -
; Ve . Bt e
[ e N\ 7 hY

= / © dALOY3HNIAO B
. 310d ¥3IMOd (3) did

21ET-8a!
‘Nev

~ INIOd SIHL 40 18v3
~ $532JY ON - ONNOYYHYENL
- S$300V NOLLONYULSNOD

o e X X\

DS+£T5 VLS ¥Y3N IHvHO

SIONYYHS YIS 40 3AIS HLYON NO TIVHL NIdvW

SSOYD 40 (FDO 13THS) WIHY JINIId SNOHD
ONINYI LY YIUY ONIOVLS NOLLONMISNOD T

"S3SVYHd NDIS3a

JHNLNG NI O3NINYIL30 38 TIM 135440

"3NI3dld NOISSIWSNYXL OMIWN WOYd 135440

WNWINIAL Y 38 OL LNIWGIND3 "IVl NIdvW

‘$SO¥D NO 0IDVLS LNIWIND3 32IN7S 13IAYHD

HO/ANY INVHD "ONIDINTS HO/INY INVHD A8
Q3553007 38 1SNW 3LIS 'SS323¥ LIS Q30NN 1

S310N

T DM - 000330302020V EIAZENGYD 1044 T4

PRUSIATA Y2RD SENU

VI INVHSALS A8 OILIOT Nd 1€ B2 1 12028200 3170 107 B0 1 3115-ONO 151X




9€ 40 g1 133HS

8LO

HIANOM 1TIHE

SNOILIONOD
ONILSIX3 €1 3LIS

ELUREESH

SONIMYHA

NOIS3A %0E LIvHa
Eas]

L#0%.22) 371 TIN4 0L O3LIO
HIHA MOHS Sv S13Tv05

LZOTEM L dLva ansst
J00°055000Z0C H38WNN 103r0H
515980
OHIIONYT W _3DUVHD NI
L:ELIEXEE]
OAS  WwvHa
MDIMINT_ 03NDIS3a

NOILdIDS30__3ivo_ #
SHOISIASY

3NN LD3r0ud

PrEhe
NY1d INIWIONVHNI
Q3HSYILYM %3340
SYLINNOYTMIN

HIIYM S
NIEVW

NCELOMYLISNOD
404 LON
AdYMINITIZdd

AWTLS

WOODOSEVST I

06 = .1 31¥0s Nvld

= +
Oosggs

INIMYALNID XIIHI SYLINNDYT

ATHILSYI

SINNILNOD

S$S323V IvHL

NI¥YW 55040 = /

s S

dAL OY3HYINO B
3104 ¥IMOd (3) did

-

"IN 1328Vd XO¥ddY
R, ~
SR,

¢ S ¥
— — — — — — — — —
\ \ b 109 133HS 335 - §2+28¢ VLS INMHOLYN

"OS+EZS VWLS HVYIN IvEA
SIONYH4 ¥IS 40 30IS HLHON NO IVHL NIdYW
S$5042 J40 (#09 LITHS) VYV DINDId dNOHD

‘ONIAYI LY Y3HV ONIOVLS NOILONHLSNOD '€

"S3SYH NOIS3a

3HNLNA NI OININEILIAO 38 TIM 138430

“3NIN3dId NOISSINSNYHL OMINW IWON4 135440

WNIAININ ¥ 38 0L INIWAIND3 ML NIy

$S0MD NO 039VLS LNIWLIND3I 32INTS 13AVED

HO/ONY INYHD "ONIDINTS HOMONY INVHD A8
0355330¥ 38 LSNIN 3LIS 'SS3D0V LIS QaLNNT 71

S3L1ON

0TV i d I

BHHYID IINYHAILS AT DILLON WA ST5T L LZDTETNL TLwD LOTd EMP ' ILISTNO:




Item Number: 06
Attachment: 03

Attachment F

30%-Complete Design
Estimate of Anticipated
Construction Costs

A
INGTAY



1 - - - - - 1 - - - - - - - NS dinmt NOLLYHO1$3H 8 TYAQWIYH INIWI0ES 8 3LIS| LT

1 - - - - - 1 - - - - - - - ANS 4Nt NQUYINAOW IHIAND 8 3LS| 9T
(7353 £8V 069 - - - - - - - - - - - a¥vAJIand {£1 8 €1 S10S) NOUYINIWONY 13AVYS| ST
99 0 Q 6 ¥ 9 T 9 3 ] ] [ 9 € HOV3 FWNLINYLS COOM LVLISVYH 100d| ¢T
0z 0 Q € 0 z T z £ z z £ z Q HOV3 JUNLINYLS QOOM DNISHOS 3141d] €1
£0v'y [} 0 ¥+ 0 SZv [ 68E §5S 56E SEb 6E5 00% L8E aQuvA JIaND IUNLINYLS 1IAVHD 313418] 2T
L1591 S9%°L ¥RE'T T6L°T ZT6'T TI6'T [ SE6'T S8 185 £85 798 EET'T GET 1004 ¥¥3NN 3LN0Y SS3IDV INOTY HIVdIY 8 NOILYHOLSIY Tivel| 1T
T - - - - - - - - T - - - - WS dWM SS300V LIS-HILNI § U5 HOJ NOILDIEOHd 439 TAINNVHD Advdodwat| ot

1 T T - T - - - - - - - - - NS dINMTT {£1 %% ZT 0T $3LIS} $5390V %8 DNIDVLS INVHD AdvHOdwaL| 6
860°T 0 0 152 0 98 €5 58 ST 0 T4 991 66 95 1003 ¥YINN NOIIVY01538 12 NOILONYLISNOD GYOY S5300V Auvdodwal| 8
T T T T 1 T T T 1 1 T T 1 1 WNS dINMT NOLL)3)L04Hd ALITIDVS TIVHL ANV 3UNLONYLS ‘ALNILN ONLLSIXA| £
OTT'vE 058 058 066'0T ODE'S 0DE'S 0087 0082 058 058 0sg oty 0ZET 0E6 1004 JHYNDS NOILYHO.S3Y YIHY ONIDVIS| 9
05L'Z 06 06 058 082 082 06T 061 06 06 06 091 01z 0T L1004 HYINT $150d 8 DNIJNIJ vaHY ONI9VIS| S
T 1 T T 1 T T T 1 1 T T 1 T WNS diNNT NOISHIAIO 8 TOULNOD HALYM| ¢
09672 0 0 orr's 0 0721 0307 0021 0052 0 0TF'E 0ZE'E 086'T 0ZT'T | 1004 39vnDS DNIGINYS ONV ONIBYI1D| €
T T T T 1 T 1 1 1 1 T 1 T 1 WNS JWNT ] IDNVIINOD 7B dddms| 2

1 T T T T T 1 1 T 1 1 T 13 1 WNS dINMT NOLLYZINIA0WAA/NOLLYziaow| T

ALLUNYND - 40 LINN wau| ‘oN
leoL | evaus | zraus | veaus | oraus | e3us | 83NS | zaus | 93US | SalS | waus | £3us | caus | taus

$1$07 K19v80Hd 40 NOINIJO NDISIA %0E 14vya
NY1d LINFWAINYHNT QIHSHILVYM X33HD SYLNNOV]
1Z0Z/ST/1T $ALYII0SSY FINTIDS IWLNIWNCYIANT A9




“Bu(PpOW 213Ny WOIY SS31IS LEBYS PUB ANSO[HA JO S1N53I NNRIPAY pue ado(s jueq ue paseq paulLIBIap 3q 0} SPIaL UoREZINIGRIS YUY [eudjod of payewlss 2. saijiuenb Sunueld ajod aan ‘0T

-fauadunuod %57 apn|3us sannuenb 2in1NLIS Poom 1BNGEH (004 PUR SUDJOJ AN IUBWIBLLYES 0] 193[gNS pUE AewWayds 3ae SuS|Sap %0E VST U0 UOREIUBLO pue seinianms 307 's50] J0 1507 [BISIBW SPNU] 150D 11UN JINTINIS POOM, ‘6

“Buidess Jad 3354 DS 40 YI2wal wnwixety e o3 dn ays Jad sEuide)s ajesedas pue UOSEIS UONONIISUDS (T) AUD SBLUINSSE UDISIZAIP PUR [DAUCD J3IRM, '8

"24s yaea Je dueudjuew pue uonedydde diag Alesodway pue $a31s ||B J0) pJECY |0QUDD 532.IN053Y JATeA 21015 Y) Yy Nuntad [E13UsS UORINNSUOD PAIBYS B UD PIseq S| dddMS Uy 10§ 380 4

‘spaford Jejuens woyy saoud pig pue dxvapadxa yrafold snotaaad 5,y53 uo paseq 5| 1503 UOIINJISUOD 2|qeqoud Jo uoiudo siy) "9

"5JE[|OP TZOZ W0 UDIYE[EISS |ENULE 355 & Sujnsse ‘SIROp $Z07 Ul pajuasald aie 51507 pajewnlsy -§

-asueuaurew 2uioduc 1o ‘Juiojuow uzwaSeuRW vonInNIuo) ‘wlisap ‘Guniuuad 10) 53500 1230ad PAIRWISE AP JOU SAOP 3| SIYL b

“1alo.d ay3 jo sadeys auniny ui padojaasp 5| uSisap 3L SE SUCISIASI PUE JUILLIUNYDI 0] 133[GNS B8 SPEWNSa 3say)
‘P 51 340M 3} udym saoud Aiddns

10 uoneMAnyy pue ‘smMard pue JuBwdinba uoPINISUD Jo ANIGEEAR ‘UOIIANSUGY O W 3L AQ pR1oedu 3 ABW UCIIINIISUOD JO 51500 fen1de Sy "AJEUBRIPPY "51503 [EN10E 3Y] JSA0 [OJIU0I OU SBY ST ‘S1S00 UONPNIISUI 3|geqoud Jo suoiuido Supimosd u -z
“(Prewip Fuipplq pue suonawsas Sunwiad ‘uBisap [euy se yans) ssnureliaoun 123(0xd 104 Junoe 03 AIUASUIIUD YSE B apN|IU| pue SleIne %OE-/+ AjsTewixo.dde 3q 01 PAIBRISUCD BJe SDIRUIISS 503 BSIY]

"uSisap 4o [pA9) (emdaauca au Joj 2tepdosdde 51501 uonanIIsUCD 1aloud 2101 4o vonewIXOIdde Ue apIAcid 03 PAPURIUI 34E SRLLWINSE I80D ISIY | "SIANELIHE JO uosLEEL0D 1502 MO||e 0] Saleulise apnziudetu Jo JapJo papiaosd aael om ‘sasodind Sujuueld Jog T

S9I0N
|peo‘ees'es |sov'szes lesv'zres |vo'zso'ts [oeszozs [T12066¢ [oze'sess |vov'asss [OE0'zvdd |LI6'6¥9S [ECEOVIS |Iv9'7985 |vesvess |ove'vess iviol
/BTEI6°TS 869855  [£00°18S  [806'zz$ [09E'6os  [svtEsiS [vea'vors |vSv'6vTS [09¢STES |L6v'89TS |GET'991S |vvevels |PPOGLIS [984/985 [(%SEH ADNIDNIINGD
T6£'609'5% |60£°291$ [Brv'1ees |9e'6448 [0sT'86TS [Fos'sers [e86°0ivs oT0'zZvs [04Tv29% [0ZV'T8rS [vBOPibG |860°Z¢0% |OWBSZYS |096'2bC§ [1VLOLENS
00F'6S - - - - - 00'65 - - - - - - - s - NQLLVHQLSIY %8 TYAQW3IY INJWIQ3S g ALIS| LT
000'00TS - - - - - 000°007S - - - - - - - 51 - NOLLYIIIGOW LH3AIND 8 ALIS| 9T
L0T°9ES | BLE'TOTS | REB VTS - - - - - - - - - - - A | otg (€1 7 7T S35} NOILVINIWONY 13AVHD| ST
000'0ZE'TS 03 0% o00'08T$ | 000°'08$ | 000°0ZT$ | 000°0rS | 000'0zTS | oD'o8TS [ 000'0zTs | 000'0zTs | coo’orTs | 00002TS | 000709¢ | va | ooooTs FWN1INYLS TO0M IVLIGVH 1004d| T
000°00LS 0% 0% 000°s01% [ 000048 | 000'ses | ooo'ocs |ooo'sots | oonoss | ooo'ors [ooo’sots | cooozs 0% va | 0o0'sES FHMLINYLS GOOM DNIDHOS T1341H| €T
099896 0% 03 085'Tr1% 05 005'e6% | ost'tss | ogs'ses |oorzzts | 006'98s | 00s's6$ [oss'e1ts | ooo'sss | ovi'ses | aD | oces JUNLINYLS 1IAVHED FT4414] 2T
OLE'S9TS | 0S9'vTS | 0vBECS | oze'szs | ozn'6Ts | ozr's1s | ovz’ss | nSE'6TS | 09BTS | 08'S5 | 0£8'SS | 02985 | OESIIS | 0ee'S | 41 0TS ALN0Y 55300V ONOTY HIVdIY 2 NOLLVHOLSIE TIvd)| TT
008'6% - - - - - - - - 008°65 - - - - 1 - $S3IDW ILIS-HALNI § JL55 O3 NOILDILOMd Q38 TINNVHD AMVHOJWIL| 0T
0¥ LTS gov'es | 009'sS - 00F'6% - - - - - - - - - s1 - (€T %2 7T "0T §31IS) S5300V '8 ONIDVLS INVHD AUVHOIWIL| 6
00Sv.ZS 0% 0% 05Zv9% 0% 00s'1Z$ [ 0sz'ers | osz'res | oszies 0% 05£'eks | 00s'tes | 0sL'ves | 000918 | N 0573 NOILVYO1S3Y '8 NOLLONYLSNOD avQY §S320W AYvdodwalL| 8
008°965 00215 | 008'ts | oos'sys | oot'ss | oos'ss | ooz'zs | oot'ss | oor'ss 03 DOE'ZS | 006'SS 005'ss 03 sl - NOLLIILOH ALNIZVE TVHL ONY 3YNLIRYLS ‘ALTILN ONILSIXA| £
72898 0LT$ 0LTS 861°2% 030'1$ | 090°T$ 0953 095% 04T% DLTS 0LTS (= 928 98T% 45 | oz'os NOLYYOLS3Y VUV aNIovLS| 9
000°¢es 0ZL$ DZLS 008'9% ove'zs | ovees | oes'ts | 0esTs 0zLs 0zLs ozLs 082’18 085'T$ | orr'1ts | N 85 S150d %2 DNIJN3d ¥IdV ONIOVIS| §
0006965 | o00'6z$ | 000°'6zs | ooo'eTts [ 000°2s¢ | ooo'zss | ooo'zss | ooo‘zss [000°ETTS |0007THTS | 000'G8S | 000EITS | 0D0ZSS | DOOZSS | S - NOISY3AIQ 8 108.INOD Halvm| +
CEELES 0% 03 BEL'BS i} 26’z | 708'1s | 06828 | 0sevs 0% PI8'SS | v19'ss ooe'es | v061S | 45 | 0218 DNISINYD ANV ONIBYID| €
009°659 06E'7¢ | 06g'zs | 05£'TT$ | 0ST'RS | oeevs | oeo'ss | o9g'vs | oes'ed | oor'es | 09vES [ oests 050's$ | o0z9'es | §1 - FINVITINGD B dddMS| T
00£°00S$ | 00£'sT$ | 00T'TZS | 006'045 | oot'sts | ope'ecss | ops'zys | 006'8ES | 008953 | 008'evs | 0OZ'EYS | 00585 | 00B'RES | 00%zes | - - NOLLYZIISOWIa/NOILYZImaow| T
1502 : LNN| IS0D Wil -on
oL | evaus | zrans | vraus [ or3us | e3us [ saus | £sus | 93us | Saus | vals | eans | zans | TS LINN
S1S0D A19va0dd 40 NOINIAO NDISIA %0E L4vEa
NV1d LNINAINVHNI OIHSHALYM X3THD SYLINNOY]
T20Z/ST/1T

SALVII0SSY 3INTIDS IVINIWNNCOHIANT (A8




	Agenda
	1. Minutes
	1.1 September 16, 2021 Minutes

	2. One Tam Draft 2022-23 Work Plan
	2.1 Work Plan

	3. Forestry Services Contract No. 1967
	4. CA Conservation Corps Contract
	4.1 Contract

	5. Other Power Driven Mobility Device (E-Bikes)
	5.1 Proposed Ord. 457
	5.2 Draft Policy
	5.3 Application
	5.4 1992 Internal Grievance Procedure
	5.4.1992 Complaint Form
	5.5 Proposed Grievance Procedures

	6. Lagunitas Creek Watershed Enhancement Plan
	6.1 Plan
	6.2 Design Drawings
	6.3 Anticipated Construction Costs


